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Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is a Hong Kong-based premier retail operator that specialises in the
operation of mid to upper-end department stores in Hong Kong. The Group's
two SOGO stores in Hong Kong including the flagship store in Causeway Bay,
the largest and leading department store in Hong Kong, as well as the Tsim
Sha Tsui store. Characterised by the “one-stop shopping” concept with
unparalleled brand equity, the Group’s department stores offer a wide variety
of goods ranging from daily necessities to luxury products as well as personal
care services, such as beauty salons, in a comfortable shopping environment.

To stay competitive in the ever-evolving retail landscape, the Group will
continue to forge closer ties with consumers and keep abreast of market
changes, leveraging on its omni-channel and upgraded system, with a view to
offering seamless and compelling customer experiences with attentive care
that stand out from the market.

As part of its continuous efforts to diversify and enhance its asset portfolio, the
Group acquired a high-quality freehold commercial property in a prime area in
London in November 2020. The property is located in St. James's Square,
London, one of the city’s most prestigious addresses, providing
approximately 103,655 sq. ft. of Grade A office accommodation.

To capture the rising purchasing power in the East Kowloon area, the Kai Tak
Project commenced ground-breaking in December 2017, with its foundation
construction work progressing satisfactorily. The construction of the twin
blocks of commercial buildings that upon completion in 2023, will host a new
SOGO department store along with complementary retailing, entertainment,
dining and lifestyle facilities in East Kowloon. The twin-tower is set to become
a new landmark in East Kowloon and will further strengthen the Group's
foothold in the Hong Kong retailing market. With the Group's strong financial
position and operating cash flows as well as its unparalleled brand equity, the
Group is always prepared to take on new investment opportunities to drive
sustainable growth and long-term prosperity.
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HK$'000 F7%& 7T

Sales proceeds $§%& FT1S 7R 9,605,804
Turnover & % %8 4,671,971
Profit before taxation & %% Al ¥ &) 1,938,603

Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

RERARRIHEE AEIEEF 1,600,907
Basic earnings per share (HK$)
BREXREFN CET) 1.00

Total dividends per share (HK cents)
A B a5 OB)

10,316,508

3,755,092

3,412,689

2,875,674

179

HK$ Million CAGR _13.0%

BEET

FEAHRE

11,707,732
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The year-on-year sales decline
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- 3 6 i 2% - 5 7 . 7% e Faced with a halt in tourist visits and

narrowed to 17.5% in the second half
of the year compared to a drop of
49.3% in the first half of 2020
—E_TETHEHERES F¥F
B49.3% W% 2 17.5%

The store’s operations and operating
hours were adjusted from time to
time to prioritise the safety of staff,
customers and business partners
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AS % OF TOTAL SALES

12.3%

local consumption deterred by the
government-mandated social
distancing measures in the wake of
COVID-19, both traffic footfall and
stay-and-buy ratio fell for the full year
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Sales decline narrowing from a drop
of 71.1% in the first half of 2020 to
31.7% in the second half of the year
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Dear Shareholders,

The global coronavirus pandemic plunged the world into an economic
crisis like no other in the year 2020, sending the world economy to the
worst economic downturn since the Great Depression. As the widespread
global pandemic brought much of the world’s economic activities and
cross-border travel to a halt, Hong Kong sank into a deeper recession last
year amidst weak domestic demand and sluggish external trade.

During the year, the Hong Kong economy grappled with the severe
disruptions caused by the pandemic which put the inbound tourism to a
standstill and significantly dampened domestic consumption. In view of
prioritising the safety of both employees and customers, our SOGO store
operations and operating hours had to adjust and reduce from time to
time, which negatively impacted our business.

Faced with the challenging operating environment, the Group
implemented a series of critical strategic initiatives during the year
including cost retrenchment, optimisation of operational efficiency,
enhancing our SOGO Rewards mobile app and strengthening our online
store capabilities, in order to alleviate the negative impact of the
pandemic. Against stiff market headwinds, our SOGO 35th Anniversary
Sales program still managed to achieve satisfactory sales performance as
well-tailored promotions and seamless omnichannel shopping experiences
successfully drove patronage and sales.

Leveraging our strong brand equity and effective marketing strategies, the
Group managed to capitalise on the short-lived rebound in domestic
demand during the second half of the year when the government eased
pandemic containment measures temporarily before the fourth wave of
local COVID-19 infections emerged in late November. Coupled with a low
base of comparison in the previous period, decline of the Group’s gross
sales revenue narrowed to 19.6% in the second half of the year, from a
drop of 53.5% in the first half of 2020, and reported a 39.9% decline for the
full year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's revenue decreased by
43.7%, largely due to a significant fall in customer foot traffic at the stores
of the Group. The Group recorded a net profit attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$138.5 million, whereas it was HK$1,890.7 million in
2019. The relatively small profit was mainly caused by a plunge in sales
revenue, coupled with fair value losses recorded on the Group’s financial
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investments and investment properties. In view of the daunting operating
environment and tremendous uncertainties over the market recovery, the
board of directors has resolved not to recommend the payment of the final
dividend. We believe that this measure is a prudent and responsible
means of preserving cash for the long-term financial health of the Group.

As part of our continuous efforts to diversify and enhance our asset
portfolio, the Group acquired a high-quality freehold commercial property
in a prime area in London in November 2020. The property is located in St.
James's Square, London, one of the city's most prestigious addresses,
providing approximately 103,655 sq. ft. of Grade A office accommodation.
We believe that the acquisition will provide long-term investment
opportunity to the Group through rental income.

Regarding the Group's Kai Tak Project, construction work of the project
has encountered certain delay due to both the pandemic as well as
suspension of work for carrying out the tunnel settlement investigation as
requested the MTR. The Group will continue to work closely with our
contractors to continue pushing the project forward. Upon completion, the
twin towers will host a SOGO department store in addition to
complementary retailing, entertainment, dining and lifestyle servicing
facilities. We remain confident that this project will become a new
landmark in East Kowloon, further fortifying our presence in the Hong
Kong retailing market.

Looking ahead, 2021 would still be a year of uncertainties and challenges
for both retail industry and economy of Hong Kong. Given the
unpredictability of the evolving pandemic and its lingering impact on the

global economic recovery, the Group will stay vigilant and work closely
with our business partners to tide over the difficulties. As a prominent retail
operator in Hong Kong, the Group will continue to consolidate its
resilience and strength during turbulent times and focus on steering a
positive turnaround of our business.

As always, the Group maintains an open stance towards new business
opportunities and look forward to bringing better return for our
shareholders in the long run.

On behalf of the board of directors, | would like to extend my heartfelt
appreciation to all staff members for their dedication and hard work, in
particular, their industrious efforts in tackling the tough challenges brought
by the unprecedented pandemic throughout the difficult year. Strong
teamwork and close collaborations with our business partners are crucial to
our long-term success. Moreover, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our customers, business partners and shareholders for their
trust and continued support for the Group. We look forward to your
continued patronage and supports in the years to come.

Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman

2 March 2021

VERFFRNFHERR - BN EEIRBIFFRE -
MSEERDEEERTHETE  EFSHRTE
HERBERARS - AEERRUENEREREZ
2 URBRESESASENRENBES -

ERBONEREEAS ST RERET A%
BR—_Z_ZTF+ - AERBAEDHRKE R
BEOKAXBARNE - ZWFEUNRAEE
MRS RTARFEBRBMMBEY —  f2H#
#103,655F 73 RE) F R A5 PT © BFIREZ WK
BHRENHEHSPRARSARERIERREKRS -

AEENREEETH IRIFHZE  MLFA
BEHARZSETRENEAEMEIFHET
ZEAMERTERT —ETRREMNER - AEH
BB B ETAEAEERE - MIEAR
RT®% HRAKR-BELAEE IRETE -
IREE - BERRAERHREEREERE - AKE
BEZEBBRASRNENIIE  WE—FZ
ER MR BESTEM G -

RERK  HREFELTEXRKLEMEME © =
T —F R M R B —F - R
BREEARA IREFEDREBEEENE
B AKERREREES  WERMNEHRE
HEZAE HERR (FATENREETES
EBE AEERRBHENTSRETERES HH
g%&?ﬁ C WEFRARPIH E R IEE

—BEE - AREEMAMSRABEE - BRE
REMERBERFDNESERE -

AANERREZGA2RETNER RSB HBA
ROEHE - LHES M PIE L ER B A — F R A
BATME - B0 S s A O] BRSPS RV ER
E kB - R BB A (RS R M EBRHNE
BEEHRMNERERNNEREE - 1IN - KA
FUREMINEE  ZBEHRBRBUARLH
B REMb P ARENEERR I o B
MR AREEERAEL T AH -

LI L kAT S S EA




=
/41

i LEEN

Market Overview

The lingering novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and the associated
containment measures dealt a severe blow to the world economy in 2020,
wreaking havoc on global trade and economic activities. China’s economy
grew at the slowest pace in more than four decades, but it would be the
only major economy to expand in 2020 thanks to its effective containment
of the pandemic. The world’s second largest economy saw its gross
domestic product expand 2.3% last year, down from 6.1% in 2019. Total
retail sales of consumer goods in China fell 3.9%, compared with a growth
of 8% in 2019.

The Group’s home market Hong Kong plunged into a deeper recession
with the COVID-19 pandemic weighing on investments and exports,
coupled with subdued domestic demand amid deteriorating job market.
The city’'s GDP contracted by 6.1% in 2020, compared with a 1.2%
contraction in 2019. Hong Kong's retail sales also tumbled in 2020 as the
prolonged pandemic brought inbound tourism to a standstill and
domestic consumption took a big hit. Visitor arrivals to Hong Kong
plummeted 93.6% in 2020, compared with a decline of 14.2% in 2019.
Visitations from mainland China reported a decline of 93.8% for the full
year, compared with a 14.2% drop in 2019. For the whole year, retail sales
in Hong Kong sank 24.3% year-on-year, compared with a decline of 11.1%
in 2019. Sales of luxury goods categories, including jewelry and watches,
dropped 54% whereas department store sales decreased 22.5%

year-on-year.
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Financial Review 2020

Faced with an unprecedented health and economic crisis, the Group has
swiftly implemented a series of critical strategic initiatives to alleviate the
negative impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and adapted to the rapidly
changing retail environment. Under the leadership of seasoned
management team, the Group navigated the adversity and changing
consumer behavior with accelerating pace of operation enhancement and

continuous digital investment.

Revenue and Sales Proceeds

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s department store
operations saw its revenue decreased by 43.7% over the previous year to
HK$1,993.0 million, while total gross sales proceeds, derived from direct,
After Purchase Order (“APQO") and concessionaire sales transactions, were
down by 39.9% to approximately HK$5.7 billion. The decline in revenue of
the Group was caused by a decrease in direct sales of approximately
43.3% while commission income derived from APO and concessionaire

sales reported a drop of approximately 45.0%.

Gross Profit and Concessionaire Rates

The Group's gross profit margin as a percentage of revenue decreased to
73.9% from 74.9% in 2019 as the drop in concessionaire commission, which
gross margin is theoretically 100%, was slightly higher than the decline in
direct sales. Gross profit amounted to HK$1,473.6 million, down 44.5%
from HK$2,653.2 million in 2019 as sales tumbled. The blended average
concessionaire rate for the Group was down 1.4 percentage point to 23.4%
from 24.8% last year, mainly a result of higher discounts were given in
terms of extra SOGO Rewards points as well as cash coupons to
incentivise customer spending amid the unprecedented pandemic market

situation when consumer sentiments were generally weak.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & @53 & 247 (&)

Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a net profit
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$138.5 million, down 92.7%
from HK$1,890.7 million as reported in 2019. The relatively small profit this
year was mainly caused by a combination of (i) a 43.7% drop in the Group's
revenue, mainly as a result of a significant fall in customer foot traffic at the
stores of the Group stemming from the containment measures of
COVID-19 pandemic; (i) a significant drop in investment income due to a
mark-to-market fair value loss of HK$333.8 million being recorded on the
Group's financial investments whereas it was a fair value gain of HK$403.9
million in 2019; and (iii) a fair value loss of HK$418.1 million being recorded
on the Group's investment properties as compared to HK$174.0 million in
2019. The net profit attributable to the Group’s department store
operations (before counting the fair value changes on financial assets/
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FA/L at FVPL") and
investment properties, net exchange gain of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FA at FVOCI”) would have
amounted to HK$801.2 million, down 50.9% from HK$1,632.1 million in
2019, primarily a result of a plunge in sales and revenue attributed to the
sluggish consumer demand amid the pandemic, coupled with the
commission/rental concessions the Group offered to business partners

during the year with an aim to ride through the difficult time together.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The aggregate selling and distribution costs of the Group decreased
17.1% over the previous year and represented 10.2% (2019: 7.4%) of the
Group's gross sales proceeds as the fall in sales proceeds was much
steeper. The decrease in absolute amount was mainly attributable to a
significant drop in rental equivalent expenses for the TST store amid a
substantial drop in sales that only the fixed base rent was required to be
paid during the year. The decrease in selling and distribution costs was
also a result of the Group's cost tightening measures in response to the

pandemic situation.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s general administrative expenses decreased 16.8% as
compared to the previous year as the Group implemented further cost
tightening measures during the year in view of the difficult operating
environment. The decrease was also due to the fact that there was a
one-off donation of HK$10 million made in 2019 whereas donations made

during the year were relatively insignificant.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 @51 & 247 (&)

Staff Costs

Staff costs (excluding those of the directors) of the Group decreased 3.9%
to approximately HK$212.1 million during the year under review as the
Group implemented cost reduction measures amid the pandemic. While
the annual general increment of salaries and wages for the Group's
employees was largely in line with the market trend, remuneration reviews
and bonuses are based on performance of individual staff and operating
and financial performances of the Group. The total number of staff of the

Group increased to 675 at the end of 2020 from 659 at the end of 2019.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

These comprise mainly management fee, credit card recharges,
miscellaneous incomes received from the counters and tenants, and other
sundry incomes and exchange gain/loss. Increase in other income, gains
and losses of the Group during the year was mainly attributable to the
receipt of subsidy under the Employment Support Scheme from the
government to the tune of HK$35.5 million and a larger amount of
exchange gain of HK$45.9 million being recorded whereas the exchange
gain in 2019 was HK$20.5 million, mainly arising from translating the
Group's US dollar denominated bonds payable amid a weakening US
dollar against HK dollar.

Interest income and Investment Income

For the year 2020, the Group recorded a net investment income of
HK$34.6 million, comparing to HK$740.2 million in 2019. Net investment
income comprised mainly interest income of HK$105.6 million from the
Group's bank deposits and net investment loss of HK$71.0 million, which
consisted of fair value changes, net exchange gain, interest and
investment income received and receivable, and dividend income from a
portfolio of financial assets and liabilities. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group's financial investment portfolio grouped under current assets and
current liabilities amounted to an aggregate of approximately HK$4,814.5
million (including the approximately HK$1,542.9 million holding in a Money
Market Fund) and HK$220.8 million respectively.

Finance Costs

The Group's total finance cost consisted mainly of finance charges and
interest expenses on bank loans and bonds payable. The aggregate
amount of finance costs and interest incurred for the year, before
capitalisation, was approximately HK$586.6 million (2019: HK$619.3
million). The overall decrease was mainly due to decrease in interest in

respect of the HIBOR-linked bank loans amid the lower interest rate
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & @53 & 247 (&)

environment but was off-set by the full year effect in respect of the
additional interest for the USD300 million bonds issued in July 2019.
Finance costs charged to the profit and loss account during the year
amounted to HK$369.3 million (2019: HK$365.2 million) after HK$217.3
million (2019: HK$254.1 million) of the borrowing costs relating to the Kai

Tak Project has been capitalised.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's EBITDA (excluding fair value changes on FA/L at FVPL, club
debentures and investment properties, net exchange gain of FA at FVOCI)
for the year decreased 40.4% to HK$1,487.8 million (2019: HK$2,494.6

million), mainly due to a fall in sales and concessionaire income.

As at the end of 2020, before counting the Group's net FA/L at FVPL,
which was valued at approximately HK$4,593.6 million (2019: HK$3,306.1
million), the Group's net debt (total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and bank deposits) increased to HK$16,163.5 million from
HK$10,053.2 million as at 31 December 2019. The Group's cash at banks
and bank deposits (before counting the approximately HK$1,542.9 million
holding in a Money Market Fund) amounted to approximately HK$4,175.8
million (2019: HK$8,621.3 million) as at the end of 2020. Of the cash kept at
banks in Hong Kong, approximately 99% was denominated in US dollar
("US$ or USD") and Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") and approximately 1% was

in Renminbi and other foreign currencies.

The Group's outstanding bank loans at the end of 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$13,503.1 million (2019: HK$11,712.2 million) and bonds
payable amounted to approximately HK$6,836.2 million (2019: HK$6,962.2
million) respectively. The outstanding bank loans comprised HK$4,000
million term loan and HK$2,000 million revolving loan drawn under the
Hong Kong dollar denominated five-year (due July 2021) HK$8,000 million
secured loan facility, which interest is calculated with reference to HIBOR.
The HK$4,000 million outstanding term loan is repayable semi-annually
over the loan life, with the first repayment started back in January 2019.
The Group's outstanding bank loans consisted of also a term loan of
HK$3,891 million drawn under the HK$9,000 million project loan facility for
financing payment of part of the land premium of the Kai Tak Project. This
HK$9,000 million project loan facility bear interest calculated with

reference to HIBOR and does not require repayment until the end of the
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 @51 & 247 (&)

5-year term in July 2022. The remaining outstanding bank loans comprised
also short-term US$ loans totaling US$41.9 million (equivalent to HK$324.4
million) and £312.7 million (equivalent to HK$3,311.9 million) loan drawn
under an aggregate US$725 million facilities, which are secured against
certain of the Group's financial assets and cash deposits, bearing interest
calculated with reference to LIBOR. The £ 312.7 million loan was drawn for

funding the acquisition of the property in London during the year.

As at the year end, the Group had aggregate unutilised banking facilities
in the amount equivalent to approximately HK$8,091.5 million (2019:
HK$7,228.4 million).

The bonds payable of HK$6,836.2 million at the year end (US$887 million at
maturity) represented outstanding unsecured guaranteed bonds issued by
the Group, which comprised a US$287 million 10-year (bearing interest at
4.25% and maturing in October 2022), a US$300 million 5-year (bearing
interest at 4.875% and maturing in July 2024), and a US$300 million 10-year
(bearing interest at 4.5% and maturing in June 2025).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's net debt to equity ratio or net
gearing (defined as total borrowings less cash and bank balances
(including the approximately HK$1,542.9 million holding in Money Market
Fund classified under the Group's FA/L at FVPL)) divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company) was 380.2% (2019: 261.7%). The
increase in the net debt was mainly caused by the £312.7 million loan
drawn for funding the acquisition of the property in London. Meanwhile,
the relatively high level of net gearing was also due to the fact that the
Group's self-owned store property in Causeway Bay, Hong Kong is stated
at historical cost less depreciation and amortisation, thereby its fair value
has not been taken into account in the calculation of the equity

attributable to owners of the Company.

Foreign Exchange Management

The functional currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries is Hong
Kong dollar, in which most of the transactions are denominated. As
described under the “Liquidity and Financial Resources” section above,
certain monetary assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in
USD and Sterling. The Group currently does not require a sophisticated
and comprehensive foreign currency hedging policy as the Hong Kong

dollar, in which most of the Group's transactions are denominated, is
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & @53 & 247 (&)

pegged to the USD in which certain of the Group’s borrowings and cash
are denominated. While the Group's exposure to the Sterling borrowings
is somewhat hedged by the holding of an investment property in London,
the Group is looking at different options with an aim to reduce the
potential foreign exchange impact to the Group caused by future

fluctuations in the Sterling.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group's leasehold land and
buildings in Hong Kong with carrying value aggregating approximately
HK$1,126.6 million (2019: HK$1,172.0 million), together with shares of
certain subsidiaries of the Group, were pledged to secure the HK$8,000
million (2019: HK$8,000 million) loan facility granted to the Group, of which
HK$7,000 million (2019: HK$8,000 million) was utilised.

In addition, the entire Kai Tak Project, comprising the land, construction in
progress and investment property under development, with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$10,193.4 million (2019: HK$9,762.2 million) was
pledged to secure the HK$9,000 million loan facility granted to the Group
for financing the Kai Tak Land acquisition and its construction, of which
HK$3,891.0 million (2019: HK$3,691.0 million) was utilised as at the year
end. Moreover, certain of the Group's financial assets with carrying value
amounting to approximately HK$5,091.3 million (2019: HK$1,391.8 million)
were pledged to secure loan facilities in the amount of approximately
US$725 million (2019: US$320 million).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at

31 December 2020.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

To tap into a rare opportunity to own a high-quality freehold property in a
prime area in London that will enable the Group to diversify and enhance
its asset portfolio, the Group completed the acquisition of a commercial
property at a consideration of £250.1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,571.0 million) on 20 November 2020. The property is located in St.
James’s Square, London, one of the city’s most prestigious addresses,
providing approximately 103,655 sq. ft. of Grade A office accommodation.
The acquisition was an outright asset purchase and the Group paid
approximately £ 15 million of Stamp Duty Land Tax, which formed part of

the acquisition cost to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 @51 & 247 (&)

Immediately following completion of the acquisition, the Group leased the
property back to the seller for a term of 24 months from the date of
completion at a principal rent of £11.21 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$115.2 million) per annum (exclusive of VAT) payable
quarterly in advance. The Group believes that the acquisition will provide

long-term investment opportunity to the Group.

Save for the acquisition of the property abovementioned, the Group did

not have any other material acquisitions or disposals during the year.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had the following significant
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investment held in listed debt securities, which in aggregate represents ~EMEFZEARKE - (GAREBBEELNS2% :
approximately 5.2% of the Group's total assets:
Fair value _ 20_20
as at —RoRF
Investment 31 December Unrealised Interest
cost 2020  Realised gain gain received
R-2-%F
TZAZ+-H
RERMK WATE EEBRNE REBUE BRASKA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of debt securities LHESER T TR TR FHET TR
US$ denominated senior notes issued by mERERAA(RE])
Scenery Journey Limited (" Scenery FORZEZZFTA
Journey") with maturity in October 2022 HBERBARE
(“Notes 2022") ([02ERE]) 1,261,192 1,333,144 15970 71,952 89,125

Based on public information available, the note issuer, Scenery Journey, is
a limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Evergrande Group (Stock code: 3333).
The Notes 2022 carries fixed annual interest of 11.5% and is due in
October 2022, with interest payable semi-annually. Details of the
acquisition were set out in the announcement of the Company dated

8 April 2020 and 24 January 2020, respectively.

The purpose of the acquisition was to optimising the use of the Group's
surplus cash, as well as balancing the composition of the investment
portfolio and thereby, enhancing the portfolio’s overall investment returns.
The Group will monitor the performance of these notes regularly and may

adjust the size of its holdings of these notes as and when appropriate.
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Review of Operations

The COVID-19 pandemic has taken a sharp economic toll on the Hong
Kong retail market. In the face of a challenging operating environment, the
Group remains committed to strengthening its business resilience and

bolstering customer engagement.

SOGO CwB

Lingering pandemic alongside weakening labor market and prolonged
recession in Hong Kong weighed heavily on the consumer sentiment.
Protracted pandemic containment measures severely curtailed economic
activities in and tourist arrival to the city. Sales at the flagship SOGO
Causeway Bay ("SOGO CWB”") as a result plunged 36.2% for the full year.
The year-on-year sales decline narrowed to 17.5% in the second half of the
year compared to a drop of 49.3% in the first half of 2020, due to a
short-lived recovery in local consumption along with the abated local
pandemic situation before the fourth wave of local COVID-19 infections
emerged in the latter part of November as well as a relatively lower base of
comparison in the same period last year when local social incidents caused

disruptions to business operations.

During the year, the store’s operations and operating hours were adjusted
from time to time to prioritise the safety of staff, customers and business
partners. Stricter containment measures implemented by the government
amid resurgence in COVID-19 cases since late November badly dampened
customer patronage and adversely impacted our business during the peak
holiday shopping season in the fourth quarter. As a result, the overall
traffic footfall for 2020 saw a decrease of 38.7%, but the stay-and-buy ratio
on the contrary increased by 6.5 percentage points to 40.3%. Average
ticket size (excluding transactions from the Freshmart supermarket) of the

store managed to remain at around HK$1,490.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & @53 & 247 (&)

Faced with the formidable challenges brought by the pandemic, the
Group continued to upgrade its omni-channel capabilities with
accelerating enhancement of the mobile application of its SOGO Rewards
program and enrichment of its SOGO eStore services during the year, in

order to entice consumer spending and further fortify its customer base.

The store’s SOGO 35th Anniversary Sale program delighted the shoppers
and achieved satisfactory sales performance, thanks to shrewd marketing

promotions and convenient shopping experiences.

As the demand for airtime softened amid the deteriorating retailing
environment, advertising income during the year from CVISION, the
Group's outdoor advertising screen at the building facade of SOGO CWB,

also dropped by more than 50% as comparing to the previous year.

SOGO TST

With prime location and appealing merchandise assortment, SOGO Tsim
Sha Tsui ("SOGO TST") had established itself as a well sought-after
shopping destination especially for tourists. However, faced
with a halt in tourist visits and local consumption deterred by the
government-mandated social distancing measures in the wake of
COVID-19, sales at SOGO TST tumbled 57.7% from a year earlier, with
both traffic footfall and stay-and-buy ratio fell for the full year. Similar to
the CWB store, benefitting from the temporary relaxation of COVID-19
containment measures and a lower comparison base, the store saw its
sales decline narrowing from a drop of 71.1% in the first half of 2020 to

31.7% in the second half of the year.
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Wa San Mai

Located at the same building as our SOGO CWB, business of our Wa San
Mai restaurant was also affected by the COVID-19 during the year, with its
sales saw a decline of 22.6% year on year to approximately HK$46.1

million.

London Property
For 2020, the gross rental income generated by the commercial property
in London since its acquisition in late November amounted to £1.3

million, equivalents to approximately HK$13.4 million.

Kai Tak Project

With a site area of approximately 14,159 square metres, the Group's Kai
Tak Land is being developed into two blocks of commercial buildings to
provide space mainly for retailing use, with a total gross floor area of
approximately 101,000 square metres. The commercial blocks will house a
full-fledged SOGO department store and other facilities complementary
to the operations of a department store as well as to use for the operation
of a shopping mall and other entertaining and dining facilities. The Kai Tak
retail complex is expected to be in business in 2023 and we believe that it
will become a landmark in the new Kai Tak development and East Kowloon
area, further broadening and solidifying the Group's presence in the Hong

Kong retailing market.

Construction work of the Kai Tak Project has encountered certain delay
during the year due to both the pandemic as well as suspension of work for
carrying out the tunnel settlement investigation as requested by the MTR.
Despite this, at the end of 2020, the foundation works was largely
completed and the Group will continue to closely monitor and ensure that
the works are sped up with an aim to meet our planned schedule and

complete the project in 2023.
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Outlook and Plan

Looking ahead, the Group continues to hold a pessimistic outlook for
Hong Kong's retail market and the year 2021 is expected to remain
challenging for Hong Kong's economy. With the fluctuating local
pandemic situation and continued restrictions on cross-border travel, retail
businesses will continue to face pressure. It is hoped that the subsequent
roll-out of the vaccine will bring a measure of stability and a return to
normality by the end of the year. Nevertheless, the unpredictability of the
evolving pandemic will make it difficult for us to predict the timing and

scale of the local retail market recovery in the intermediate term.

Whilst the continued strengthening of the mainland economy and strong
mainland capital inflows into the city’s stock market would render support
to the Hong Kong economy, profound COVID-19 induced uncertainties
over the pace of global economic recovery and mounting geopolitical
tensions might stymie the rebound in global trade. The battered retail
industry is likely to remain under pressure amidst sluggish business

confidence and deteriorating employment market in the city.

Hong Kong's retail market is currently undergoing massive structural
changes in terms of market demand, consumer behaviour and business
models. In face of these changes, the Group will continue focusing upon
strengthening its business structure while maintaining a flexible strategy in
order to stay ahead and retain our competitive positioning within a rapidly
evolving retail landscape. With our experienced management team, the
Group will be well positioned to leverage upon market opportunities as

soon as the pandemic subsides.

As a leading retail operator in Hong Kong, the Group will further bolster its
long-term competitiveness for sustainable business growth with
forward-thinking and agile strategies, while also striving to overcome
difficult time together with our business partners and emerge stronger

from turbulence with mutually beneficial collaborations.

The Group will continue to pursue lucrative long-term business
opportunities and capitalise on new strategic investments that would

generate sustainable returns for its shareholders.

REHETE

FRERE - Ziﬁgiﬁ%i%%%ﬁi%ﬁ’ﬁﬁ%?@%?@
HAEBNEE  BH_T-—FHEBLEMN
MG FEm Pk BL - B & A M 15 B A &?%%EEE
HIESERE  TEEBSSERRE S - BHE
BHLHZEEATRTER—ERENEENE -
WHREERBEES BEQOUW  RBETE@HE
b - BN AITERANE e B P B A TR AR T
ISTE P HA G B B I IR AR -

BIAEESERS N ESABRAT BN
EMEKAESLERMEEE - BCOVID-198
FERER  HEHEEEENS KT RTHEE
M BHEBURRE EEER  SHBRERE S
[R3E - EEBEERMERLRRED BB NE
NT - RITENTEER RN ARRES -

RTEHER O HEETARAERAMS - T8
ZEMHEMEREER ZBBIERL - mHZ
8 AEEREEZININBRERBERE
FNRBEL KR REEBENTERETD
B[ERBERRFEHFEY - BERMALREE
EEEK —BRBBRE AEBARBHEIK
- EETEHE -

ERBERENTELERN  AKERBBAE
HEREREARE £ PRBERENGF
N NEEBAFERR  RARSIREFIRE
BRHELERR  ETEEENNEE  EHE
REHALRETR -

AEBEREESKANTENRAEE - LB
KB A R RAVETT AN @R -

7155 0 1 5K L 5 25 )

23




SOCIEL D 25 -

GOVERITAMTZE R

/—
/8
About this Report ‘

Reporting Scope

This report is the 5th Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (“Lifestyle International” or the
“Company”). The report focuses on the sustainability policies,
performance and initiatives with respect to the operations of our two
department stores in Causeway Bay and Tsim Sha Tsui, ("SOGO CWB”
and “SOGO TST") for the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020, unless otherwise stated.

The report is prepared in compliance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. In aligning our strategies with the international sustainability
principles, we have also prepared this report with reference to the ten
principles of the United Nations Global Compact (UNGC).

Our Vision

As the premier department store operator in Hong Kong, Lifestyle
International is committed to its’ conduct as a responsible, ethical and
sustainable corporate citizen. We strive to offer a one-stop shopping
experience that focuses upon providing our customers with a wide range
of quality goods and services within a comfortable and enjoyable

shopping environment.
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Our commitment towards our stakeholders provides us guidance in our
corporate responsibility policy, where we strive to ensure that the values of
our social and environmental responsibilities are integrated within our
daily operations and business code of conduct.

We believe that the pursuit of integrating our sustainability goals within
our business is an ever-evolving process and we hope to further improve
upon our performance in the years to come.

Corporate Responsibility Policy

1.  Ethical Standards and Responsibility
We strive to conduct our business with the highest level of integrity
and responsibility when engaging with our business partners.

2. Support and Respect our Staff
Employees are our greatest asset and we treat them with fairness
and respect, providing them with a supportive working environment
within which they can reach their greatest potential.

3.  Environmental Responsibility
We aim to cultivate an environmentally conscious culture within our
company and endeavor to minimise the carbon impact of our
business activities.

4.  Striving for Excellence
We continue to ceaselessly set high standards for ourselves and
encourage our partners to embrace these ideals.

We aim to holistically integrate our values and corporate responsibility
commitments into our business model and company culture that in turn
will support our growth in the long run.

Materiality Assessment

The materiality assessment is an exercise through which we identify issues
of importance to the Group from a sustainability perspective and to
prioritise those which are considered material. Through the engagement
of the Group's various stakeholders, ESG issues that are of most relevance
to our stakeholders are identified, helping us to determine our long-term
ESG goals and strategies in the coming years.

In 2018, we conducted a comprehensive materiality assessment with our
employees with the assistance of a sustainability consultant. We continue
to devise our ESG strategies and initiatives based upon the findings of this
assessment.
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Stakeholder Engagement

Engagement Channels

—  Shareholders’ meetings

—  Investors & Analysts meetings

—  Results Presentations

—  Financial Reports, Announcements & Circulars
—  Training & Workshops

—  Volunteer Activities

— Interviews & Meetings

—  Project Collaborations

—  Public Events & Social Gatherings
—  Sponsorships & Donations

—  Social media platforms

—  Surveys

—  Industry events
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Corporate Governance

&

,

ERRE

ESG
Board Committee
( E=g BN EEA 4
£Eg
Executive \ N S"P'
B e tors Committees

HITES

The Board is the highest governing body of the Company and holds the
ultimate responsibility of the overall strategic development and corporate
governance of the Company. To ensure high governance standards in ESG
matters, the Company has a robust ESG governance structure with clearly
defined responsibilities in place.

The formulation of our ESG strategy and the day-to-day management and
reporting on ESG matters resides with the ESG Committee, which is
headed by our Executive Director and comprises of members from all
major departments. The responsibilities of the ESG Committee includes
the formulation of ESG strategies, sustainability reporting, stakeholder
engagement, materiality assessment, regularly monitoring the
performance of outlined ESG initiatives and the promotion of ESG issues
both internally and externally.

A bi-annual report which covers the performance of ESG initiatives and
forthcoming plans is distributed to the Board to provide them with timely
updates regarding the progress of ESG activities and thus, enhancing the
oversight of the Board upon the ESG developments within the Group.

To ensure the effective implementation of ESG strategies and identify any
potential ESG-related risks and opportunities, the ESG Committee
conducts regular quarterly meetings to discuss a range of pre-defined ESG
initiatives and to follow up upon the works of business units which are
charged with carrying out measures and setting appropriate policies to
align with our overall ESG strategy.

The ESG Committee continues to keep abreast of the latest developments
on sustainability issues and remains committed towards promoting the
integration of sustainable and socially responsible best practices into our
daily operations and decision making processes across all levels of the
Group. With the collaborative efforts of all business units, we are
dedicated towards improving our ESG performance and fulfilling the
expectations of our stakeholders.
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United Nations Sustainable Development Goals

The Group strives to deliver long-term business growth that adheres to the
values of sustainable economic development. We have identified 10 out of
17 United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (“"UNSDGs") which are

relevant to our business.

People A

Sustainability commitments

TR R A

nvironment &8

Adopt green practices, initiatives and procedures to
minimise our carbon footprint

FRAIRRETS ~ e RET - LU HRMEHR 2 E
Promote green living and lifestyle through our
marketing activities

AARMNE T HEGEEEREERRN
Continuous efforts to raise environmental
consciousness amongst our employees & business
partners

RBBNINEEREBEHERRRER

Provide a healthy working environment, equal
opportunities and development programmes to our
employees
RESRMEENIERE TSRS RERAS
Support the well-being of our staff by providing
adequate wellness programmes and recreational

activities
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Relevant UNSDGs
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Clean water and sanitation B B2 BRIK RN A 2R e
Affordable and clean energy 4 A B IREE IR
Responslble consumption and AEENBRAE
production
Climate action RIRTE
Life below water KTEY)
Life on land ek 3th A= 4
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‘G0OD HEALTH JUALITY
AND WELLBEING [nummu

n[cm WORK AND
(cnunmc GROWTH

Good health and well-being R 2R E Rt
Quiality education BEHE
Decent work and economic BB TEMG
growth E R

Reduced inequalities W FE
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Environment

Environmental Policy

Lifestyle International’s Environmental Policy targets to reduce our
environmental carbon footprint and promote an environmentally
sustainable culture within our store operations. We will:

o Quantify the environmental impact of our operations and design
measures to reduce our greenhouse gas emissions.

o Consistently work to improve the efficiency of our energy
consumption.

o Ensure a healthy and comfortable indoor environment within our
business premises.

o Adopt green practices and technologies to better conserve our
natural resources.

o Ensure compliance with applicable environmental and related
legislations with our staff, business partners & other stakeholders.

. Minimise our waste generation and manage our waste in a
responsible manner.

o Cultivate an environmentally conscious mindset amongst all
employees through regular internal communications and trainings.
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Climate Change

The Group recognises the potential impact of climate change on our
business operations. By incorporating the climate-related risks into our risk
assessment management, the following risks and opportunities have been

identified:

1)

2)

Physical Risks —
HREER

Extreme weather conditions,

flooding, and heat stress. =

fRImREAN « KERARBRR o

Transition risks

BARER

More stringent laws and —
regulations with the transition

towards a low carbon economy.  —
B & (KA AR B S B T B 1 58 Bk AR
ERFOER ©

R

Damage to buildings and
facilities.

BEZEY KRR °

Injuries to staff or customers.
BIEERE -

Disruptions to business.

E Ll

Increase in insurance premiums.
EIRE -

Increase in maintenance costs.
EINMEERT o

Higher operating costs, such as
electricity charges resulting from
more air-conditioning required as
a result of higher temperatures.
EMEERE - fIERRTTS
MEREZERMELRSNE
o

Higher compliance costs.
BB N o

Increase capital expenses on
renovations.
KEMEARFZIEM -

Loss of reputation.

BEFIE -
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Operating procedures and
guidelines in place for extreme
weather conditions.
AR R SRR TE R AERR P I
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Adequate insurance policies in
place.

5 78 & MR BR Et o
Incorporation of climate
resilience considerations into
renovations and equipment
procurement.
FEEE R R BRED AR I(E
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Actively monitor and respond to
regulatory changes as well as

h ’//////////// ’

evolving market demands with
respect to our business
operations.
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=

Opportunities Benefits
BB s

1) Higher operating efficiency. =
EHOEERE -

procedures.
HELERER

— Reduction in operating expenses. —

W& BRI o

2) Increasing customer demand for  —
products and services that
promote a green and sustainable services.
lifestyle.
HEPRERATFELET AN
EEmm M ARG H) B P B SRAB A —

WA

improve customer loyalty and

Improvement in operating

Develop new revenue stream =
through innovative products and

IR B BT B i K RS B L AT Y

Enhance brand equity and

Current practices

B A& A

—  Replace and retrofit inefficient
equipment.

B R BUEE AR
Conduct regular service
maintenance programs.

EHWITIRB BEETE -

Regular customer engagement.
EHMEEE -

—  Actively monitor the market
trends and customer preference,
and adjust our business
strategies accordingly.
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Energy Efficiency and Water Conservation

As a leading department store operator, we continuously strive to reduce
our overall energy consumption and maximise the efficiency of all the
facilities within our buildings with respect to the consumption of electricity,
water and gas, which are the main sources of energy used within our
operations.

In order to monitor and improve our energy consumption, a
comprehensive record for different zones of the buildings is maintained for
the purpose of both data compilation and verification. Data is analysed on
a regular basis so that the equipment and facilities are being maintained at
optimal operating conditions.

The majority of electricity is consumed by the air conditioning systems,
vertical transportation (lifts and escalators), general lighting, refrigeration
systems, plumbing & drainage systems and I.T. facilities (servers, personal
computers and Point of Sales system). Measures are in place to ensure that
the facilities are maintained to function at their optimal operational
conditions. Such measures include considering models with the highest
efficiency standards when making new equipment procurement decisions,
timely replacement of inefficient parts, and regularly conducting
preventive maintenance programs by our contractors and/or in-house
maintenance team.

All our properties are lit by LED lighting devices. By systemically installing
specific types of the LED lightings in our staff canteen and certain storage
areas this year, we managed to reduce the number of lightings used. In
addition, to minimise the impact of light pollution to our neighboring
communities, all external lighting facilities of our stores such as LED
screens, light boxes and logo signage are operated in full compliance with
the requirements under “Charter on External Lighting” by the Environment
Bureau.
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The LED lighting systems of our head office are equipped with sensor
controls and are arranged into small zones, so as to reduce overall energy
consumption. Motion sensors have also been installed in disabled toilets
for more efficient use of the lighting.

In comparison to electricity, the consumption of water and gas is relatively
insignificant within our business operations. Water is mainly used for
sanitary facilities for both customers and staff within the department stores
and office premises. Sensor water taps and flushing facilities have been
installed to minimise the water consumption in washrooms. Gas is mainly
used in the staff canteen and our Japanese restaurant in SOGO CWB.

Energy and Water Consumption

The aggregate energy and water consumption at SOGO CWB and SOGO
TST, and auxiliary supporting facilities for 2019-2020 is presented as
below:

B EMERLEDRAA AR R BRERRE
WEID B EMANRE - ORI BB REIRERE

BEALTRMMESREBERERS - LB
i FARRAA -

BT AL - RPIOEHEENRAKERRTHE
BEETHEE - BKEZARBEEERBASMA
REEREIMEZENEERE ARERIEF
FRFEK - RIIE REE R KBESE A KEE -
MATEAREIRELAFEES KA NERE -

ﬁé;‘ UHFENR AKE

TE-NFEZTDF  RBESK -
ﬂﬂ*i’ﬁ&ﬁ@ﬂﬁ SHER R R B FE R KB EZT
(N

NS

Items 2020 2020 2019 2019
HE “EC-ER “EC-ER —E-hF “E-NF
Intensity by Intensity by
square meter square meter
BYRREE BYFREE
GHG Emission (Scope 2)  Total kg Co, 17,173,856 kg 27413 kg/m? 17,613,555 kg 287.55 kg/m?
RERBHNY (BE2) —SIREBART 171738563 BFARI4IIRFT 176135550 §FHRB75BRT
Purchased Electricity Total Kwh 22,134,821 kWh 353.32 kWh/m? 22,820,652 kWh 372.56 kWh/m?
BEE BT/ 23481 FENE SFARIINTENE 22820652 FRANE  GF75K37256T B/
Purchased Towngas Mega Joules 1,068,144 MJ 17.05 MJ/m? 1,764,240 MJ 28.80 MJ/m?
BERR KEE 1068 144K EE  BYTAKIT05KEE 1764 2008E  BYTK2880KEE
Portable water Meter cube 94,800 m? 51 M¥/m? 97,615 m? 1.59 m¥/m?
K UK 94800377k  BFHAKISILITK 9761577k BFIRIS9LTTK
Remarks: e
1. Total operating area used for computation of energy intensity is 62,648.13 m2. 1. SAEEREEMAREEMRAR6264813F K -
2. Emission Factor used for purchased electricity from Hong Kong Electric and CLPis 2. REABERTEEEENAAHNREES5/0.81

0.81 (2019: 0.80) and 0.50 (2019: 0.51) respectively. Emission Factor for Towngas
from Hong Kong and China Gas is 0.065 per MJ (2019: 0.065 per MJ).

3. GHG emissions is calculated basing on purchased electricity and Towngas only,
excluding those electricity consumptions by central air-conditioning systems which
are not under our operating control that consumption data cannot be readily
available and reliably measured.

I
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As a result of shortened business hours of our stores in response to the
evolving COVID-19 situation, purchased electricity decreased 3.0% when
compared to 2019. The purchase of Towngas decreased by 40% and was
mainly due to i) shortened operating period of our staff canteen as a result
of closure for around a month for renovation and virus containment
measures imposed by the government and ii) shortened operating hours
of the Wa San Mai Japanese restaurant, again as a result of the virus
containment measures. The overall GHG emissions were reduced by 2.5%.

Sustainable Construction

In 2020, we continued to implement sustainable and green construction
practices, including the issuance of the "Green Fit-Out Guideline”, sharing
of facade hoarding and use of air purifiers during renovations. Through
these practices, we have achieved savings, both in terms of time and costs,
for our renovation projects, minimised the nuisance to the public, kept
dust and odours generated through renovations to a minimum, as well as
reduced the overall generation of construction waste. There were around
93% of small scale counter renovations this year which adopted the
practices of reusing existing fixtures under the “Green Fit-Out Guideline”.

Waste Management and Recycling

Waste prevention and management plays an indispensable role within our
overall environmental policy. In addition to minimising unnecessary
environmental impact, we believe that waste prevention increases our
overall operational efficiency and generates long-term cost savings. We
recognise the importance of promoting waste consciousness amongst our
various stakeholders in order to effectively implement our waste
management policy that includes the promotion of recycling and practices
that support the reduction of material consumption.

Workplace Conduct
The concept of environmental sustainability continues to influence our
workplace conduct and plays an important part in our vendor selection.

In 2020, centralised rubbish bins were set up to replace desk-side bins at
our head office. This not only helps to reduce the consumption of plastic
rubbish bags and waste disposal costs, but also improves the overall office
environment and encourages employees to be more mindful with their
consumption behavior.

While digital mediums are being used to reduce paper consumption
where possible, the use of FSC® certified paper, which has previously been
limited towards office paper and promotional materials, was extended to

sales invoices at the stores this year.
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In addition to sustained efforts towards collecting paper, plastic and metal
for recycling, we have been participating in the Zero Grounds Coffee
Campaign (ZGCC) organised by Eco-Greenergy, an environmental social
enterprise which recycles coffee grounds into fertilisers, or upcycles them
into soaps and other green products.

In 2020, the Group was again awarded the “Green Office Awards Labelling
Scheme (GOALS)” and "Eco-Healthy Workplace” label by the World
Green Organisation ("WGQO") for our continuous efforts in promoting
sustainability and improving the workplace environment.

Environmentally Friendly Shopping

To advocate environmentally responsible shopping, we sell reusable
shopping bags and provide P-life biodegradable plastic shopping bags as
carrying options for our customers. Moreover, we regularly hold different
environmentally friendly promotional activities within our stores to
educate, arouse and encourage our customers to adopt a more
environmentally conscious and mindful lifestyle.

In 2020, we organised and supported the following initiatives to promote
eco-friendly living:

—  WWF Earth Hour.

—  WELL water refill station at the Kids Fashion & Toys department of
SOGO CWB to provide lead-free drinking water to customers as well
as staff while helping to reduce single-use plastic bottles.

—  Eco-friendly tote bags and silicone drinking straws for redemption
upon purchase promotions.

Food Recycling

Due to our operational needs, a certain amount of food waste is regularly
generated on a daily basis at our stores. To divert such waste from landfill,
we adopt proper waste segregation procedures and support the recycling
of waste into valuable resources.

In addition, the cooking processes at the eateries within our premises
produce waste cooking oil. As improper handling or storage of cooking oil
waste may lead to environmental contamination, we have followed
guidelines issued by the Environmental Protection Department to ensure
the proper storage and record of cooking oil waste. We engage a qualified
contractor to collect and transport it to designated facilities of the
Environmental Protection Department so that the cooking oil waste can be

disposed in a proper and professional manner.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B15 « 2 R &4 E (&)

We hold responsibility in minimising food waste. We reduce food waste by
educating staff on how to properly sort food waste. Daily food waste
collected under our food recycling programme is turned into compost or
animal feed. In 2020, around 24,137 kg of food waste was collected, saving
approximately 13,722 kg of CO2e emissions from the landfill, a decrease of
7.8% when compared to 2019. The decrease in food waste collected was
mainly due to shortened business hours of the stores due to the COVID-19
situation during the year.

We have also been donating food to”Food Angel”, a local food bank, to
provide help towards those in need and to raise the awareness towards
treasuring food as a precious resource. In 2020, Food Angel has collected
approximately 352 kg from our food sections as food rescue donations, a
decrease of 59% comparing to 2019. The decrease was a result of the
suspension of food collection services for around 8 months this year during
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Employees

Staff and workplace

As at 31 December 2020, Lifestyle International employed a total of 675
staff and they are all based in Hong Kong. The gender and age
distribution of our staff are as follows:
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Lifestyle International has consistently complied with the relevant laws,
rules and regulations on compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare throughout the year.

A performance management system is used to objectively review our staff
members’ performance level. Observations and evaluations of staff
members’ work behavior and accomplishments form the basis for decision
making within the reward system. These decisions include wage, salary,
and benefit determinations; promotion, demotion, transfer, or termination
actions; and coaching and counseling, training, or career development
options.

Fira R

21 to 30:
212 308%

31 to 40:
312405%
41 t050:
412 505%
51 to 60:
51£2605%
61 or above:

6153 A £

NEERE2F-—EREET AR LEE - 3
BLREN THESE -BY FEHE 22
1t RIBRAREMEE REMNOHERER &
HREHB -

ERERSETAREE R RMANE TRIK
o BRMFHETITETH KR AREHE
FHRREERM - WERKBREETTE - #
EREH BT R ARKEETE KW
BMER - BB REREE -

HREREEERAE —T-TEER 35
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Lifestyle International has put in place appropriate policies and procedures
to prevent the occurrence of forced labour or child labour, and also to
ensure that such cases do not arise through indirect involvement with our
suppliers or business partners, including consignment counters,
contractors, labour brokers or recruitment agencies. Throughout the
reporting year, we have no reporting of non-compliance cases in the
aforesaid areas.

Anti-corruption

Lifestyle International regards fair play, honesty and integrity as our
important commercial assets in business. Our anti-corruption policy sets
out the basic standard of expected conduct of all staff members. Periodic
seminars are arranged for our staff to reinforce their knowledge of
recognising and dealing with bribery and corruption. We have complied
with relevant standards, rules and regulations on bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering throughout the year. No whistleblowing case has
been reported during the reporting year.

Staff Training and Development

Lifestyle International considers human resources as the foundational asset
within our organisation. Our mission in talent development is closely
intertwined with the goals and objectives of the Group.

Due to the COVID-19 outbreak since the beginning of the year, all large-
scale staff training programs have been postponed amidst the
implementation of social distancing measures. In October, when the
epidemic was considered to be relatively under control, we launched a
training program, “"Understanding Customer Needs through Customer
Experience Mapping” for 80 front-line sales supervisors and trainees. It is a
six months program which comprises of a 3-hour training workshop, group
projects and presentations.

With emphasis upon personal development and growth, staff members are
encouraged to proactively pursue their own development. Through the
performance management system, staff members regularly meet their
immediate supervisors and managers to discuss their work performance
and identify personal objectives and potential training opportunities.

Based on the performance review and regular discussions, staff members
are able to obtain feedback on their work and share their aspirations and
expectations with their superiors. Training plans are developed and
appropriate resources are allocated to help achieve both the staff
member’s personal as well as corporate development goals.

MEERREEERREEFPEHREH ST
HET  URERREFEATSEHRMNVHERL
EBBH(BRTEERE AEH BBELA
SHREHE) HR2EMELE - REBEEARSFE
o RPN E A SERTA NS RERARE

RES

MEERRAFHRS  HENREREBTNE
BEREXBEE - WPWRESBEFIIMBRTE
MR THERRE - LA/ B T L ERHF
G DAIBHE BRI MR IR AR IS R BT O AN © FAM
EE-HETHERBR BFR  HERAREDN
HEERE ERERY - RMEFE - HERE
RO E ST

BETHIRER
MERERRANDERBABORE - HAEAS
BE T HEMEPEAEENCXARESHEME -

AR COVID-198 F IR IR E - EE Mt R RE
EHEER - P KRB B TSI B ATk -
ERBERRAREZENTA - BMAS0RAILR
HEFTERFTIABETIRBREFERE T H
BEERIMEFIETE - T AR E A
TE EReEaRE NSNS TIEY -
NBERENE RIER o

BAZEEEAZRENT - AHEMASBHETHE
BERETIAGNER - FREREEFE B
TeEHEEE LRAMKRETHEm  JwHETE
®E - EIEABRMEENFIIHE -

BBXRBRH MEMEW  BETRESEIER
B WHEE FRNDFHBERRE - HAEHIE
FHlFF BN D ECEERNEIR - BB TEREA
REENERBRE -

Y4

Lifestyle_International/Holdings|Limited Annual/Report;2020 36

e _— T



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B15 « 2 R &R E (&)

Health and Safety
Lifestyle International considers the health and safety of its’ staff,
customers, visitors and members of the public at large to be of the
greatest importance.

To provide a risk and hazard-free environment for all, we are committed to:

. Conduct regular inspections of all parts of the Group's premises.

. Conduct fire drills for staff members to practice evacuation
procedures of department stores in the event of a fire or other
emergencies.

. Obtain professional advice on best health and safety practices where
necessary.

o Provide staff members with advisory services on health and safety
matters.

o Provide updates and training to enhance staff members’ awareness

on health and safety issues.
o Promote health & safety at work and gather staff members’ feedback
through the Health & Safety Committee.

Every staff member participates and shares the responsibility in helping
formulate and monitor the procedures and arrangements for workplace
health and safety. Through the Health & Safety Committee, which
comprises of representatives from different functions within the Group,
staff members share duties in:

o Identifying, reporting and rectifying workplace hazards in relation to
health and safety and report such hazards promptly.

o Assisting the investigation of any accident, injury or near accident to
minimise re-occurrence.

J Adopting safe working methods and procedures.

o Providing advice and suggestions for the improvement and

maintenance of health and safety standards.

Mental health is an integral part of one’s personal health. To take care of
the mental well-being of our staff members, consultative services provided
by a professional organisation under the Employee Assistance Program
has been made available since June 2018. Confidential consultative
services are provided by qualified counsellors to staff members through a
24-hour hotline or face-to-face appointments, covering both work and
non-work related issues.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &% « & & &% RE (&)

COVID-19 Response
The outbreak of COVID-19 poses an unprecedented threat towards the
public health of the community and a disruption towards our business

activities. To safeguard the health and safety of our customers and staff

members, the following measures have been implemented this year:

Measures at stores

An emergency response team, which comprises of store managers
and managers from the Human Resources and Administration
departments, has been set up to devise the strategies and
procedures for virus preventive measures.

Issue guidelines to front-line staff for implementing precautionary
measures.

Set up mask disposal points on shop floors and at office areas.
Adjust store business hours in consideration of the changing virus
situation.

Require customers to wear face masks within the premises.

Provide hand sanitiser dispensers for customers in main traffic spots.
Install body temperature detection devices at the main entrances of
the stores.

Disinfect all public areas and facilities more frequently.

Set up protective shield at the concierge service counters.

Customers

Promote our eStore platform as an alternative sales channel for
customers.

Offer different collections of protective face masks and related
hygiene products for sale to customers.

Offer take-away meals by cafes/food stalls at Freshmart supermarket
and our Japanese restaurant, Wa-San-Mai.

Employees

Conduct daily body temperature check for all front-line staff.
Provide personal protective equipment to staff, such as surgical face
masks, disposable rubber hand gloves and face shields.

Schedule flexible working arrangements for staff.

Promote the use of digital tools such as video conferencing to
minimise in-person meetings.

Adopt precautionary measures for staff who live in the same building
of infected cases.

Maintain records of rosters for our own staff as well as staff from
concessionaire counters to monitor staff movements.

Arrange social distancing seating plans at the staff canteen.

Offer special take-away meals to staff by our Japanese restaurant,
Wa-San-Mai.

Subsidise staff for taking COVID-19 testing.

Others

Produce our own videos on the CVISION LED screen at CWB store to
help promote social-distancing and hygiene related practices.

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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The “Certificate of Outlet Anti-Epidemic Measures Recognition” was HEZTEEE S MEMN /5 R EREE
awarded by the HKRMA in recognition of the adequate epidemic  &] * ARG HME T MR 4RI T RO &HE

prevention measures in place at our stores. it
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Social and Community Support HERUHEXE

Lifestyle International is committed in actively connecting and interacting ~ FIfEBIR BN £ B AR 3FE R 5 N B @B 8
with the community in a sustainable manner and fostering harmony ~ KE &) - WiRi#E A FIERE 2 FHOFGE - AEEH
between the people and the environment. The Group focuses on HFREFMEREFAR NHEEEEHMH :
contributing our time and resources towards the following four main

aspects:

. Community support. J B IE o

. Environmental protection and sustainability. J IRIBREM AT ISEME -
. Education and youth development. J HERBEFER -

. Arts and Culture Promotion. . AL BT HERE




Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) £

This year, we have donated surgical face masks and bottles of hand
sanitising gel to support those in need. Our partnering charitable
organisations included:

. Hong Kong PHAB Association.
° Hong Kong Alzheimer’s Disease Association.
° Hong Kong Single Parents Association.

In 2020, we participated in the "Orbis Phantom Moonwalkers 2020, a key
event of Orbis Hong Kong, as one of the Route Sponsors. In addition to
cash donation, 54 staff members joined the walk and achieved the "Most
Participants Award”. In the event, our staff members completed 2,207 km
in total.

A number of community activities and charity events were also organised
in 2020, which included:

o Water bottle charitable redemption under which SOGO customers
can redeem SIGG aluminum water bottles at a special charity price,
and all proceeds went to the Ronald McDonald House Charities of
Hong Kong.

o Live in Pink charity sale and redemption at stores or on SOGO
Rewards mobile app to help raise funds for the Hong Kong Breast
Cancer Foundation.

o "SOGO X chappie — Together We Are One” X'mas program
featuring a charity sale and a special outpost to encourage
customers to send message cards to kids with critical illnesses. All
proceeds went to the Make-A-Wish Hong Kong Foundation.

o Collaborated with sports brand “Moral” to hold a charity sales

program to support “Operation Smile”, an NGO which provides

support to children who are born with cleft lip.

3
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Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

We are committed to managing our supply chain in a socially and
environmentally responsible manner. We continue to enhance our working
procedures and strengthen collaboration with our business partners and
suppliers to mitigate and manage potential risks in our supply chain. In
addition, we have an established green procurement policy for general
office supplies.

We are currently finalising our Supplier Code of Conduct and aim to
conduct the relevant survey with our business partners in the coming year to
integrate and align our corporate social responsibility principles with them.

Product Safety

Product safety is of utmost importance to our business and our Product
Safety Policy reinforces our commitment towards the sales of safe
merchandise, particularly under the Kids Fashion & Toys product category
which includes all baby and children products. Our product safety
practices are being executed vigorously to ensure that our merchandise
selection is in strict compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

We require all our suppliers to focus on the quality of their products, with
primary concern placed upon the health and safety of the end users of
their products. We maintain a manual which documents all the latest
requirements under relevant ordinances and regulations, including the
Toys and Children’s Products Safety Ordinance; Toys and Children’s
Product Safety Regulation; Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance &
Regulations; The Trade Mark Ordinance; The Copyright Ordinance; The
Trade Descriptions Ordinance; and the Prevention of Copyright Piracy
Ordinance. All our suppliers are required to be in strict compliance of the
relevant regulations.

Lifestyle International will:

J Fully comply with the Toys and Children’s Products Safety Ordinance
and the Consumer Goods Safety Regulation, as these are the basic
standards and are fundamental to us.

o Conduct regular examinations on our suppliers and business
partners to ensure that the products they supply are in strict
compliance with the listed safety standards.

J Act in accordance with the Trade Mark Ordinance and perform
continuous inspections as set out in the standards.

o Keep abreast of the latest changes of standards, evaluate their
impacts and develop up-to-date policies to maintain continuous

safety control on our merchandise.

o Enhance the standards on product safety by adopting the best
practices.

o Provide regular training to staff to update their awareness on product
safety concerns at all times.
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Food Safety

We attach great importance to food products offered to our customers at
our stores and we make every effort, from sourcing ingredients, product
selection to food quality control, to provide assurance on the quality and
safety of our food products.

Multiple control measures are in place to ensure that the sources of our
products are meeting the highest quality and safety standards. All
suppliers must go through stringent selection processes, under which their
track records as well as their commitment in offering socially and
environmentally sustainable products are taken into consideration.

Our policies and procedures require regular site visits being made to the
suppliers’ production facilities and that selected products must comply
with all regulatory requirements and are accompanied by qualified
certificates.

In order to further strengthen the safety and quality of our food products
offered to our customers, we launched a food testing program in the 2nd
half of 2020, which covers all kinds of food offered at our Freshmart
supermarket, including fresh meat, ready-to-eat food, seafood, sushi, ice-
cream, dessert and cakes, etc., as well as food offered at the cafes and
food stalls. The testing is conducted by the SGS Group, which is the
world’s leading inspection, verification, testing and certification company.

Customer Services

Our mission is to satisfy the needs of our customers and to provide them
with a world-class shopping experience. We respect, listen and take into
serious consideration all the views, concerns and feedback from our
customers. We actively work to improve our dialogue (via comment notes,
emails, social media and phone calls) with our customers to better
understand their needs and expectations.

Maintaining and providing high-quality customer services is a core part of
our business philosophy. Considerate customer care services such as
power bank rental machines are available at both our SOGO CWB and
SOGO TST. Our customer services are extended to the after-sales journey
which we believe is even more important, in our endeavour to cultivate a
lifetime relationship with each of our customers.

Customer services play an important and direct role in our shoppers’ in-
store experience as well as our overall store service proposition. Our
customer services team acts as an effective communication channel
between our stores and the customers we serve, which in turn contributes
towards the building of long-term customer loyalty. We strive to provide a
swift, sincere and helpful response to any queries or issues raised by our
customers, in order to fully meet and exceed their expectations.
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Advertising and Marketing BEEREH
In 2020, the following major store marketing and customer engagement =T ZTFEBITUTEENEHEHERETPH
activities were held: E N
—  Continuous enhancement of SOGO Rewards loyalty program —  FHERFASOGO Rewards B &l
>  Use of eGift Certificates for reward points redemption and >  f£SOGO Rewardsit 8) fE A 2 =\ (&
purchase payment on SOGO Rewards Mobile App to provide AEFHRSEFHAREBERE S LE
greater convenience to our customers as well as reducing the TN - REETRESZHE -
usage of physical gift certificates. WREDEREMHR B S -
>  Launch of POINTASTIC Rewards to enable customers to >  HEHPOINTASTICHEE @ BARTER]
redeem reward points for not only eGift Certificates, but also NEBMERREIAEEE R
a range of products and services of their choice on our app. HEFREES  EAEEBHRE—

R K R T o

AJISAIBEERTE KIKUETE YURI

TSUBAKIFAE

il ot ] EEwiE SEWH B-EaH
> Launch of membership tiers and YURI beauty card to offer >  HEFERARYUREFR A
more personalised privileges and benefits to our customers. MOEEREEZ A FER
B=E-

—  "SOGO X chappie — Sports for All. Let's Move!” summer program  —  [SOGO X chappie —Sports for All. Let's
to promote active lifestyle and positive energy with a range of fun Move! | B AEt &R — R H BAEE) -
elements including creating their own chappie characters by BIEHBEE B A chappie B - REEMK
customers, limited edition merchandise and product redemption EmREsE UEFTEBEHRIBBEERSR
programme, animations and visual merchandising display that TENBDELRERETR  REEBGNE
featured summer sports and outing products. ERARIEREE -

EERRERRAR —Z-ZFFER 43




Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &% « & & &% RE (&)

To support the promotion of arts and culture, we worked with local artists
during the year and organised the following events:

—  Collaboration with local illustrator, Don Mak
to create a special illustration featuring
SOGO CWB and its surroundings. The
artwork was used as the key visual
designs for our bi-annual member
promotion events and limited-edition
souvenirs for our customers.

—  Collaboration with local knot artist,
Zoe Siu to launch “Knotting = P
Playground by ZOEE", a project

R HEEBM R - RPIHF R A By
FalE BRATER

— BEXMBEBREERAE  AUEAREE

SRLHEFABRBEREIENTHEE - B
MERECAERMFF-ENGEHE
EARHLBENRELTRNE

eI
] — EAEEE RS A

# i [Knotting Playground
by ZOEE] ' B RERE

that showcased spring/summer N i ..i‘%dili:i'al — BEFEENEBREEEER
looks with colorful and playful knot \ H;%r’?'= SRR B EE o
installations and headpieces at Wi —
SOGO. N —

Consumer Data Management HEEHEBER

With the aim of enhancing our customers’ shopping experience and
increasing their engagement with our SOGO stores via events and
promotions, Lifestyle International has leveraged upon consumers’
personal information, to the extent allowed by the relevant privacy laws, for
our various direct marketing (including cross-marketing) purposes. We
respect the privacy and inviolability of the rights of our customers and we
do not reveal or use customer information for any other purpose.
Customers have the right to request us to update their personal
information or delete their data from our records.

Lifestyle International seriously takes into account personal data protection
and strives to ensure that adequate resources are deployed to protect
customers’ personal data against any unauthorised use, access,
modification or disclosure. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure
strict adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations, including but not
limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

We place utmost importance in protecting the privacy of our customers
throughout the cycle of collection, processing and usage of their personal
data. We strive to ensure that customers’ personal data is always securely
processed and stored and only for the purposes for which it has been
collected. During the reporting year, no complaint was received
concerning possible breaches of customer privacy laws and the loss of
customer data.

RETEENEDER  YWEEEBHN(RHEE
EINE SRR EN TR - MR E B E R L
BEGI AT TG EEEBABERHETREH
(BREBAZH) Ak - RS EETOEEM
PREBLOERN - TEHREFEMLEORESL
EREEEN BEAERERRMEREBEAE
Kkl 2 R FIRO AR 85 rh MR o

MEEREBREEFEAERORE - LR OHEER
BN HERREBRENEAEHNRZEMRE
RENIER - FER O EREEE - HPREAR
B NHREBRETERER ERRRN
BREETRIEANEFR (FLEE) 5O -

BAERSE - B2 REREZEAEROEER
RAHRERSFOLRETRSENER - &
HORREENEAERHERBEREEN A S
RERERRFRT  NBEFE - SHERERRT
feiE REEMRED Mo KRB R BRI IRER -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

A1.

Emissions

E2 35 €7

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

FABERKRERBHN - MAKRTHEBEES - BERESE
BYRNELESH : @K RO)ETHETABEATZENH
BEERARPINEHR -

KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

RSB RIS AL PR S R AR R P R BUR -

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity.

BRETIEFAMEERRBREFHNEREE -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.
BREBERAMIFEEREREENEERTE -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

HREBIEFAATELBRZERZNRERTE

KPI'A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and

results achieved.

PRERIRZALSH AR E R E W R ATISRR o

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
BREZIEFALLEEEERESEREMNGE  REE
E BRI RPISRR o

3

BERZAAERARMNERE  HE8REARSHES

Reference , { 3

Environment — Environmental Policy, Energy
Efficiency and Water Conservation, Energy and
Water Consumption, Sustainable Construction,

Waste Management and Recycling

R —RIBHR - R KA AKX - 82R
HFERAKE  AIRERE  BENEEREK

Environment — Energy and Water Consumption

R — RN AKE

Environment — Energy and Water Consumption
R — BERHFE R AKE

Considered to be not material

BRBTEKX

Considered to be not material

BRBTER

Environment — Energy Efficiency and Water
Conservation, Energy and Water Consumption,
Sustainable Construction, Waste Management and
Recycling

BIE — BERBE R E K AK « REIRUERE R K
E THERE EYERKENR

Environment — Waste Management and Recycling

R — BEYEERE KB
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A2,

A3.

Use of Resources ‘

BEREA

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water

and other raw materials.

BRERER (BIFEIR - K REAMRMED BB

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type and
intensity.
BREZIEFRAVRANE SN EE R AEEERERE R

B -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity.
BREBEVIERA22BFERERTE

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and

results achieved.

R AE BUE R A2 3R 8L R 8 A e At BI R AT S AR -

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

BB AR U AR A2 A% T SKERE A AR AT (Rl - A e 42
AKX s & RATSAR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products.
R EMUERA2S R m T A B R e EE

The Environment and Natural Resources

BRERRARER

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the

environment and natural resources.

BT AHRRRRAERERNERZENBOR -

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to

manage them.
BREMIERAS A E SR HRELRABRNERTZE
RERREREBETENTTE -

- V7

Environment — Environmental Policy

R —REBR

Environment — Energy and Water Consumption

RE —REREAKE
Environment — Energy and Water Consumption
R — RN AKE

Environment — Energy Efficiency and Water

Conservation
IRIE — BUR M ES R ETA K

Environment — Energy and Water Consumption

R — BEREFRE R AKE

Considered to be not material

WRE/TEKX

Environment — Environmental Policy

B — RARE
Environment — Energy Efficiency and Water

Conservation, Waste Management and Recycling

R — BERM M B 40 FOK - BRI E IR I B UL

ik

g ¥
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Employment and Labour Practices EfE & % T E#

B1.

B2.

W
o

w
B

Employment

&%

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
HEAZ R RE  BERES  TIERE - RE - TE5#e
Zitlt - RIBIBARE M S RENE - @BR « Rb)EsFH
BITABEAZENHEBERZRROINER

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region.

RRAAIEIRBI IR - BERD - FidR MR E 8
EEAH -

Health and Safety
BEEZR

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

BRRHEZ 2 TERRRREEE B EBENLEEN : @QBUIK
K (o) BFHETABEATZENRBEEZRROINEHR -

Development and Training

R RIE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
ARRTHEE BT TIEBE A H KRR MEER - fut g dIlE
B o

Labour Standards
L TR

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRAMIEZET RORHISTH - @B : RO)BEFHETABE
FENEBEERROINER -

Reference

2%

Employees — Staff and Workplace

B8 — BITAIIESMH

Employees — Staff and Workplace

B8 — BINMIIESFT

Employees — Health and Safety, COVID-19

Response

B8 —@REZT 2  COVID-19R fE S HE 1

Employees — Staff Training and Development

]

BE — BTHIEER

\

Employees — Staff and Workplace

B8 — B TMIIESFT

BR 43 B
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Operating Practices & E 18/l

%o

B5. Supply Chain Management
HEEEE
= Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply Operating Practices — Supply Chain Management
chain.
ERHEHENIRE R R RS - LEED — HEEER
B6. Product Responsibility
EmEME
= Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant Operating Practices — Product Safety, Food Safety
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress.
BRMRHERNRBNERRELZS B  BREEMERE LEE —EnT: AmkE
IARBEROTER : @BE  RO)EFHETARBERZENE
BEERMROINER -
= KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Operating Practices — Consumer Data
policies, how they are implemented and monitored. Management
BRBE U IRBO.S il H B & B RMRIE RALB R - LARIEH BEED — HBEBBRERE
HITRERT % o —
B7. Anti-corruption ——
L4
—  Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant Employees — Anti-corruption —
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer —
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. e
BB HR  RERAREN | @RE  ROETYHHT EE— KBS
AEERTE OB RAIER -
Community ¥ E
B8. Community Investment
HERE
= Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of Social and Community Support
the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
BRAALE2ER T REEMELETEMRREEBEZDS e Rt
Rt RS AER
—  KPIB8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Social and Community Support
BREWIEZB8 1 BT B BAERE g RitEE
= KPI B8.2 Resources contributed. Social and Community Support
R EMUERBS 2B AR tERitE &
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERBE

Corporate Governance Principles

The board of directors ("Board”) and management of the Company are
committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices
appropriate to the businesses of the Group. The Company has adopted
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) as its guidelines and focus on a quality Board, sound internal
controls, and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Corporate Governance Code Compliance
The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Board

(1) Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of nine
directors, including two executive directors, three non-executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors. More than
one-third of the Board is represented by independent non-
executive directors with one of whom being a certified public
accountant. The Board believes that the number of executive and
non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient checks and balances that would safeguard the interests of
the shareholders and the Company. The directors possess
professional qualification and knowledge and industry experience
and expertise, which enable them to make valuable and diversified
advice and guidance to the Group’s business activities and
development.

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
"Corporate Information” in this annual report. During the year and
up to the date of this report, there was no change in the
composition of the Board. The directors’ biographical details and
the relationships among them are set out in the "Profile of
Directors” in this annual report.

The independence of the independent non-executive directors is
assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under the
Listing Rules. The Company has received written annual
confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-
executive directors and the Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive directors meet the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent.

EERRA

ARmEEE ((EFg ) REEBRNHAEE
EBHEFRENRIEEERTR - ARFEEK
MEBMERIRARAR ([P ESH LT
BMAT ERRAD KSR+ mz(REERTAD
(TRESTR) 2 FRIGX BESl  YEEFEXR
ZEEE RBREZAMEE  LRMERNHER
HEREREE -

B EEATA
ARABE-B-BFT-A=t—BILFER
B0 F A2 PRI -

Exg

(1 EBS4AM
BEARSAHY EFxemdaiiuE=
MK BREMURITES  ZFNTE
ERMBYIFNTES - BB=DZ—
EEgRERBUIFNTESHME  Hh
—ARBEEGHE - EEEHE WTE
FHFNTEEZHARAERRIARMH
ERKEFEER  URERREARQF
ZHE - REFHEAFTERERMABEIT
ERBNEPIHE - I RARE XK LB
RERTREEFMIEHRTFAE R EE
3l e

EEglNFABIERAFRICEER]
N-REAEEAREAY  EFSEK
WEEE REEZAABEFBERES
BHBE IR AFRIESHNIA

BIUERITEENBILMETIRE EHRA
HERG RREMEL T - RATEE
ERBIUIFNTESEMELEARELB YL
WZIRFHERE  ARARBABBIULIE
HITESRENA LWMRAIE33MG 2B
14535 > WARBIZAL -
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(2)

(3)

(4)

Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with
the requirements set out in the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Company recognizes the benefits of having a diverse Board,
and sees diversity at the Board level is essential in achieving a
sustainable and balanced development. In designing the Board's
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
industry experience and expertise. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy and considered against a variety of criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Chairman and Executive Directors

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for setting overall
strategic plan and development of the Group whereas the executive
directors are responsible, in addition to assisting in setting the
Group's strategic plan, for implementing the Board’s decisions,
monitoring and supervising the Group’s overall performance,
ensuring adequate capital and managerial resources are available to
implement the business strategies being adopted from time to time,
setting out and monitoring targets, plans and direction for
management, reporting to the Board on the Group's performance
and proposing business plans and strategies for further evaluation
and assessment by the Board.

There is a clear segregation of duties and responsibilities between
the Chairman and the executive directors.

Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. The Board steers and oversees the management of the
Company including, establishing the strategic direction and setting
long-term objectives for the Company, monitoring the performance
of management, protecting and maximising the interests of the
Company and its shareholders, and reviewing, considering and
approving and the subsequent reviewing and monitoring of the
annual budget against actual performances and results. The Board
has delegated management, under the leadership of the executive
directors, with authorities and responsibilities for the day-to-day
operations and administration of the Group.

Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company. The directors are aware of their collective and
individual responsibilities to the Company and the shareholders in
respect of the manner in which the affairs of the Company are being
controlled and managed.

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

(2)

(3)

(4)
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(5)

Directors are requested to make declaration of their direct or
indirect interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board. If a director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent board committee will be set up to deal
with the matter.

All directors have full access to and are provided with adequate,
reliable and timely information about the operations and latest
development of the Group to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities and make timely decision. Updates have also been
provided to all members of the Board on a regular basis to enable
them to discharge their duties. Operational and financial
information and analysis of the Group can be accessed directly
through briefing and reporting by the executive directors and
management during Board meetings. Through the company
secretary, independent professional advice, on the account of the
Company, could be sought should such advice be considered
necessary by any director for carrying out his/her duties properly.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

After recommendation from the nomination committee,
appointment of new director(s), if any, is vested with the Board.
Under the Company’s articles of association, the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any such new director shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a
casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) after his/ her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at the same
general meeting.

All non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) are appointed for a specific term of one year or three
years and all directors (including non-executive directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are
subject to re-election in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.

(5)
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(6)

(7)

Meetings 6) B=
The Board held four meetings during the year to review and EEERNFAYSERAMAGEH  UWENK
approve, among other matters, the Group's interim and final results HE (AR aiE) REENPHRRRAZES
announcements and financial statements, notifiable transactions, NERFBHBRE - BEFRAMBORES  &E
and to review quarterly operating performance of the Group. FAREENFERLERSA -
Board members attended the Company’s Board meetings either in RIEANRAMERBUNERE  EF
person or through video/telephone conferencing means in EREAFRABURIE BEEHIAL
accordance with the provisions of the Company'’s articles of HARBEZGER SEFNFRALE
association. The attendance record of each director at the Board EFe 2R MREBFARG 2T
meetings and annual general meeting held during the year is set out Ik
below:
Number of meetings attended/held
HEBITEBRRE
Board Annual General
Meetings Meeting
Directors S Exgem BREBFRE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lau Kam Sen BSREE 4/4 11
Ms. Lau Kam Shim 258/ A 4/4 11
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas 2Bt 4/4 11
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William HEIELEE 3/4 11
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy BEBrt 4/4 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BAKHTES
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon IR ST A 4/4 vl
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham VARt &3] 4/4 11
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung FFERAR ST 4/4 1/1
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung BEEogTE 4/4 1/1
Practices and Conduct of Board and Board Committee (7) ESZSRHETZESERZERK

Meetings

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the proper
convening and conducting of the Board and Board committee
meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda and Board and Board
committee papers being provided to the directors and relevant
Board committee members in a timely manner before the meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board and Board committee meetings. Board and Board committee
minutes are available for inspection by the directors and Board
committee members.

A

REWERERRA R ARRETE
SEeREBTZEEEH  URNETE
FAERANESREETABRZEEN
BREAMBEN  ERZEREFER
HETZBEERNIF-

REAMEAERENEERTERHAE TR
Bggdii - EFeNEETZESY
B AIHEEREETREENEEH -
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(8)

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Induction package covering the Group's businesses and the
statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company will be provided to each newly appointed director, if any.
The Company continuously updates the directors on the Group's
businesses and the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements.

During the year, the directors participated the following training:

(8)

BEMEEZER (B EHEREARE
AEBEBR LW AREFEERZNEE
RELEENREER - ARRFELM
EERHAUELAEBREBORN - EHRA
REMBRAEERENRMNER -

FR-EEFDLEUATE

Types of Training

Directors ) EHIER
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lau Kam Sen B5ERE A, C
Ms. Lau Kam Shim B =N E| A, C
Non-executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BBB St A, C
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William MHEEELE A, C
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy B EEEL+ A, C
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon IR &= A B, C
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham Va¥t &4 A, B, C
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung FrER AR A A, B, C
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung TR E A, B, C
A — reading materials provided by the Company relating to A — BIEBALTHEHERAATIE

the Company’s businesses and regular updates on the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements relevant to director’s duties and
responsibilities

B — attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums
relevant to director’s duties and responsibilities

C — reading newspapers and journals relating to corporate
governance matters, environment and social issues or
director’s duties and responsibilities

BARBRESBBLRAEEIN L
AR R e L At A BE B AR TE Y TE

HE AR

B — HEBHMEFRHELEENER
g /RAE/EE WE

C — MHEAMEXEARFHE BER
HEREXEFBBE LA THNR
R AT
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code"). After
specific enquiries by the Company, all directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
Company’s own code during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020. The directors have ensured that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared so as to give a true and fair view of
the Group's state of affairs, the results and cash flow for the year, and on a
going concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting and financial reporting standards.

The directors also ensure timely publication of the Group’s financial
statements and aim to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance and position through all its
publications and communications to the public. They are also aware of the
requirements under the applicable rules and regulations about timely
disclosure of inside information.

The report from the auditor of the Company regarding their
responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report. The Board has taken steps to ensure the
continued objectivity and independence of the external auditor. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the remunerations paid/ payable to the
external auditor of the Company were approximately HK$1.7 million and
approximately HK$2.9 million in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group respectively. Details of non-audit services and the
fees incurred are as follows:

Review of interim financial information

for the six months ended 30 June 2020 HK$0.6 million
Tax advisory and due diligence services HK$1.7 million
Other services HK$0.6 million

ERETZRESRS
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Board Committees

As at the date of this report, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and nomination committee are in operation and they have
been established with specific terms of references to assist the Board in
discharging its responsibilities.

(1) Audit Committee
The audit committee comprises four members, namely, Mr. Lam Siu
Lun, Simon, The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, Mr. Hui Chiu Chung
and Mr. Ip Yuk Keung, all are independent non-executive directors.
The audit committee is chaired by Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon, who is a
certified public accountant. The audit committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the audit committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company'’s website.

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows:

(i) to review the services and appointment of the Company's
external auditor, the nature and scope of auditing, and the
related audit fees;

(i) to review the Company's financial statements and reports, the
changes in accounting policies and practices, and the
compliance with applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and legal requirements;

(i) to oversee the Group's financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

(iv)  to review and monitor the corporate governance functions as
set out in the CG Code.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

ESERETWERS
BEAREAM BHEAY FHEEGRIE
ZZBGIEEE - BRSNS EOBEBERR
S LB ERRETEARE -

(1) EHZEEE
ERZESRMUAKEAN - AIMIKE L
£ ARREE  FFRBMAEEREHRL
£ 2BRENRBUENTES - FEX
ZEEAMEBRELETRE  RAME
GETEN - BERREGRREHANERAE
TTHBE -

/

BAETANTARATE 2 BEZER
BEXSEFINZEE s RIRBED
RA LR Bk o
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B

BuE
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S

ZEIBBEWT
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() EREARFINEREEDZ RS R E
REARZBUILE S E S N AE
BER:

(i) BHARFZHMBHRERRE &
FTECREER 2 EE) - REDREST
AR EmAR B ROADIAR
F s

(i) ERAEEZHMBEHERHE Rk

ERRAMEEFERTIRE &

(iv) R EEZECETUNEIZLEE
JAEVBLRE

FR BERZBEEERTMAEHE &%

BeXRBHEERZLHHINWT

Number of meetings attended/held

Audit committee members ERZEERE HiE BITEERE
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman) MK B A (£ FE) 2/2
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham AEFHEE 2/2
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung TR 2/2
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung EGosiE 2/2

In the meetings, the audit committee (i) reviewed with external
auditor the Group’s interim and annual financial statements and
reports before they were submitted to the Board for consideration
and approval; (i) reviewed with the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group; (iii) reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems;
and (iv) reviewed the corporate governance functions of the Group.
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(2)

(3)

Remuneration Committee (2 FMZEE=Z

Members of the remuneration committee comprise three FNZEENER=-RBILIIENTESMN

independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu Lun, KBkt (KRRHFMEEGZERF) - A

Simon who is the chairman of the remuneration committee, The HEENHRDPEEUE —ZIERTTES

Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung and one non- BIBIBIEMEK - HFTNEZEGERHRZH

executive director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. The BRANBITHERE -

remuneration committee is provided with sufficient resources to

discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee setting out BEETANSTRAGEXEIECHMEES

the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the BEGEFINEZEGCENRBEDES

guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on AR B4 o

the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the remuneration committee are to provide FHEER s T2RERM TNISERE

advices and recommendations to the Board on (i) the remuneration EeREEZLEE  ((EELaRER

packages of the directors and senior management; (i) any specific [& 2 ZrEfarid - ()M R E IS (K2

remuneration packages with reference to market conditions, EZWmHER  AEBRBEARRLZZESE

performance of the Group and the individuals with reference to the EF2 L HHECBERERBR) » Rl ©

goals and targets as set by the Board from time to time; and (iii) if ERMEEAE AT EEBRIETEH ZER

necessary, any compensation arrangement for termination of office BEERH-

of directors or senior management.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year. The FR FHEESERT - REH 8%

attendance record of each committee member is set out below: BelBhFEez 2 cEHsImT
Number of meetings attended/held

Remuneration committee members FHEESHE HIE BITERRE

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BlBs et 11

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman) IR T A (EFE) 1/1

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham AEHEE 1/

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung BRI & 11

In the meeting, the remuneration committee reviewed and FMZEgre FEHNEBERSIE

recommended for the Board's approval (i) the discretionary bonus BTESR - NFEZBWIBIEA

for the executive directors for the year 2019; and (ii) the P —E_EFE2EEHNETE -

remuneration packages of the directors for the year 2020.

Nomination Committee (3) REZEE

Members of the nomination committee comprise three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon who is the
chairman of the nomination committee, The Hon. Shek Lai Him,
Abraham and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung and one non-executive director,
namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. The nomination committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company'’s website.

RAZEGNEBH=—RBILIFRTESEMN
KBEE (RRREZEGZER) - A8
B NARPEEAR —BIRITES
BIERELEEK - REZBGRRERTHR
BIRABITERE -

BEETRNTARETEZREEZES®
BREGSEFINZBEECRIRBECDEH

AR R -
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The principal duties of the nomination committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The above principal duties are regarded as the key nomination
criteria and principles for the nomination of directors of the
Company, which also form part of the nomination policy of the
Company. In selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship to the Board, the nomination committee would
consider various aspects such as candidate’s qualification, time
commitment to Company and contributions that will bring to the
Board as well as factors concerning board diversity as set out in the
Company's Board diversity policy, before making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of directors.

The nomination committee is also responsible for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors.

The nomination committee held one meeting during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

REZEGZIERBEWT

() ELEFRAEESHEM KB
ABRARA (BIEREE - MR A%
BE)  WRETARERATND
PR O S A
BRI
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(i) WMEFEEHEHEZTUARES (L
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B PIniREANEE - BRAT AR AR
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RRAIEEFEXNELTTIEBED  FRES
ERBEZTIEZER  HEH G EamE
SEHREFSFHER -

REZESNBEMEBIULIFNTEEN
Bt -

FRREEARGRIT-AGE - SE
BRAE R E 2 EERImT

Number of meetings attended/held

Nomination committee members REZEGHE HE BITEERE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas 2Bt 11
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman) IR B A (£ FE) 11

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham Vaki &=
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung SRR A

In the meeting, the nomination committee (i) reviewed the existing
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) reviewed the
independence of independent non-executive directors; and (iii)
made recommendations to the Board on the proposed re-election
of the retiring directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

1/
1/

REZEERELORIRKEZTSR
B KB ABEASR  (VEMBILIERTT
BEZHEYM  RMEESREBENEE
BOZBRRBAFAG L BEBREEFZE

2%
A% °

AEERREERAR :ﬁ@h

o -



Corporate Governance Report (continued) ¥ & 43R % ()

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and maintaining sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems. As such, the Board not only sets and
communicates the Group's strategies and objectives but also oversees the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems on an ongoing
basis, and to ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal controls systems has been conducted at least
annually.

The audit committee plays a vital role in overseeing the risk management
and internal controls systems on behalf of the Board. The audit committee
reviews, on at least an annual basis, the Group's risk management and
internal controls systems to ensure that management has fulfilled its duties
in establishing and maintaining an effective risk management and internal
controls systems. It also assesses the extent and frequency of the
communication of the monitoring results to the Board, as well as
considering the results of any investigation into the Group's risk
management practices and internal controls and management’s responses
to the findings of such investigations. The audit committee performs
annual review for the adequacy of budget and resources, staff qualification
and experience, and the quality of training program of the Group's internal
audit, accounting and financial reporting functions.

The Group's system of internal controls which includes a defined
management structure with limit of authority is designed to help the
achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
external publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in the operational systems for the
achievement of the Group's objectives.

The Group also regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information and procedures are in place for the handling of confidential
commercial information to ensure that inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is approved, and its
dissemination effectively made.

Bk EE R AR
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The main features of the Group's risk management and internal controls
systems are illustrated below:
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The Group has established an organisational structure with defined levels
of responsibility and reporting procedures. Monthly management
accounts are available for review of the senior management and the Board
(in a concise format of a Monthly Report) for monitoring the Group's
financial and operating results. The management, supported by the
operation units and the internal audit team, are responsible for
formulating, implementing and monitoring sound risk management and
internal control systems, and reporting to the Board and the audit
committee on the result of risk assessment, as well as the assessment on
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.

The internal audit provides an independent appraisal on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems. The yearly internal audit plan is derived based on the assessed
risk of the Group's major operations and business and, taking into account
also result of internal audit activities conducted in the preceding period,
are reported to the audit committee for approval. In addition to its
scheduled internal audit works, the internal audit team may be requested
to conduct other review or investigative work. The results of internal audit
reviews and agreed management action plans in response to
recommendations of the internal audit are reported to the executive
directors and audit committee periodically. The internal audit also follows
up with management regarding the implementation of the agreed action
plans to ensure that operation procedures and internal controls are
continuously enhanced.
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In addition to the assessment and review of risk management and internal
controls undertaken internally, the half-yearly review and annual audit
conducted by our external auditors, aim to provide assurance that the
Group's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies and
applicable laws, rules and regulations, will also provide to certain extent
independent checks on the Group's internal controls system.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, management has conducted
regular reviews during the year on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems covering all material aspects
related to financial, operational and compliance controls, various functions
for risk management and security of physical assets and information
systems. The audit committee had been reported during the audit
committee meetings of key findings identified by internal auditors and
external auditors and discussed findings and actions or measures taken in
addressing those findings relating to the Group's risk management and
internal controls. No material issues on the risk management and internal
controls system have been identified during the year ended 31 December
2020 and no significant areas of concern which might require rectification
works or affect our stakeholders, including our shareholders. The Board
and its audit committee considered the risk management and internal
control system to be effective and adequate, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training and budget of its
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Commitment to Transparency

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of
transparency through timely disclosure of relevant information on the
Group's business and activities to the shareholders, investors, media and
investing public, through regular press releases, analysts’ briefings, press
conferences, as well as timely updating of the Company’s website. Our
executive directors and management, who look after the business
operation, are committed to respond to enquiries from regulators,
shareholders and business partners.

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Investors’ Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company
always seeks to provide relevant information to existing and potential
investors, not only to comply with the different regulatory requirements in
force but also to enhance transparency and communications with the
shareholders and the investing public. This is part of a continuous
communication program that encompasses meetings and relevant
announcements to the market in addition to periodic written reports in the
form of preliminary results announcement and the publication of interim
and annual reports. The annual general meeting of the Company also
provides an opportunity for communication between the Board and the
shareholders.

In addition, the Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information about the Group is made available on a timely
basis. Regular meetings are also held with institutional investors and
research analysts to provide them with timely updates on the Group's
latest business developments which are not inside information (as defined
under the Listing Rules) in nature. These activities will keep the public
informed of the Group's activities and foster effective communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and forums during
the year in order to enhance the awareness of the investing public of the
Group's business operations and development strategies.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully complied with
disclosure obligations stipulated in the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have
an equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally available information
released by the Group.

Dividend Policy

With a view to providing stable financial return to shareholders, it is the
Company'’s intention to maintain a pay-out ratio of not less than 35% as its
dividend policy through the distribution of interim and final dividend each
year.

The exact payout ratio and amount of dividend each year however will be
subject to the discretion of the Board and will depend on a number of
factors including the Group's operating results and financial performance
each year and its expected future earnings and cash flows; availability of
the Company'’s cash and distributable reserves; investment and working
capital requirement; and general and financial market conditions.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the Company.

The above written requisition shall be addressed to the Company’s head
office at 20th Floor, East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

The procedures regarding proposing a person for election as a director are
set out under the “Corporate Governance” on the homepage of the
Company's website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing
through the company secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
20th Floor, East Point Centre

555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2838 2030

Email: info@Iifestylehk.com.hk

Constitutional Documents
During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association.
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Profile of Directors

EEEN

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Kam Sen

Mr. Lau, aged 32, was appointed as an executive director in June 2017. He
also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lau is
responsible for project management of the Group. Mr. Lau holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from Columbia University in the City of New York
and a Master of Arts degree from New York University. He has previously
worked in investment banking with a global financial institution in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lau is the son of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, the brother of Ms.
Lau Kam Shim and the nephew of Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy.

Ms. Lau Kam Shim

Ms. Lau, aged 33, was appointed as an executive director in March 2016.
She also acts as a director for various subsidiaries of the Company. Her
responsibilities include overseeing sales operations, marketing, advertising
and the sourcing of new business opportunities. Ms. Lau is also the current
chairwoman of the Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee and plays an active role in promoting and integrating the
Group's sustainability goals within the business. Ms. Lau joined the Group
in October 2012 and prior to being promoted to the executive director,
was responsible for the international luxury division and the marketing
division of the Group. She currently serves as a member of the Executive
Committee of the International Association of Department Stores and the
Hong Kong Retail Management Association as well as a member of the
Retail & Tourism Committee within the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from King's College
London, University of London and a Master of Arts degree from Columbia
University in the City of New York. She is the daughter of Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Thomas, the sister of Mr. Lau Kam Sen and the niece of Ms. Lau Yuk
Wai, Amy.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas

Chairman

Mr. Lau, aged 66, joined the Company in January 2004. He has been the
Chairman of the Company since 2015. Mr. Lau is also the chairman, chief
executive officer and an executive director of Lifestyle China Group
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is a member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee
and a member of the board of directors of the Shanghai Jiao Tong
University, the PRC. Mr. Lau is the father of Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau
Kam Shim, and the brother of Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy.
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Profile of Directors (continued) =5/ (&)

Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William (JP)

Mr. Doo, aged 76, joined the Company in March 2005. He is also the
vice-chairman and non-executive director of New World Development
Company Limited and an independent non-executive director of Shanghai
Industrial Urban Development Group Limited, both being companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Doo is also the chairman and director of
Fungseng Prosperity Holdings Limited. He is a Justice of the Peace
appointed by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. He is also the Honorary Consul General of the Kingdom of
Morocco in Hong Kong and Macau, and a Governor of the Canadian
Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong. Mr. Doo was promoted to the
Officier de I'Ordre National de la Légion d'Honneur by the Republic of
France in 2019.

Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy

Ms. Lau, aged 67, joined the Company in March 2004. She is also a non-
executive director of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor of Science degree and a
Doctor of Dental Surgery degree from University of Toronto, Canada. She
is a retired dentist registered with the Royal College of Dental Surgeons of
Ontario, Canada. Ms. Lau is the sister of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, and
the aunt of Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau Kam Shim.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (ACA, FTIHK)

Mr. Lam, aged 71, joined the Company in March 2004. Mr. Lam graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree. After
graduation, he worked at KPMG Peat Marwick and obtained his
qualification as a chartered accountant from The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales in 1979 and certified public accountant
from the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now known as the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in 1980. He is also a fellow
member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam has been a
practicing accountant for over 25 years and is the proprietor of Messrs.
S.L. Lam & Company, a firm of certified public accountants. He has served
as a member of the Insider Dealing Tribunal on a number of occasions. He
is an independent non-executive director of Le Saunda Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Profile of Directors (continued) E=E#/) (&)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham (Abraham Razack) (GBS, SBS, JP)
Mr. Shek, aged 75, joined the Company in March 2004. He has been a
member of the Legislative Council for the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region representing real estate and construction functional
constituency since 2000. Mr. Shek is an honorary member of the Court of
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and Court and
Council Member of The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Shek is a
non-executive director of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority and a member of the Advisory Committee on Corruption of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption. He is currently an executive
director of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (re-designated from
independent non-executive director on 1 March 2021), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Shek is an independent non-executive director
of Paliburg Holdings Limited, NWS Holdings Limited, Chuang’s
Consortium International Limited, Chuang’s China Investments Limited,
ITC Properties Group Limited, Country Garden Holdings Company
Limited, SUJM Holdings Limited, China Resources Cement Holdings
Limited, Lai Fung Holdings Limited, Cosmopolitan International Holdings
Limited, Everbright Grand China Assets Limited, CSI Properties Limited,
Far East Consortium International Limited, Landing International
Development Limited and Hao Tian International Construction Investment
Group Limited, all being companies listed on the Stock Exchange. He is
also an independent non-executive director of Eagle Asset Management
(CP) Limited (the manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust which
is listed on the Stock Exchange) and Regal Portfolio Management Limited
(the manager of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust which is listed on the
Stock Exchange). Mr. Shek holds a Bachelor of Arts degree and has
extensive experience in the property development field. Mr. Shek was
awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and Gold Bauhinia Star by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2007 and
2013 respectively.

BAFHTES (&)

ARMBEE (GBS, SBS * X F#L)
BEERFHE RZEZNFE=AMEBEALAR
Al BRE_ZEETEFRABBFINTHELES
RERMERRBERDEAFINZE - AXERE
BRBRAZEEZE@REBENEURBERER
EgNERRBEZEENE - AXEREHIER
BeHEERRZIFNTEEFUARRBEREA
FESMERAZESEE - FREARRER (£
E) BRAR (BB EMAR) 2HITEE (B
A -HRAEEMIFPTESRD) -
AEERABARIERERAR - FAIRERFR
AR BETHEBRRERAR  HrHEKRER
AT mEwESEARAR  BERERERE
PR ORPIERIERBR AR - ZHKORZER
ERAT  BEERERAR  MWERKRERE
PRAF - HRKFEHBRRDA - CSI Properties
Limited (EAKBIWEBRAR) ERERE
BAR - ERBERERARAFIRERBERER
RELEEERAT(EHRARHRBRMETR
ADMBYIFRTEE - BRAREREEERE (B
B)ERAFR (BRAEXGINERA  ZEFER
B Em REREEERERAR(EREE
BERNEEA  ZEFERERM W) KIE 7 IE
HITEZ - ALERENELTEM  RYEER
FTHEREELR ARESINR_ZZLEFER
ZE - FRERBR TR BUT B R IR EH
EERGEFEE -

HRERREAR L :M 65

S



Profile of Directors (continued) =5/ (&)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung (JP)

Mr. Hui, aged 73, joined the Company in July 2005. Mr. Hui is the chairman
and chief executive officer of Luk Fook Financial Services Limited and has
over 49 years of experience in the securities and investment industry. He
had for years been serving as a council member and vice chairman of the
Stock Exchange, a member of the advisory committee of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission, a director of the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited, a member of the listing committee of the
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an appointed member of the
Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal, a member of Standing Committee
on Company Law Reform, and an appointed member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Investigation Panel A. He was also
a member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts of the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission and a member of Government
"Appointees” (independent member) of Appeal Panel of the Travel
Industry Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Hui was appointed by the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region a Justice of the Peace in
2004 and has served as a member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference from 2006 to 2017.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and senior
fellow member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.
Mr. Hui also serves as an independent non-executive director of Zhuhai
Holdings Investment Group Limited, Gemdale Properties and Investment
Corporation Limited, China South City Holdings Limited, SINOPEC
Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd., Agile Group Holdings Limited and FSE
Services Group Limited and a non-executive director of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited, all being companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Ip Yuk Keung

Mr. Ip, aged 68, joined the Company in April 2014. He is an international
banking and real estate professional with over 30 years of experience in
the United States, Asia and Hong Kong. His expertise are in real estate
finance, corporate banking, risk management, wealth management and
transaction banking. Previously managing director and corporate bank
head of Citigroup and managing director of investments at Merrill Lynch
(Asia Pacific), Mr. Ip was also an executive director and the chief executive
officer of Langham Hospitality Investments (“LHI") and Langham
Hospitality Investments Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange) and LHIL
Manager Limited (the trustee-manager of LHI). He is currently a
non-executive director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited (the
manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust which is listed on the
Stock Exchange). Mr. Ip also serves as an independent non-executive
director of Power Assets Holdings Limited, New World Development
Company Limited and Hutchison Telecommunications Hong Kong
Holdings Limited, all being companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ip is an Adjunct Professor of City University of Hong Kong, The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology, The Hang Seng University of
Hong Kong and The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is also a
Member of the International Advisory Board of College of Business at City
University of Hong Kong, a Council Member, a Member of the Business
School Advisory Council and an Honorary Advisor of School of Humanities
and Social Science at The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology, an Adjunct Distinguished Professor in Practice at University of
Macau, a trustee of the Board of Trustees at Washington University in
St. Louis and an honorary fellow of Vocational Training Council. He is a
chairman of the World Green Organisation.

Mr. Ip holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Applied Mathematics and
Computer Science at Washington University in St. Louis (summa cum
laude), a Master of Science degree in Applied Mathematics at Cornell
University and a Master of Science degree in Accounting and Finance at
Carnegie-Mellon University.
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Directors’ Report

EEEWRE

The board of directors ("Board”) of the Company present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the operation of department stores in Hong
Kong and other retailing format and property development and property
investment.

Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 87.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020, comprising the discussion of the future business development and
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 6 to 7 and pages 8 to 23 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Five-Year Group Financial
Summary” on page 167. No important event affecting the Group has
occurred since the end of the financial year under review.

Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
relationships with key stakeholders, and compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations are contained in the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 24 to 48 of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report (continued) EE &% (&)

Shares
Details of movements during the year in the shares of the Company are set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debentures
The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

Distributable Reserves
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The Group is principally involved in retail business which consists of direct
sales, and income from After Purchase Order and concessionaire sales. In
the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group in respect of our direct and
consignment sales accounted for approximately 48% of the Group's total
purchase and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 21% of the Group's total purchase. The five largest
customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group's
turnover during the year.

None of the directors, their close associates or any shareholder so far as is
known to the directors having more than 5% of the number of issued
shares of the Company, within the knowledge of the directors, has any
interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers during the year.

Donations
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1.3 million (2019: HK$10.8 million).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued) EE&3{4 (&)

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Kam Sen
Ms. Lau Kam Shim

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman)
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William

Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung

Mr. Ip Yuk Keung

In accordance with Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Lau Kam Sen, Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William and Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy will
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, all being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Report (continued) EE &% (&)

Changes in Information of Directors
Below are the changes in director’s information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau Kam Shim
—  both voluntarily offered to take 30% salary reduction for a period of
6 months with effect from 1 October 2020

Mr. Lau Kam Sen
—  appointed as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company on
23 November 2020

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham (Abraham Razack)

—  appointed as an independent non-executive director of Landing
International Development Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, with effect from 14 August 2020

—  appointed as an independent non-executive director of Hao Tian
International Construction Investment Group Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, with effect from 15 October 2020

—  re-designated from an independent non-executive director to an
executive director and appointed as the vice chairman of Goldin
Financial Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, with effect from 1 March 2021

Mr. Ip Yuk Keung

—  resigned as independent non-executive director of TOM Group
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange) with effect from
31 August 2020

—  ceased to be a Professor of Practice (International Banking and Real
Estate) at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University upon completion of
his term of office on 31 August 2020

—  appointed as a chairman of the board of governors of World Green
Organisation with effect from 1 January 2021

—  ceased to be a member of the International Advisory Committee at
University of Macau upon completion of his term of office
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Directors’ Report (continued) EE&3{4 (&)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares, BEENBESTHRAERKRSG - HE
Underlying Shares and Debentures ROREERzER

As at 31 December 2020, the directors’ and the chief executive's interests R_ZZT-F

FH+-A=+—R FBEER&ESTT

and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the ~ ELA BRANA &) s A MAEEEE (R (EH L
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part & & FI)([ & F K B E G0 ]) EBEXV E T E &)
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the  ZH&{) ~ HHEARND REEREGFERIEES L
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise B 1§71 3526 E L8k BE 7 2 E sk
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited — RIEE B AR ZER AR ([T FH L
(“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities  M#RRI([_ EMARAN D) M8k +HmE 2 EMEITA
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in ~ ZEH#EITEHF R HHEETAN([ERESFAI]) A
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock ~ H& AR B RE T2 m RA BRI T ¢

Exchange ("Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(i)  Long position in shares of the Company (i) REIATARGBZER

Number of Percentage of

Name of director Nature of interest shares held issued shares
BERE HERTRG
EEpg Mg 2 g=] ZHEDLE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Beneficial owner 113,403,292 7.55%
21EB LA BEHEEA
Interest of controlled corporations (Note 1) 1,011,694,500 67.36%
EEGAEERE (M)
Trustee (Note 2) 951,000 0.06%
ZEEA (BF5E2)
Mr. Lau Kam Sen Beneficiary of a trust (Note 2) 951,000 0.06%
ey =% - ErEZmA (:E2)
Ms. Lau Kam Shim Beneficiary of a trust (Note 2) 951,000 0.06%
254 R Bt m A (MFE2)
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy Beneficiary of a trust and Trustee (Note 2) 951,000 0.06%
AEELL EAZmARZTEA (H:E2)
Notes: 5T -
1. The 1,011,694,500 shares comprise: 1. #1,011,694,500/% f% 15 B2 4E -

(i) 540,000,000 shares held by United Goal Resources Limited (“United
Goal”). United Goal is ultimately owned as to 80% by Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Thomas through his controlled corporations and as to 20%
by certain family members of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph, the elder
brother of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is deemed to be interested in the same
parcel of shares in which United Goal is interested.

(ii) 471,694,500 shares held by Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic
Castle”), which is wholly owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares held by Dynamic Castle.

(i) 540,000,000 % A% 17 F United Goal
Resources Limited ([ United Goall)
#78 ° United Goal I8 £
B EAE A B S AR A 80% A0 1
wm R AL (RBEREEY
B L) B FRIEK B &AL A 20% R
iR o IRIBHEF KRB KD - 218
8 T A W AR A 1 A United Goal FTH
BRI R S o

(ii) 471,694,5000% % 1 B B #0542
& ¥ A Z Dynamic Castle Limited
([Dynamic Castle]) £ 5 ° 1R1EE2
KEAE RG] - BIER R LR AE
A Dynamic Castle FTH5 A #)HER IR 19
T o
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Directors’ Report (continued) EE &% (&)

(ii)

Notes: (continued)

2. These shares are held by a trust for an estate in which certain family
members of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas have interest. Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas and Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy are the trustees of the trust and each of
Mr. Lau Kam Sen, Ms. Lau Kam Shim and Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy is a
beneficiary under the trust, and therefore each of them is deemed to be
interested in such shares by virtue of the SFO.

Interest in debentures of associated corporations of the
Company

(a) LS Finance (2022) Limited
- 4.25% guaranteed bonds due 2022

Nature of interest

R

Name of director

EEpR

(ii)

e« (48)

2. ZERMBIEBREEETREKERE S
BAEDCBERERRE - 2IEBTERE
FERTAZERNITA URBISRE
£ BSENMAREEBRERERERT
Z2EmA - At RIFES AR GG - B
EEWEREEZSER S

REQXFAEBLIEERERNES

(a) LS Finance (2022) Limited

-4.25%/A2022 F ZI A B R R E %

Amount of debentures held (US$)
FrEEREeE (Xx)

Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William

HEELEE EHDAE S (M)
Note: These debentures are held by a company which is wholly owned by

Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Doo Wai Hoi,
William is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
debentures in which such company is interested.

(b) LS Finance (2017) Limited

- 4.875% guaranteed bonds due 2024

Name of director Nature of interest

Interest of controlled corporation (Note)

10,000,000

e ZEERFAMBREEE2EHRE
MAREE -RIBEESHKBHEEK
Bl RIS EEWEAHEEZAA
BENRREREREZ -

(b) LS Finance (2017) Limited

-4.875%A 2024 E R A B R &S

Amount of debentures held (US$)

EEpE EmtE FEEEEEE(ER)
Mr. Lau Kam Sen Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 10,000,000
BSREE ZEwEERER ()
Ms. Lau Kam Shim Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 10,000,000
215 3&/MA HiEtEEER (HFE2)
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 10,000,000
MEEEE pEhlEE kR (HE3)
Notes: B 5
1. These debentures are held by Magic Achieve Limited ("Magic 1. ZEE#EBAMagic Achieve
Achieve”), which is wholly owned by Mr. Lau Kam Sen. By virtue of Limited ([Magic Achieve])#%H -
the SFO, Mr. Lau Kam Sen is deemed to be interested in the same ZARHRESEEELEERE R
parcel of debentures in which Magic Achieve is interested. BEFEBEEN - 25 ERER
125 % 5 Magic Achievets A #IHHE
BEREERER -
2. These debentures are held by Dynasty Sky Limited (“Dynasty Sky”), 2. % % & # 7% B Dynasty Sky Limited

which is wholly owned by Ms. Lau Kam Shim. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Lau Kam Shim is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
debentures in which Dynasty Sky is interested.

3. These debentures are held by a company which is wholly owned by
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Doo Wai Hoi,
William is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of

debentures in which such company is interested.

([Dynasty Sky ) #H - Z AR Z
SENMEZEER - RIBEEFRE
&0 B SENERBERER
Dynasty Sky#7/8 €18 [R EHEEEA -

3. HZEEREAMEELEZERER
MRERA - RIBESRMEGE -
HEBELERAABEXRARE
M AE R E R A S o

FIREEEEARLE :'gzﬁg‘%’\ If-ﬁ"?lii\
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(c) LS Finance (2025) Limited
- 4.50% guaranteed bonds due 2025

(c) LS Finance (2025) Limited
-4.50%2025F ZI B IRRES

Name of director Nature of interest Amount of debentures held (US$)

EEnE FEEME FiEEEESE ()

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Beneficial owner 4,000,000

RIS A EmEAA

Mr. Lau Kam Sen Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 15,000,000

ASREE A E R ()

Ms. Lau Kam Shim Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 10,000,000

215 9=/ A A E R (E2)

Notes: B 5

1. These debentures are held by Magic Achieve, which is wholly owned 1. % % (B8 B Magic Achieve 74
by Mr. Lau Kam Sen. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau Kam Sen is ZARHEASREEREHESE R
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of debentures in which BEF LA 25 RTER
Magic Achieve is interested. 1% B B Magic Achieve B #18 [F

B -
2. These debentures are held by Dynasty Sky, which is wholly owned by 2. Z% L AR A Dynasty Sky¥F B © %

Ms. Lau Kam Shim. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lau Kam Shim is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of debentures in which

Dynasty Sky is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. Nor any of the directors and chief
executive had any interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or had exercised any such right during
the year under review.

RABESENEREREER - R
BHREEGE - 2158/ NNERAR
A% B Dynasty Sky#5 & K18 R & ##
B o

BEXHIEEEN RZTE_TF+_A=+—
B ARREZRETRABRESGRES
F R EGRPIEI2ERELHERAEFZERL
Hﬂﬁﬂ%*ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁum%ﬂ@$ B M B 3P 2 AN

RESEEAREEE (R85 RBEGHIEXV
BB REER) 2 EM D - HER D K EEE
BEIAR - REEFA  SEZRERTERA
EHUEGEA R ER A RE AR E R AR
B (ZESLBEGRIIEXVEBMRAEE)EHFZ
RER  TVEBITEAE M ZFHER -
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Interests of Shareholders Discloseable under the SFO

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than a director or

the ch

ief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the

%E%#&Hﬁ ERPIATHEZRR

NR_ZE_EF+_A=+—8 " THALCTE
FBARFRESRZSTHRAER) RARRZ KRG

shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register ~ KRB % P iFHIRIEE S K E K5 5 3361&
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the %ﬁmnaﬁ‘ﬁ\ REFZECMASMEADNA 2
Company: FREBEIIT
Long position in shares of the Company RAEXRRGZHER
Number of Percentage of
Name Nature of interest shares held issued shares
BERM GHEBRTRG
28 ERME #E ZBEDH
United Goal Beneficial owner (Note 3) 540,000,000 35.95%
EmA A (MEE3)
Asia Prime Assets Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Notes 1 and 3) 540,000,000 35.95%
("Asia Prime”) S A B R A (BT RE1 & 3)
Sand Cove Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Notes 2 and 3) 540,000,000 35.95%
("Sand Cove") G EE R (M52 K%3)
Dynamic Castle Beneficial owner (Note 3) 471,694,500 31.41%

Notes:

EmEA A (HE3)

Asia Prime, a company indirectly controlled by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, holds
80% of the entire issued share capital of United Goal. By virtue of the SFO, Asia
Prime is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares comprising
540,000,000 shares in which United Goal is interested as beneficial owner.

Sand Cove, which is wholly owned and directly controlled by Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas, is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 100% voting power at
general meetings of Asia Prime. By virtue of SFO, Sand Cove is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares in which Asia Prime is deemed to be

interested as set out in Note 1 above.

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau Kam Shim are directors
of United Goal and Sand Cove. Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is also the sole

director of Asia Prime and Dynamic Castle.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any

person (other than a director or the chief executive of the Company) who

had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the

Comp
requir
Comp

any as at 31 December 2020 which were recorded in the register
ed to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
any.

B &

1. Asia Prime A B8R St AR EH 2 AR - EFAE
80% United Goal 2 ZE BT A  IRIEFH R HE
&1+ Asia Prime# 12 A F United Goal Bz B &)
540,000,000 & &5 o #E B AR A % o

2. Sand CoveHBIZ B AL T EHAB REEEH - &
B RETE Asia Prime iR R K& 1T SiE H1971100%
IR o IRIEE H REIE KRP - Sand Covet iR
AR LM ATl Asia Prime FTi3 A A RAER

B tn #e s

3. RIBIB T - 815 R S A R BIS 9/ NE B United Goal
J2Sand CoveZ T % o 2841 %t A4 I8 A Asia Prime &
Dynamic Castle 2 Mt — % = »

B EXFrmEES  MEBERAL(RRBES
IRETBERABERINAARABMNER
TECERET A=+ -BERAREESIHE

GPIFEIBERERBENAEF 2 ECMARA
BARRZARREIRD AR EEZORE

FIREEEEARLE :'gzﬁg‘%’\ If-ﬁ"?lii\
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BERONEREE 2L
REREMSE - AQF - HERAAREEM
HB A RIA R A AR AT S E AR - B
CENGE R S G RN BT INC |
1 o A R T 2

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

B 2R 4 84 15 5
7 55 B4 4F PO 36 48 5T L AF 1] AR SR 40 50 %

Equity-linked Agreements
The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
year.

EERNBRFRG 2

T EF IR AEA RIE L T8 100F 5
LRSS ESiactRdnd P e
WE 2 EHEN

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

The following directors have interests in the following businesses which are
considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group as disclosed pursuant to Rule

8.10 of the Listing Rules:

Description of

Nature of interest

of the director

Name of director Name of entity businesses in the entity
EERZERZ

EENA BREH EBEN EREE

Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William New World Development Property development and Director

MHEEEE Company Limited investment and department ~ E %

group of companies

MEARABERBERAFETRE

Ace Action Ltd.
group of companies
Ace Action Ltd.J& 53

Amelia Gold Limited
group of companies
Amelia Gold Limited& T~ £ &

Fortune Success Limited
group of companies

fFERRARE TN &EE

Fung Seng Enterprises
Investment Company Limited
group of companies

CREEREFRARETEE

Fung Seng Enterprises Limited
group of companies

CRAZEXARARETEE

Golden Wealth Investment Limited

group of companies

SBEREGRARENEE

store operations

MEBRMBENAELE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MEE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment and
management

MERENRERE

Property investment and
development

MERERER

Director and
shareholder

EEMER

Director and
shareholder

EERRRE

Director and
shareholder

EENMER

Director and
shareholder

EEMER

Director and
shareholder

EERBE

Director and
shareholder

BEENMER
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Description of

Nature of interest
of the director

Name of director Name of entity businesses in the entity
E=NZEREZ
EEpE EREE EBBN EEMtE

Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William
(continued)

RIS L (B)

Oriental Triumph Inc.
group of companies

RIBRARETEE

Silver City International Limited
group of companies
Silver City International Limited

ET&EE

Sunshine Dragon Group Limited
group of companies

Sunshine Dragon Group Limited
BT &R

Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy
AEEL L

Chinese Estates Holdings Limited
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited
(EABXEEER)

As the Board of the Company is independent of the boards of the above-
mentioned companies and none of the above directors are in control of
the Board of the Company, the Group is therefore capable of carrying on
its businesses independently and at arm'’s length with the businesses of
these companies.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
and Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company or any entities connected with the director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company'’s articles of association, every director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.
There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the directors and officers of the Group.

Related Party Transactions

None of the related party transactions in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Property and hotel investment

W RBEERE
Property investment

YERRE

Property investment

Director and
shareholder

E=ZRBRE

Director and
shareholder

EEZRBE

Director and

MERE shareholder
EERRR
Property investment and Director
development 5%

MERERER

ARAPMEEGNVB YN LA RARNESS - A
BHEERHIARPESS  WAEEARE
NBIRZERRNEGRIRANTERETEE
& o

EERXRE  ZHEREHNzZER

ARRESHREZTFRENTAERBRERN R
REHE AN B R R MET L AR FRRFARE
MERDALERZERAR S - ZHREHT &
EHEEEEEA R -

BESFZRERX
BEAARZABERMY  SHUEFFERE
FEEAR - ST H S 1 A B B o B A B
BBz —BRAREARFAANEETRESE
- ARAEAFEBEEREAREME DS
MEERERBERTRRIERRE -

BEALIRS

PR B B RRM 3N MEA TR B W EBMR
ETRAFUAZRE 2 BEX I ABEWER
5 o
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Connected Transaction

During the year, the Group, as the tenant, entered into a Tenancy
Agreement with Bonnion Investments Limited (“Bonnion”) as the landlord,
for the lease of certain premises at Gemstar Tower, No.23 Man Lok Street,
Kowloon for a term of 18 months with monthly rental at HK$440,220
(excluding management fees, government rates and government rent).

Since Bonnion is ultimately wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas,
who is a non-executive director and the controlling shareholder of the
Company, Bonnion is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transaction contemplated under the
Tenancy Agreement constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 16, the Group has
recognised the rental payment payable by the Group under the Tenancy
Agreement as an acquisition of right-of-use assets of the Group, which
constitutes an one-off connected transaction for the Group under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rule. The payment of other charges including the
management fees and government rates and rent under the Tenancy
Agreement are recognised as expense of the Group and such payment are
regarded as a continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rule.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the value of the right-of-
use asset recognised or the payment of other charges on an annual basis
under the Tenancy Agreement is less than 0.1%, both therefore constitute
de minimus transactions which are fully exempted from the disclosure
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Specific Performance Covenant on Controlling
Shareholders

In July 2016, the Company as guarantor and through its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a HK$8 billion 5-year secured loan
facility agreement with a syndicate of banks.

In April 2017, the Company as guarantor and through its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement with a syndicate of
banks for a term loan of up to HK$9 billion for the development of the New
Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6557, Kai Tak Area 1E Site 2, Kowloon, Hong Kong
("Project”). The final maturity date of the facility shall be the earlier of the
date falling (i) 60 months from the utilisation date of the facility; and (i) 6
months after issuance of a certificate of compliance by the Director of
Lands in respect of the Project.

Under the aforesaid facility agreements, unless with the banks’ written
consent, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, his family members and/or his family
trust arrangements and Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph'’s family members and/
or his family trust arrangements shall remain the major shareholders of the
Company with shareholding interest, directly or indirectly, of not less than
50.1% and retain management control of the Group.

BEXS

FR - AEE (TEAFF) EBonnion Investments
Limited ([Bonnion] * fEAZE) FI/ HE R -
MHEEMRNEREEHEDREEFLHETE
BT BEAT AR - AT440,2208 7T (T RIEE
BE - RTERHE) -

A Bonnion AR A RIFEBITE FRIZAAR R ZI
BREERK2ERSE BELELTHRE
Bonnion AN A A BEE A I o Ft - RIF ETR
BIE4AE - HERZE THETHRSBA AR
AINRERS -

RBFEFBRELNFE 165 - AEEKHEER
& PASEENHEENRER R A EBWIEE
REEE RIELTRUFUAT  AEBEWE
ERAEEEBNAEEN —RIERERS - RIE
HEBHENWEMER EREEBERBNE
iR A A RENAS - MRELETH
AIE4AE BN EERR A/ RNEENHE
HERS

RERERZENERNEAREEBERIEZFX
NHEMER EEENERE S EERER
01%  HItMEH A LETHRUNFUAETHFE
BEARKENR S WEZEREETIHER

E °
ERBRRABTZRERME

RIZB—RFLA  ARF(ERERA) KEB
He2BEMBE AR (ERHERA) B—REFIZ80E
BILSFHMEBRRETRE B

RZZB—tFMA AR (ERERA) KEB
H2EMBRR (EREMRA) B—REFTIAS
BETBEBANVEBTNERESREHEARRS
BNERMIEEIEE2R M BT LA S
65575k Mt (% [1RE |) - R EBEHHZKRE|
HEBRNEZMERERARZ BRRF0EAE
B RNMBAEZERZHFARAEZABZA
MERROEARERZ B AREERE)
RiEEARE RS  RIFRTEERE - B85
ERENRKERER,RREETLHFEER
ARAMEIZRR  AABAENERE (THRER
Sk ) TMEN50.1% » WEEH AEEREEIR
1R I o
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had repurchased
an aggregate principal amount of US$13,051,000 of the 4.25% guaranteed
bonds due 2022 in the principal amount of US$300,000,000 (bond
code: 4571) ("2022 Guaranteed Bonds”) for an aggregate
consideration of approximately US$13,189,000 and the repurchased 2022
Guaranteed Bonds had been cancelled subsequently. As at the year
ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate principal amount of the
outstanding 2022 Guaranteed Bonds amounted to US$286,949,000,
representing 95.6% of the initial principal amount of the 2022 Guaranteed
Bonds.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of the employees’
merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the directors of
the Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee, taking into
consideration of the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

Employees

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 675 employees in
Hong Kong. Staff costs (excluding directors” emoluments) amounted to
HK$212.1 million (2019: HK$220.7 million) for the year. The Group ensures
that the pay levels of its employees are competitive and in line with the
market trend and its employees are rewarded on a performance related
basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus
system.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s shares has been
held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"). A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to reappoint PwC as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Kam Shim

Executive Director

2 March 2021

BE - HESBE LTRSS
BE-_Z-_Z4F+_A=+—RH01FE  AAQ7
D REE A4 4% 513,051,000 T 2 EH 0 %
2022 B HHA2SE B EREFNEASEA
300,000,000 7T (EH 4R 5 : 4571) ([ 20224 &
RIEF]) - 202F BEREHZERNBAREN B
13,189,000% 7t - HABWEH  -REE T =
THE+TZA=FT—BIEFE - WREE 2202245
BERES RS 5 H286,949,000E 7T © 152022
FEEREFSVBITRSEE.6% °

BEXEEEN BE_ZT_ZTF+ A
=t —HIEFE  ARRNEERMNER AL E
BE HEABOARRENLTES -

M R R

AEEZFMERZERZRA  AEREAN
BE - AAREEZHENEFHEEGLER
ADTUSEEE - BRRARLETSREME
HitRT -

==
R-ZE-_ZFE+-_A=+—H AEEREEH
675%EE - RFEZEIRA(TEEES
JE2AEBEETL(ZE—NF 220768
BIL) c AEBBREEHFIKEFETHBE
WERF N BEZHHIBEASE  — 85
S RIEAHERERERIRET -

&
i

&
&
57T
A

RAARFERE

BEAARFEZ AREHRBEEMOE - 7
AEREAH DRALRIBESATRNZ
25% ©

M
AERGAMBHRRCEABERBKEEEE
R (1B ERUKGE ) Bz - AR B RANSERTT
ZBERBFAGREBEELBKERARFZ
ED ZIRFER
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBERE

o
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LIFESTYLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Lifestyle International Holdings
Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 87 to 166, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020;
o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a

summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HE Fopr K 18

BN EEREEERATRR
(RHASESEMKINERAF])

=R

EMEBTHWAR
MEEREBRERAR (A THBIEQAR]) RE
MEBAR (A THBIESE]IENETE166
BENZAVB®RE  BE

. RZZB-_ZF+_A=1T—HNEANK

AR
. BEZRLFENGAERMEM2EK
@K

. RAMBHRRME  BRIESHBERM

g °
BAHER
BMRE  ZEREUERERCRET B S
AGEMICEBUEREEADEEMP BHK
My BEER-_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HKE
BB RALEEBEEZA L TFENRETBERE
REFERERE  WEEBREB(QFEN)HE
BHT L AR -
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to valuation of
investment properties.

ERWER
AMEREEERTADRRRAFO(EEBIE
BIVEITES - RPEXS LA T ABHEED
ERRERRMA B RA M B REARDE
1 8053 R {FHE— S -

BIEE  RAIFESNENREETRES
WwRRMNET B RIEHER -

BayM
REEEEAMAGEMN(EXSHENERT
ADUAT MR - BHPIBIR BH
WEBTTAFNEMEREEEE -

BREITEER
MRETFEERERMNFEXHE - BRER
HRAMBHRRNEARAEENSTR - GLF
HRAERMETERRAMBHRRLREAEAR
ETRERN - R TEHELEREHEBNE
"o

Ji

BAEEPRNNBERES FRAREMED
mEam -
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMWETNMEERRENSE

Valuation of investment properties

REYEN G E

Refer to notes 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FE2HE A BHRMEIR14 -

The Group's investment properties, represented its Kai Tak
development project and UK Property, amounted to
HK$5,420 million and HK$2,649 million respectively as at 31
December 2020 and a fair value loss of HK$418 million was
recognised under “fair value changes on investment
properties” in the consolidated financial statements.
Management engaged independent professional valuers
("valuers”) to evaluate the fair value of the investment
properties.

RIZZBZZEF_A=+—0 AEENKREDZE (ARUEE
)EIE BREEYE) HRIESA20BBETR2649BEET

WREREMBERRREMEATERS | HER R FEEEAS
ﬁ%ﬁ%m - BRBRIBBY FXMERM ([HEM])FHIRE
MERNRFE -

We focused on the valuation of investment properties
because the estimation of fair value is subject to estimation
uncertainty. It is inherently subjective due to, among other
factors, the individual nature of each property, its location,
capitalisation rates, prevailing market rents and the estimated
costs to completion, where appropriate.
HMFIRBREMENEE  BRARFENGAFEGT
WEM  HASGSRESN - Wan (KT eiE) sEmE
ERNMEE L8 Bt RITHISHEE RMEFHET
BAS (RRiE A ) Frss e

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of the key
assumptions used in management’s valuation of the
investment properties included:
HRERBHREMEMETZAEETRANBERER
BVR B AE -

AP

—  Understanding management'’s controls and processes

for determining the valuation of investment properties
and assessing the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and the judgement involved in determining
assumptions to be applied;

B AR T B I B BRR A ) 3 ik (E AR B B P R A IR BT A
WAZ - WBBE BT T LR EMEAME S B
B =KL - FHE T ERE MO E B AR

—  Evaluating the competence, capability and objectivity of

the valuers;

A EERMNER eI MBBIL -

—  Discussing with the valuers key assumptions applied

and assessing the methodologies used by the valuers
with the involvement of our in-house valuation experts;
B AR R ERDFTE A B S RRER - WA ED
HMEERSETEGERATERAN L

—  Assessing key assumptions used by the valuers by

comparing them with our own expectation using
evidence from comparable market transactions,
historical records and approved budgets with the
involvement of our in-house valuation experts,
including:

FRAAABEEERNZE  ANATHLTHERS B
SRERCUEEERNAFRESHORBHE - SAE
BRI VBRI REETTLL R - B B4E

—  Comparing capitalisation rates to published
market yields;
BERE KBRS K REITHE

—  Comparing market rents to leasing transactions
of comparable properties; and

BHSHSETEMENEERSETHER &
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Key Audit Matter
BESTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETNMEERRENSE

Valuation of investment properties

REWHEA1GE

The fair value of the completed investment property was
derived using income approach, and the fair value of the
investment property under development, the valuation was
derived using the residual method. In determining a
property’'s valuation, valuers took into account
property-specific information such as current tenancy
agreements and rental income, where appropriate. They
applied assumptions for capitalisation rates, prevailing market
rents and the estimated costs to completion, which were
influenced by prevailing market yields, comparable market
transactions and approved development budgets, to arrive at
the final valuation.

ERTIREMENRTFENBAESL  MERKREYEDN
NP EAREERETHE -EETYEGER - HEMHSE
HEMEEER - PINERNEEHRERESWA (NER)
Pt EARLLLE  RITTISEE AR IR ANEBRR -
ZEBRRIXBATHEURE TSRS RESAREEZ
T8 MSHRKRME -

The existence of significant judgments in the assumptions
used in the properties valuation warrants specific audit focus
and attention on this area.
MEGMEREANBRRFEERHE BT BEDPEEE
REEAERE A

—  Comparing estimated costs to completion to
approved budgets.

TR TR ARNEE R TBE T -

—  Reviewing the valuation reports prepared by the

valuers;

ZHGHEMRENBERS

—  Checking, on a sample basis, over the property

information, such as rental income schedule covering
the rental information and lease period, used by the
valuers in the valuation, to the underlying lease
arrangements in order to satisfy ourselves of the
accuracy and reasonableness of the property
information used by the valuers; and
HMEREMEES  fInAEMEGETERNREE
SESMESHRNOBSKABRAR - UHEEEEE
2 AERPIEEHEMREROYEERNEEES
FEREMEIENE &

—  Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures related to the

valuation of investment properties in the context of
HKFRS disclosure requirements.
AETEREMBHRELENRBEERT  REVEMAE
HEENRENRDIE -

—  Based on the procedures performed, we considered

that the risk assessment of valuation of investment
properties remained appropriate and the methods,
significant assumptions and data used in
management'’s valuation of investment properties were
supported by the available evidence.
EREERORERF BB RREYEGLENERITE
MREE  EREHRENFETHESAERANT
- BEERRANBUBR BB AKX -
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Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Hitz 8

BERREREHEMERRER - HLEREREF
BANMEBERER  BTRERAMBEHRER LR
MBS -

BAESEAMBHRENERL TRELMESR -
BT ZEEMERBEREMNTANERS

N
Gl

BABRMESEARMBRENES  RANEER
BERMES  EUERT  ZREMESES
BGAMBHRRARMERTBETHRTROE
REEEXNEBLE AT FEEAERRANT
S e

ERBEMERTHINE  MRBMPBA/EMER
FEEABERRM BMFEHREZEE - EE
HE - BIVEBEARE -

ESRAEERGRSUBRRARE
MEE

BERAEERAERBERAESMAGHENDN
(BAMBREER) REB(RBEI)MRER
EREEEMTENGFAMBERE  AHERA
REFREVBRROBE T FERRRFFHER
MEHMEAERRAMFNAESNEE

EREGAVBHRRE EFRENE E5H
FELENE S - YAEERBER T HEESEL
SEMNER ARERFELERSTER
BRIFEEEER BEREBRAFLLE  H
BHMERNERTR -

EXREEE ESEENMBRERRE-
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

%ﬁﬁm?ﬁ%%%%%ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂﬁ
T
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Woon Yin, Michael.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 2 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEeESERAMEERRER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE — T T F + —A=1+—HALLFE

2020 2019
TEZEF —ET-hEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FHT
Revenue WA 4 1,993,024 3,542,032
Cost of sales SHE R A (519,387) (888,869)
Gross profit EH 1,473,637 2,653,163
Other income, gains and losses HA YA - Wam R E ) 218,878 147,165
Selling and distribution costs SHE K SR (578,107) (697,344)
Administrative expenses THHRZ (114,634) (137,787)
Interest income and investment MEWARKE
gains/(losses) Wz (E518) 7 34,559 740,176
Fair value changes on investment REMERNTE
properties BEp 14 (418,056) (173,959)
Finance costs LA KA 8 (369,314) (365,238)
Profit before taxation BR 75 Al Rl 10 246,963 2,166,176
Taxation BiA 9 (108,453) (275,500)
Profit for the year ZNES =R 138,510 1,890,676
Profit for the year attributable to owners AR R #EH AFE(L
of the Company AN 2 5 A 138,510 1,890,676
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HEtham (Eie), s
ltem that may be reclassified to profitor ~ BEEFRIREEH D EBm 2 HE ¢
loss:
Exchange differences arising from BEBINETSE A
translation of foreign operation ZIEH =% (1,911) —
ltem that will not be reclassified to BEerTesfsHEEa
profit or loss: 2R
Fair value change on financial assets BAFEARMEE (BB,
at fair value through other Kamz&mEER
comprehensive (loss)/income NEEEE (132,779) 25,528
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for AN E H b2 mE (EE), ks
the year (net of tax) (FBRTRIR) (134,690) 25,528
Total comprehensive income for the year ANF[E2HE M m BT 3,820 1,916,204
Total comprehensive income FEME 2 E Y
attributable to: FEECR
Owners of the Company PA/NCIEZ N 3,820 1,916,204
3,820 1,916,204
Earnings per share — Basic and diluted ~ & & F| — E A R #H 13 HK$0.09 HK$1.26
87
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

at 31 December2020 A —E-ZEF+ -8 =+—H

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
—EC-EE —ZE-hF
+=ZHA=+—8 +=ZA=+—8H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
{hg=2 FET FHET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties KEYE 14 8,068,559 5,420,000
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB RFE 15 6,541,161 6,291,532
Financial assets at fair value through BATHERT AE A 2 E A
other comprehensive income ZEREE 18 1,320,281 633,121
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEFABRZ R
profit or loss EiE 19 16,538 15,871
Deposits b gra 82,839 72,248
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIEE = 25 87,451 —
16,116,829 12,432,772
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 16 25,795 38,615
Trade and other receivables JE L BR FR % EL b fE W FRIB 17 644,878 102,811
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFABRZ S/
profit or loss EiE 19 4,814,485 3,306,082
Bank deposits RITEBTFER 20 —_ 1,508,698
Cash and cash equivalents B NREEEY 20 4,175,789 7,112,561
9,660,947 12,068,767
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables JE AT BR 3K B EL At FE A< 518 21 662,249 826,275
Contract liabilities aRaE 22 121,824 138,294
Lease liabilities HE&E 15 86,574 76,144
Tax payable FE# T 18 105,162 490,926
Bank borrowings — due within IRITEE ——FR3H
one year 23 9,628,937 4,070,966
Financial liabilities at fair value through BAFEFABRZ S/
profit or loss aE 19 220,836 12
10,825,582 5,602,617
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITIEE — —FEEH 23 3,874,125 7,641,212
Bonds — due after one year B5— —F1& 5 H 24 6,836,181 6,962,233
Lease liabilities HE&E 15 136,697 210,876
Deferred tax liabilities RLFRIEEE 25 260,067 243,297
11,107,070 15,057,618
3,845,124 3,841,304
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) %24 81 % ik 5 (&)
at 31 December2020 A —E-_EF+_A=+—H

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—EoEE —ZE-NF
+=-A=+-A8 TZA=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 FERT FAT
Capital and reserves BEARHE
Share capital % Z< 26 7,510 7,510
Reserves & 3,837,614 3,833,794
Equity attributable to owners of the ZAN/NIEZ SN
Company FE(L R 3,845,124 3,841,304
The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 166 were approved HF 87 Z166EF e M BB EEEFF R
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 2 March 2021 andare  —Z_—F = B#&E REETIE - W H TS
signed on its behalf by: EERREE:

Ms. Lau Kam Shim
254/ A
Executive Director

HITES

Mr. Lau Kam Sen
ASEEE
Executive Director

WITES

HRERKRERRLE —%

89



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEREER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE — S —EF + —A=+—ALLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANAREAEERD
Capital Asset Investment
Share redemption revaluation Translation revaluation  Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BXBEE  BEEfM BE  REEfR RE
EN e B B e i ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TR TER TER TER
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-AF—HA—H 7,510 1,190 3,680 — — 2919004 2,931,384
Profit for the year RERREN — — — — — 1,890,676 1,890,676
Other comprehensive AEEAMZA
income for the year Wz — — — — 25,528 — 25,528
Transactions with ownersin 2B AAEHEB A
their Capacity as owners: SRETIRS -
Dividends paid (Note 12) BIRA RS (3 12) — — — — —  (1,006,284)  (1,006,284)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF
+ZA=+—H 7,510 1,190 3,680 - 25,528 3,803,396 3,841,304
Profit the year AEZHF — — — - - 138,510 138,510
Other comprehensive AEEEMEZEA
loss for the year B — — — (1,911)  (132,779) —  (134,690)
At 31 December 2020 i a3
+ZA=+—H 7,510 1,190 3,680 (1,911)  (107,251) 3,941,906 3,845,124
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE — T T F + —A=1+—HALLFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEER
Profit before taxation B 5 B A 246,963 2,166,176
Adjustments for: EH AT
Interest income on bank deposits RITEHFERZ R BWA (105,605) (201,670)
Finance costs &b & AN 369,314 365,238
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREETE
equipment 252,336 271,384
Dividend income from financial assets BAFEFABRZEREEL
at fair value through profit or loss A% B A 7 (24,796) (59,650)
Dividend income from financial assets BRAFEFAEMEE R 2
at fair value through other TEEEREBA
comprehensive income 7 (2,323) (2,9219)
Interest income from financial assets at BAFEFABRZEREEL
fair value through profit or loss B YA 7 (190,073) (72,086)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BB REE R
equipment (447) (168)
Fair value changes in respect of BEATEFABEZEREEZ
financial assets at fair value through NEES
profit or loss 333,758 (396,723)
Exchange differences in respect of BATFEFARMEERZ 2
financial assets at fair value through TREEIELEZRE
other comprehensive income (45,520) (7,128)
Changes in fair value of investment REWMEZ N FEE
properties 418,056 173,959
Unrealised exchange gain FREIR 7 IE K ES (27,708) (19,703)
Provision of obsolete inventories T ERE 93 22
Provision/(reversal of provision) for B U BR 3R N Eth fE Uk FR A
trade and other receivables, net BE(BEmE) - BEE 23 (1
Operating cash flows before movements &E&E ¢ E B L ERSRE
in working capital 1,224,071 2,216,721
Decrease in inventories 7 &R 12,727 6,146
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other JRE Wiz B 3 R EL At FE W 3038 (35 hn),~
receivables B (42,181) 48,751
Decrease in trade and other payables JFE T BR SR % H A B S SR IR R (147,184) (329,272)
Decrease in contract liabilities AHEERD (16,470) (15,202)
Cash generated from operations KEEBKERE 1,030,963 1,927,144
Interest received 24 F) B 135,408 204,900
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHBEERNEH (564,898) (103,008)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBHBRSFHE
ACTIVITIES 601,473 2,029,036
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) %4 18 &% 8 X(&)
for the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E —EF + - A=+—ALLFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ihg=g FET FHT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEZAFEFAEBZZ CREE
at fair value through profit or loss Fri8Z 8 5,437,511 5,451,901
Interest received from financial assets at JEAFEFAEZZEMEEZ
fair value through profit or loss 2 U F B 208,905 93,413
Dividend received from financial assets at I AFEHFFABRZZ EBEEZ
fair value through profit or loss SR gds! 24,796 59,650
Dividend received from financial assets at ﬁﬁﬂ\zﬁﬁ.ﬁ)\ﬁﬁﬁiﬁqi 52
fair value through other comprehensive CRIEEZEHRERE
income 2,323 2,919
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERAFEFABRZEREE
through profit or loss (6,573,886) (5,289,201)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERAFEFAEMEEREZ
through other comprehensive income ERMEE (1,268,108) (607,593)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BFEL&E
equipment (300,965) (239,343)
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, ~ YHE¥IZE « lFE k&EH 2 B[RS
plant and equipment (19,073) (36,274)
Additions to investment properties BEREWE (3,041,247) (218,170)
Payment of value-added-tax in relation to X [JERIE B8 E W H BAILET
the acquisition of an investment
property (529,713) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H&EWZE « BE & & 2 TS 30
and equipment 464 225
Decrease of bank deposits, net RITESEZRRD - JFEE 1,508,698 3,274,179
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED REEDH (A FEREFHE
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (4,550,295) 2,491,706
Financing activities BEEE 31
New bank borrowings raised HERITER 3,423,578 1,233,237
Proceeds from new bonds issued HEITESFZ TS HE — 2,326,899
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIETER (1,679,647) (765,589)
Redemption of bonds BOES (100,957) —
Dividends paid SN — (1,006,284)
Repayment of lease liabilities EBEHEaE (71,515) (65,988)
Finance costs paid 2 et & kA (559,991) (529,871)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM METHRERSFHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,011,468 1,192,404
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH HR&RESZEY (RL) M
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FE (2,937,354) 5,713,146
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ERzREoEE
RATE DIFFERENCE 582 (13,700)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT SHHSRRSZEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 7,112,561 1,413,115
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FARERREZEY > ARIT
END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTING ##KE®
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 4,175,789 7,112,561
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RME

General

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report. The Company is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the operation of department stores, property
development and investment in Hong Kong and United Kingdom.

The Company’s ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas (“Mr. Lau”), who is the Chairman and a non-executive
director of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of those
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("HKCQ") (Cap. 622).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for the financial assets and
liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) and
investment properties, which are measured at fair value. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$1.2 billion. The occurrence of net current liabilities was
mainly due to the increase in current portion of bank
borrowings as of 31 December 2020 as a bank loan of HK$6
billion from the existing 5-year banking facility of HK$8 billion
will become due within one year, and therefore being
classified as current liabilities. The Group has initiated and is
in the process of negotiating a refinancing of this existing
5-year HK$8 billion banking facility with the respective banks.
The directors of the Company consider that the Group will be
able to refinance its existing 5-year HK$8 billion banking
facility before its final maturity date in July 2021. In addition,
the directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
covering a period of 12 months from 31 December 2020.
Having considered the likelihood of a successful refinancing
of the existing 5-year HK$8 billion banking facility, the
Group's other existing financial resources and banking
facilities as well as the cash flows being generated from the
Group’s anticipated improving business operations, the
directors believe that the Group will be able to meet its
liabilities as and when they fall due within the next twelve
months from the date of the statement of financial position.
Accordingly, these financial statements of the Group have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
to the current year's presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

(i)

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the

current year:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9
(Amendments)

Conceptual Framework
for Financial
Reporting 2018

Definition of material

Definition of a business

Hedge accounting

Revised conceptual
framework for financial
reporting

In addition, the Group has early adopted the following

amendment to the accounting standards for the

accounting period commencing 1 January 2020:

HKFRS 16
(Amendments)

COVID-19-Related Rent

Concessions

The Group has assessed the impact of the adoption of

these amended standards and considered that there

was no significant impact on the Group's results and

financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 2. FESTBRSE (&)
(continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) #HREEZEE)
(i)  New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not (i) EBEMFERENZHETREE
yet effective FTE B HIREER
The Group has not early applied the following new and REEWERFPRANUATER
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are MERER 2 FE] RECIERT R
not yet effective: Ve T S B

Effective for accounting

New standards and amendments periods beginning on or after
R B2 &K
AT RARMEFT R SFHHEER
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
ERPIEREERNFE75R R a 4 —E-—F%—H—H
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1 January 2021
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 — Phase 2
(Amendments)
BRI RESERNEN FEGET MEEENE —F_RR —E-_—%—H—H

HERIZE 395 - BEMBREELE
7% BEAVBREENFIRLE
AP B|EERIF165E (BRTA)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Reference to the Conceptual 1 January 2022
Framework
BB WEAEREIR (BRI AR) S A SIESR —T-=F—HA—H
HKAS 16 (Amendments) Property, Plant and Equipment: 1 January 2022
Proceeds before Intended
Use
BB ERE 165 (BETA) ME - BB MR —E--F—-A—H
EDTEEREAIFTERIE
HKAS 37 (Amendments) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 1 January 2022
and Contingent Assets
BB EREI7R (BETA) B SABERIAREE —T-=F—HA—H
Annual Improvements to Improvement to HKFRSs 1 January 2022
2018-2020 Cycle
20185 FE 20204 A Bl 2 S S i BB W E LR 2 BUE —E--F—-A—H
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as 1 January 2023
Current or Non-current
ER GRS 15 (BRI A) HEESERMEIERE —ET=—=F—HA—H
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets To be announced
(Amendments) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
BERUMBMELNB 10K LEEGT REFHEEBEQRNAERE BRQM
HERIZE285% (fEFT ) ZENEESITANEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)  New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)
Management is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new standards and amendments
in the period of initial application. These new standards
and amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Consolidation (continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position where the
Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. The revenues are
presented as revenue in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

For direct sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred, being at the point the customer
purchases the goods at the department stores.

For income from concessionaire and "After Purchase Order”
("APQ") sales, the Group recognises commission income over
time which it is entitled and is based on certain percentage of
sales made by the concessionaires and the APO clients in
accordance with the terms of contracts. When they fail to
meet the minimum guarantee income in accordance with the
terms of certain contracts, the minimum guarantee amount is
recognised as income as it is the amount that the Group has
the right to receive.

For service income, it represents advertisement and
promotional income from customers and the revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation
when the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs.

A contract liability represents the Group'’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations including obligation to provide goods or services
to customers on complementary basis and customer’s options
to acquire additional goods or services for free or at a
discount in future granted under loyalty reward program, the
Group allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative standalone selling price basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price) (continued)

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a
customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group's performance
in transferring control of goods or services.

Accounting for unredeemed gift certificates and reward
points under customer loyalty program

The unredeemed gift certificates and reward points under
customer loyalty program is recorded as contract liabilities,
and reflect the value that is expected to be redeemed.

Breakage will need to be estimated considering the guidance
on constraining estimates of variable consideration as well as
the Group's historical experience with gift certificates and
loyalty points under loyalty reward program. Revenue is
recognised in regard to breakage in the proportion of gift
certificates and loyalty points redeemed in that period and
likely to result in the acceleration of revenue when the
possibility of redemption becomes remote.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
recognises the amount of consideration to which it is entitled
using the most likely amount, which better predicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group is entitled.

The amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable
that such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Variable consideration (continued)

The Group updates the estimated transaction price based on
issued statements to consignors and concessionaires
(including assessment of whether the variable consideration is
constrained) to represent fairly the circumstances present at
the end of the reporting period.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the
other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.

The Group acts as an agent for concessionaire and APO sales
as the Group does not control the specific goods provided by
the consignors and concessionaires before goods transferred
to a customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of properties under
construction.

Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than construction in progress) less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

[tems of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into
account their estimated residual value, using straight-line
method over the following useful lives:

Leasehold land and
buildings

Over the lease terms or 40 years

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of lease terms
or 10 years

Plant and machinery 5to 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5to 10 years

equipment

Motor vehicles 5years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(d)

(e)

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment property under
construction is capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment property under construction.

Investment properties are derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment properties are permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Such determination is made on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement, regardless of whether
the arrangements take the legal form of a lease.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
Leases (continued)

(f)

(i)

Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group, as a lessee,
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the Group's incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate that the Group would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a
similar economic environment with similar term and
condition.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the Group as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing; and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
Leases (continued)

()

(i)

(ii)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until
effective. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between the principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the followings:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentive
received;

. any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

The right-of-use assets are amortised over the shorter
of the assets’ useful lives and the lease terms on a
straight-line basis.

The Group measures the right-of-use assets that meet
the definition of investment properties using the fair
value model applied to its investment properties. Right-
of-use assets linked to owner occupied buildings are
measured applying the cost model relevant to that
specific class of property, plant and equipment.

All leases that meet the definition of investment
properties are classified as investment properties and
measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Leases (continued)

(i) Low value and short-term leases
Payments associated with all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss.

(iv) The Group as lessor
Rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
using closing rate. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

0]

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based
on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
before taxation because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

@i

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(e), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on the sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the end of the reporting period, unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the property over time rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
or liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

0]

0]

Taxation (continued)

Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred taxation on
investment properties, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. Accordingly,
deferred tax relating to investment properties are determined
on the basis of recovery through use.

The Group considers the lease as a single transaction in which
the asset and liability are integrally linked, so there is no net
temporary difference at inception. Subsequently, as
differences arise on settlement of the liability and the
amortisation of the leased asset, there will be a net temporary
difference on which deferred tax is recognised.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually, or when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

0]

(k)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

J on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI”)
as measured at FVPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI or designated as
FVOCI are measured at FVPL.

Financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset which is included in the “interest income and
investment gains/(losses)” line item.

Financial assets at FVOC/

Where the Group's management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or
loss as “interest income and investment gains/(losses)” when
the Group's right to receive payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss ("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9 (including trade and
other receivables, bank deposits and bank balances). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see note 30 for further details.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued))

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when the instrument is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over one year past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

m

(m)

(n)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, bonds and
trade and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.

TESTERBE (&)

(k)

m

(m)

(n)

R I A (#E)
EHEERKRATA(H)
BEBHEKASEZEHEE
ERMABBRERITER &5 BN
R R H A E RIE - HEERAE
BRI ROR IR HK A & -

Tt/ T A
TTETAVERITERKFI L Z B
BATERER RRERSHRE
MABHEATE PEENKRESE
BRI AR P RER o

S R MR '
AEEZERABERNRAGRA
SEZEFERE  EHLERE
HGHER  FEERZERBER
mEESHRENRER I ZER
BEER -

FE A R AR B HL At B Y RROR

JE A BR R B EL A FE AN SRR AR R R
FEBRRERERERNEER
BERATE - BRIFNFRALIFRS
Hif 21218 B A2 E - B RIEAT AR
RAEREMENFRBEEIERRBE

=
8

o

w5

5 BB R 7T 8RR B A
B o F R TR E o A
S35 (8 4 7 S 14 5T 48 DR A £
B SRR R 3K 5 AR -

EERAE

AU  ZRIEESEREE (A
FHEREEEGD ERERS
RHENEE) MERELNEERK
AFAZFEENRA  BEZF
BEBEARAIFHRERZLILE
Rk e

AEREMEERANIRELERER

BRMER -

FREREE AR L :M

fﬁb 17



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

(s)

(t)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised for benefits
accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker ("CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Executive
Directors of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for ECL. Trade and
other receivables are generally due for settlement within 30
days and therefore are all classified as current.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand and short-term bank deposits with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.

To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial
position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance
costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Government grant

Government grant is recognised at its fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with all
conditions attaching it and that the grant will be received.
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period necessary to match them with the
costs they are intended to compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Significant estimates and assumptions concerning the future may be
required in selecting and applying accounting methods and policies
in these financial statements. The Group bases its estimates and
assumptions on historical experience and various other assumptions
that it believes are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual
results may differ from these estimates or assumptions.

The following is a review of the more significant estimates and
assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements.

(a) Fair value of financial assets at FVPL and financial
assets at FVOCI

The fair value of financial assets at FVPL and financial assets at
FVOCI that are not traded in an active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement
to select a variety of methods and determine the fair values
primarily based on the purchase price paid by the Group, net
asset value and taking into account of the analysis of the
investees’ financial trends and results, risk profile, prospects,
industry trends and other factors. The key assumptions
adopted on projected cash flow are based on management's
best estimates.

(b) Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 14, the completed investment property
and investment property under development are stated at fair
value based on valuation performed by independent firm of
professional surveyors. For the Group's investment property
under development, the fair value reflects the expectations of
market participants of the value of the property when it is
completed, less deductions for the costs required to
complete the project and appropriate adjustments for profit
and risk. The valuation and all key assumptions used in the
valuation should reflect market conditions at the end of each
reporting period. The key assumptions include relevant
market rents, capitalisation rates, estimated total construction
costs for the proposed development and the cost that have
been expended on the development works in arriving at the
market value of the property.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

3.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements 3.

(continued)

(b) Valuation of investment properties (continued)
For the Group's completed investment property, the fair value
relied on the capitalisation of income approach as its primary
method, supported by the direct comparison method.
Management also determines fair value based on active
market prices and adjusted if necessary for any difference in
nature, location or conditions of the specific asset, and uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less
active markets. These methodologies are based upon
estimates of future results and a set of assumptions specific to
the property to reflect its tenancy and cash flow profile. The
fair value of the completed investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in light of
current market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a
similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in
respect of the property.

Revenue 4.
Revenue represents the amount received and receivable for goods

sold by the Group to the customers (net of discounts), income from
concessionaire sales, income from APO sales, service income and
rental income during the year, and is analysed as follows:
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Recognised at a point in time: EEERBRER
Sales of goods — direct sales ERHEE —8EHEE 687,039 1,212,022

Recognised over time: BEZ R

Income from concessionaire sales RAFTERBEE WA 919,561 1,698,204
Income from APO sales KEHERTEHE ZIRA 267,826 461,455
Service income ARSI A 70,519 129,404
Revenue from contracts with customers RKEBEZFPAHRHWA 1,944,945 3,501,085
Rental income el A 48,079 40,947
Total Revenue FEN PN 1,993,024 3,542,032

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources
which arise from contracts with customers:

For direct sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control of the
goods is transferred, being at the point the customer purchases the
goods at the department stores. Payment of the transaction price is
due immediately at the point the customer purchases the goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

Revenue (continued) 4. WA (48)
For income from concessionaire and APO sales, the concessionaires MR BE T EEREEERTEHEWAM
and consignors will pay the Group at the higher of minimum 5 RAERERFEEKIRESOKRTIR
guarantee commission and certain percentage of their sales in FEREFEFAELETHEEE L (URSE
accordance with the terms of contracts. The Group receives the RE)ZNEE AEBRRETEBRT
entire sales proceeds from ultimate customers on behalf of the ERERRKBEE2EUKRENEEPRS5IE
concessionaires and consignors and reimburse the sales proceeds WHRHIBR A SR AE K IHE S RIARE
back to concessionaires and consignors after deducting the TRAFZBRTER -
commission income.
Segment information 5. 2HESR
The Group's operating activities are attributable to a single BEE B BREENFERLEHH]
operating segment under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” which REBNEE THHEBRE—KLEHE
focuses on the operation of department stores, property EEBMERFEINBEENLE Mm%
development and investment in Hong Kong and the United BREKRE ZEEDBDBBEREES
Kingdom. This operating segment has been identified on the basis B 7 s 2 BI (N MY SE2F BB ) e @ 5T IR
of internal management reports prepared in accordance with REMANERRERT  YHEELE
accounting policies that conform to HKFRSs as disclosed in note 2, REE ([FE2LERESE ) (BIARQTBIT
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision makers Ex)THEH X EREAKETHEN
("“CODM") (i.e. the executive directors of the Company). The CODM AEBERBUADTEFERNRF @ LEH
regularly reviews revenue analysis and profit for the year of the BRAERE - At WERGHERLEHR
Group as a whole to make decisions about resource allocation. AN E 51 53 BB & Y o
Accordingly, no separate segment information other than entity
level information is prepared.
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and the United REBEEBUREERER - R _TZ
Kingdom. The Group's non-current assets are based in Hong Kong, TF+ZA=+—H BuURBEEHEZ
except the completed investment property in the United Kingdom 2,648,559,0007% LB % TR EWES - K
of HK$2,648,559,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: The Group's EBEMEREBEENGEARE (ZZ—H
operations are located in Hong Kong and the non-current assets are F o AREENEBURNES  MIERBDE
all based in Hong Kong). The Group has no customers that ERHUEELREM) - RAFE - AEE
contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for the WHREFERMBRBRNEEARAI0%(ZF
current year (2019: Same). —NEF R -
Other income, gains and losses 6. HA - s REE
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Management fee income FIRBIA 78,887 76,463
Credit card recharge ERREAD 9,501 25,295
Net exchange gain VRIE H U Es 45,918 20,531
Government subsidies related to Tk E 0w ([COVID-19]) 18R
Coronavirus disease (“COVID-19") BT & B 37,367 —
COVID-19 related rent concessions COVID-191H TR 2 1E2H 3,224 —
Others Hitb 43,981 24,876
218,878 147,165
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Interest income and investment gains/(losses) 7. FEBWARKREKRZE (BE)
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest income on bank deposits HR1TE BFER 2 M EUA 105,605 201,670
Dividend income from financial assets at ZAFEFTABZZ ERMEE L
FVPL P S A 24,796 59,650
Dividend income from financial assets at ~ IZAFEFTAHMEZE YT 2 £ 6
FVOCI BEZBREBA 2,323 2,919
Interest income from financial assets/ BRATEFABRZEHBEE
liabilities at FVPL BEZMEWA 190,073 72,086
Fair value change of financial assets/ RATEAABRZEMEE/
liabilities at FVPL BEZAFEE (333,758) 403,851
Net exchange gain of financial assets at A {EFT AHM 2 E W2 7
FVOCI BE 2B W F R 45,520 —
34,559 740,176
Finance costs 8. ®MEMK
2020 2019
—EEF —ET-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
Interest expenses on: UTHEB 2 FEXH
Bank borrowings RITEE 252,538 340,011
Bonds E% 324,037 266,956
Lease liabilities HEaE 10,069 12,355
586,644 619,322
Less: Amounts capitalised in construction &l : TETRE R TEELEME L
in progress and investment BERfbe
property under development (217,330) (254,084)
369,314 365,238

Borrowing costs capitalised are interest expenses incurred for
financing the development of qualifying assets. The capitalisation
rate used to determine the amounts of borrowing costs eligible for

the capitalisation is 2.7% (2019: 3.5%) per annum.

BEERMMZBERRRRBERTHGER
BEZBEMEENNSXE - AREE
BERENENEERAZ B2 ERE
FRER2TI%(ZF—NF : 35%) °
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Taxation 9. ¥HE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THETT
Current tax: REAFSIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax %ﬁé" MIFH 192,184 334,021
United Kingdom Corporate Income Tax EEI TS 1,526 —
193,710 334,021
Overprovision in prior years: BEFEREZREIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBMISH (14,576) (30,546)
Deferred tax credit (note 25) AR TR0 (M 5E25) (70,681) (27,975)
108,453 275,500
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated BEBFEBIIRBENEFE 2 A5 ERH

assessable profit for both years.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the United Kingdom, the
Group is subject to corporate income tax at 19% on the estimated
assessable profit of the subsidiary which carries on business in the
United Kingdom (2019: Nil).

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

AR 16.5%515F -

REEBEERAY  AEEARESE
0 8 7 I 2 R A B SR BL )
BI9%E RSP EFER(ZE—N
Fom) o

AEERBREABEIEMEEKGE R
FrRBRELR& A < RN -

2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit before taxation B 75 B g A 246,963 2,166,176
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BREBNEHEFEZHIA 40,749 357,419
Tax effect of different tax rates of EEMANEERERE S ENNE R
subsidiaries operating in other AR R 2 IR 2
jurisdictions 201 —
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARTWA 2 HIAT 2
purposes (35,891) (109,228)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for ~ TAIMFHHZ 2 FHIBFE
tax purposes 79,084 38,480
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses FARAARRNIEEE 2TIE
previously not recognised A (1,376) (1,327)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised THERMIBEREE 2 RIBT £ 5,744 21,278
Tax effect of temporary differences not THEAERFUEZE I RWIBLE
recognised 39,132 —
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBZEE (14,576) (30,546)
Tax effect of recognition of previously BREARERNEEER
unrecognised temporary differences ZTIER 2 1,369 —
Tax effect of recognition of previously BRERRERO T IEEE
unrecognised tax losses 2B E (5,818) —
Others EAb (165) (576)
Taxation for the year REZRIE 108,453 275,500
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10. Profit before taxation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

10. BR®BLATEF

2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Profit before taxation has been arrived at ~ BRFEBIEFIS 1k (GFA) T
after charging/(crediting): HH ¢
Directors’ remuneration (note 11) FE2Me (BIsE11) 8,956 11,036
Staff costs, excluding directors’ RESMEINZ ETHA
remuneration
Salaries and wages HNE & 203,774 211,949
Retirement benefits scheme RIREFFEIHFORE W E THRK
contributions, net of forfeited
contributions for staff 8,322 8,725
Total staff costs 88 TR 221,052 231,710
Auditor's remuneration % BRAD BN & 2,287 2,376
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERZEZFTE
equipment 252,336 271,384
(Reversal of rental expenses)/rental AEAENTER 2 (Hexz
expenses relating to variable lease BmE), e
payments (9,461) 62,811
Gain on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWZ « BFE L&EE 2 W=
equipment (447) (168)
Cost of inventories recognised as WRAEXHZFEKR
expenses 519,387 888,869
Provision/(reversal of provision) for trade & U B 2 M L {th i W TB B g,
and other receivables, net (Bm@) - F8 23 (11
Provision for write-down of obsolete WOROE S 17 E BB (A& KAR)
inventories (included in cost of sales) 93 22
125
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

11. Directors’ and employees’ remuneration 1. ESkEEHS
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the FRNESHHEERBBERN MR R
applicable Listing Rules and HKCO, are as follows: BRNRGOIHE - MamT
Contributions
to retirement
Directors’  Salaries and benefits
fees allowances Bonus* scheme Total
BRER
EEWE HFeREH A HE 3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T T FHT FHT
For the year ended HE-Z-EH
31 December 2020 +-A=+—-HLEE
Executive directors BITES
Ms. Lau Kam Shim 245 %/MA 200 3,160 — 18 3,378
Mr. Lau Kam Sen 2SEREE 200 3,160 — 18 3,378
Non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Bl EE 1,000 — — — 1,000
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William HEELEE 200 - - - 200
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy AEELL 200 — — — 200
Independent non-executive BIYFHTES
directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon MOREE & 200 — — — 200
Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham AEHREE 200 - - - 200
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung AR EE 200 — — — 200
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung E Sk Sk 200 — — — 200
2,600 6,320 — 36 8,956
For the year ended BE-Z-NE
31 December 2019 +-A=+—-HLEE
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Lau Kam Shim 25%vE 200 4,200 — 18 4,418
Mr. Lau Kam Sen ASREE 200 4,200 — 18 4,418
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Rlgm e 1,000 — — — 1,000
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William MEEEE 200 — — — 200
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy 2TELL 200 — — — 200
Independent non-executive BYKHTES
directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon MIEEE K A4 200 — — — 200
Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham Vatit St 200 — — — 200
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung FrRRA LA 200 — — — 200
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung 3k St 200 — — — 200
2,600 8,400 — 3 11,036
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their FRRTEEHES HESERAR B RASE
services in connection with management of the affairs of the EEREE I RUERFE 2 ESHE -
Company and the Group.
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for FIERTESME DRBIEAERRRIZ
their services as directors of the Company. EERMERE 2 ME -
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11. Directors’ and employees’ remuneration

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

(continued)
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

* The bonus was determined with reference to performance and market

trends.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the years.

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020, two of them (2019: two) were directors of the
Company whose remuneration are disclosed above. The remaining
three (2019: three) are employees of the Group, details of whose
remuneration are as follows:

1. EEREEMS (E)

BB FARTEEMENEEER/AR
AEEMEHRE M -

*

ABRNEEXERTIHEY -

RER R EEEMRXFABREEMH

B2

BHE_Z-_ZEFE+_A=+—BHILFE
TEBRAERESFALFT ME(ZE—H
F WA BARAES  HrBERNLEX
WEBI=R(ZF—NF: =R)AA
AEERE  FEZMEFBEEHIOT

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Employees: BE
Salaries, allowances and other benefits Fe FMEREMEF 5,071 5,700
Retirement benefits scheme RORAE FIFH B K
contributions 54 54
Performance related incentive BRI RS
payments 275 —
5,400 5,754
The emoluments of the remaining three (2019: three) were within the ER="F(ZE—hhEFE =Z2)5aH AT
following bands: ZEHMNFATEE :
2020 2019
—BoRfF —E-NEF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7t & 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7t £ 2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T & 2,500,000 7T 1 —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T & 3,000,000 7T — 1

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no remuneration was
paid by the Group to the directors of the Company or the three
(2019: three) highest paid employees as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

BE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE -
AEBYERAARREEFL =2 ("F—N
FrZR)EREHEENME - URSIE
EMAREERERMARNER 2 BE

BERLAE(E

HRERRERRLF

ﬂ’\

&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

12.

13.

Dividends 12. RE
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR
Dividends paid in cash and recognised as  F AR KT RER B D KA

distributions during the year: R
No final dividend for the prior year: R FE AR AR S

(2019: HK cents 37.0 per share) (ZZ=—N%F : §37.081) — 555,709
No interim dividend for the current year: ARG E I AR E.

(2019: HK cents 30.0 per share) (ZZ=—N%F : 8830.081L) — 450,575
Total #ET — 1,006,284
Note: Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the directors of the BEE : EMEERE - ARAREFRETERIRMT

Company resolved not to recommend payment of a final dividend (2019: REARB(ZZE—NF : HA) °
Same).
Earnings per share 13. BRER
Calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable RARHEA NERBRERNREERFTY
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: RIBATBURAHE -
2020 2019
BB —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Earnings: 2R
Earnings for the purpose of basic and AR EESREARBEERT 2
diluted earnings per share A7 138,510 1,890,676
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-hF
‘000 ‘000
TR F &
Number of shares KRG EE
Weighted average number of ordinary RETEERERNREERT
shares for the purpose of basic and jat AR INRE 9B
diluted earnings per share 1,501,916 1,501,916
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREERT HK$0.09 HK$1.26
The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December H=E EETA=T—HIEFED
2020 equals to the basic earnings per share as there are no potential lﬂxﬁﬁ%ﬁj FMERGRERER - THER
dilutive ordinary shares to issue during the year (2019: Same). FRORBEMEENHILTAR (=T

F AR -
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14. BREYHE

14. Investment properties

Completed Investment
Investment  property under
property development Total
ERIREYSE EEREWHE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-NF—-H—H — 5,132,000 5,132,000
Additions NE — 382,736 382,736
Adjustments RS — 79,223 79,223
Fair value change NEEZ — (173,959) (173,959)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—N%F
+=—A=+—H — 5,420,000 5,420,000
Additions NE — 342,560 342,560
Acquisition of a property BE—IEYHE 2,814,712 — 2,814,712
Adjustments FEE — (88,617) (88,617)
Translation differences hEER (2,040) — (2,040)
Fair value change NEEE (164,113) (253,943) (418,056)
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZF
+—_A=+—H 2,648,559 5,420,000 8,068,559

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The additions to the completed investment property for the year
ended 31 December 2020 represented the acquisition of a property
located in London, the United Kingdom.

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value. The
investment properties were revalued by Cushman & Wakefield
Limited and Cushman and Wakefield Debenham Tie Leung Limited,
independent qualified valuers, who hold recognised relevant
professional qualification and have recent experience in the
locations and segments of the investment properties valued, at 31
December 2020 on an open market value basis. For all investment
properties, their current use equates to the highest and best use.

Fair value of the completed investment property as at 31 December
2020 is derived using the income approach based on recent
comparable rental transactions in the relevant market.

Fair value of the investment property under development as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2020 is derived using the residual
method. The valuation is based on the assumption that the property
had already been completed at the valuation date, which takes into
account the estimated total construction costs for the proposed
development and the cost that have been expended on the
development works plus the developer’s estimated profit and
margin for risk.

AEBARRESWASAEAREERE
MZEEMETHENMBMEERRA
RPERAFE  XOBERABRRKREY
e

BE-F-FF+-A=+-ALEEN
ERTRANHIEDBEUNERRH
B -

AEBARNFEFEERENE - BUA
BERAEEMRERIER AR RSBRIK
BRERATARAR EAEARNHEEE
EEMPEMENREMEWHE LR
HZA RS BREREMER T
TEF A=+ —HUARHEMISERETT
Bt -HABEREVENS  &EMNRE
ERARZENEERMERME -

RIE-ZEF+_A=+—HWERITE
BWEZ NTETREDAAE M S8 A
LLHEERSFERRAFETHEMEE -

RZE-NF+ZA=+—HEZZE=ZE
F+-A=T—BENERKREMEZAT
BERABREEREE - HEDIERERZRZY
¥RFHEERT - EEERIHTES
TRNBEIKACRERIECELEN
BN - AN _ER R ERE R E b o

AEERREERAR :ﬁ%&’\
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14. Investment properties (continued) 14.
The following table gives information about how the fair values of
investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Fair value Valuation technique(s) and
hierarchy key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)
AV

N
LRRE REAENIERGAZE BEAEEBENBAZE

BREWRE (H])
TREFIMARTRANEATE(EHE
17 R RAERBALE) WERURA
TESREE REATFESR  ATE
HEERATENBESHOTRERES
B—EZ@-

Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value

EZBENBASBEQTPENEE

Investment property under development: HK$5,420 million (2019: HK$5,420 million)
ERREWE 5420HBET(ZE-NF 5420888 T)

Level 3 Income approach
F=/ The key inputs are:
WA
FTEHALHY
(1) Capitalisation rate; and Capitalisation rates:
B E: R AR E
Office: 3.125% (2019: 3.125%)
WAE :3125% (ZF—ALEF ¢ 3.125%)
Retail: 4.000% (2019: 4.000%)
TE 1 4000%(ZF—NF : 4000%)
(2) Market rent Monthly market rent:
miHHE FRAWSES

Office: HK$38 p.s.f. (2019: HK$39 p.s.f.)
WAE: BTHRIBET
(Z2-NF: FHRI9ET)

Retail: HK$47 p.s.f.(2019: HK$58 p.s.f)
TE BTHRITER
(ZZ—NF: BFHRBET)

Estimated project development cost of the property is
HK$5,829 million (2019: HK$5,829 million)
EEREEROYERARSSOBEET
(ZZ—NF 58988%T)

Developer's estimated profit and margin for risk: 10%
(2019: 10%)

P ) B RSB R - 10%

(ZF—NF 10%)

Completed investment property: HK$2,649 million (2019: Nil)
BRIRENE  2609BBET (ZF-—NF  8)

The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair
value.

AR RS - RTESE -

The higher the rent per square foot, the higher the
fair value.

STARELES  ATELS -

The higher the estimated project development
cost, the lower the fair value.

BERBERRALS A TPEME -

The higher the developer's estimated profit and
margin for risk, the lower the fair value.

REFNGEEFRNERRRES - D FEBE -

Level 3 Income approach
E= The key inputs are:
WK
FTEHALH
(1) Capitalisation rate; and Capitalisation rates:
B E: R B
Office: 4.200%. (2019: N/A)
AR 4200%(ZZF—NE : TEA)
(2) Market rent Monthly market rent:
ik 2k BAMBHES

£9.0p.sf. (2019: N/A)
FFAROEE(ZZ—NF: TEH)

Details of the pledge of assets are set out in note 32.

The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair
value.

ERfet ke A FEBIE-

The higher the rent per square foot, the higher the
fair value.

FFIRELHER  AFEES -

BEREERMFBENMEI2
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. e N
15. Property, plant and equipment 15. Y¥ - - BERRE
Store and Furniture,
Leasehold land leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor Construction
and building impr hinery uif vehicles in progress Total
HEL EHREE B BERE
)3 &3 MELE BER#EE &L RE ERIR @t
(note) (note)
(FzE) (B zE)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHT Fign FiET FHT Fign FiET
cosT 2%
At 1 January 2019 R-Z-N5—A-R 2,538,642 891,203 244,025 451,863 14,635 4,053,700 8,194,068
Additions FE - 19,861 2,899 21,55 802 367,762 412,880
Adjustments HE — — — — — (79,223 (79,223)
Disposals e - (306) 99 (466) (954) - (1,825)
At 31 December 2019 R=Z-NE+=A=+-R 2,538,642 910,758 246,825 472953 14,483 4,302,039 8,525,900
Additions FE - 15,621 332 48419 3443 342,562 413365
Adjustments BE — — — — — 88,617 88,617
Disposals HE - - - (934) (2,540) - (3,474)
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-FE+=A=+-R 2,538,642 926,379 250,145 520438 15,386 4773418 9,024,408
DEPRECIATION i 4
At 1 January 2019 R-ZB-NE—A-B 1,206539 356,175 167,376 221437 13,205 - 1,964,752
Provided for the year ERBE 47,975 150,589 13,448 58,428 944 — 271,384
Disposals HE — (306) 99) (409) (954) - (1,768)
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-AF+-A=+-A 1,254,514 506,458 180,725 279,456 13,215 — 2,234,368
Provided for the year ENRIE 47976 137,376 14,299 51,645 1,040 - 252,336
Disposals HE — — — 917) (2,540) — (3,457)
At 31 December 2020 R=Z=FE+=A=+-R 1,302,490 643834 195,024 330,184 1,715 - 2,483,247
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-FE+=A=+-R 1,236,152 282,545 55121 190,254 3671 4773418 6,541,161
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-NE+=A=+-A 1,284,128 404,300 66,100 193,497 1,268 4,302,239 629153
Notes: B
Included in construction in progress are borrowing costs capitalised during the EREIRRREFAEBEALZEBEEXNAN A
year amounting to approximately HK$114,935,000 (2019: HK$120,911,000). 114,935,000/ 7T (= Z — L4 : 120,911,000 7T) °
()  Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (i) REESHERRRABRZLHE
financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the GEMBRAKRZUTHEESR
following amounts relating to leases: BB B %R -
2020 2019
—g-ef | —TAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Leasehold land — completed METH —BRINYE
properties 953,286 978,260
Leasehold land — construction in MELH —ERETE
progress 3,328,564 3,400,967
Store and leasehold improvements BN EMERE 196,750 274,160
4,478,600 4,653,387
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15. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 15. M¥ - BRERZE (&)
()  Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of () REECHERRRABRZEEHE

financial position (continued)

(%)

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current TED 86,574 76,144
Non-current IERH 136,697 210,876
223,271 287,020
(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (i) NEEEEZREMZERERARE
profit or loss and other comprehensive income RreH

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

AEAMEMEEEERZTIA

comprehensive income shows the following amounts relating THHEEAM 28 -
to leases:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FHAEEEREXH
assets
Leasehold land — completed HELH —BRTHWE
properties 24,974 24,974
Leasehold land — construction in HELH —ERTRE
progress 72,403 72,402
Store and leasehold improvements JEf R E YRS 85,176 84,313
182,553 181,689

Addition of right-of-use assets amounted to HK$7,766,000
during the year (2019: Nil).

In 2020, the cash outflow related to principal elements of
lease liabilities and finance cost were HK$71,515,000 (2019:
HK$65,988,000) and HK$10,069,000 (2019: HK$12,355,000)
respectively.

FANBFEREEERT,766,000%

T(ZF—NF E&)-

RZE-ZEF - HEGELRS
&ﬂéﬁk$$ﬁf§2ﬁé,ﬁtﬂ J
#71,515,0008 L (ZZF — LF :
65,988,0007% 7T ) 210,069,000 7T

(ZZ =N 112,355,000/ 7T) °
Details of the pledge of assets are set out in note 32. BB EEMFS - HRMEE32 -
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16.

17.

Inventories 16. F&
2020 2019
—g-ef | -—TAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Finished goods IR 25,917 38,644
Less: provision for obsolete inventories OB SR (122) (29)
25,795 38,615
Trade and other receivables 17. BEWRR R HtfEWRKIE
2020 2019
—g=¥F | -—T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FET
Trade receivables, gross JEULBR SR - 4A%E 27,560 37,322
Less: Provision for expected credit loss B TEERE E B EE (2,224) (2,201)
25,336 35,121
Prepayments SEEREE N 25,907 30,348
Deposits paid [=ANE & 1,325 2,847
Interest receivable JiE WL R B 1,267 31,070
Value-added-tax ("VAT") recoverable AR B EFR ([EEF])
(note) (FHEE) 527,506 —
Others Efth 63,537 3,425
644,878 102,811
Note: The VAT recoverable arose from the acquisition of a property in London in Mz : POROAESEREENRH T I4FRER -
November 2020 and the property is disclosed in note 14 as completed “EET-AERBBEN-EYE - WE
investment property. BERTREYE -
As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables from contracts with R-ZZE-_ZTF+_A=+—H KkBEEBEE

customers amounted to HK$27,560,000 (2019: HK$37,322,000).

The Group's retail sales to customers are mainly made in cash,
through debit card or credit card payments. Its major trade
receivables arising from credit card sales which are normally settled
in one to two business days in arrears and the rental income
receivables are normally settled 30 days in arrears. The following is
an aged analysis of trade receivables net of provision for expected

A 48 JE UL BR 3 527,560,000 T (— &
— N5 ¢ 37,322,000 7T) °

AEERBEFFENTEHETZNR
T BERERIEARNAR - REEHT
EREWERKE —RR —EME TR
MOERRHEERBER=THAKREE
WA o AT REEIER (NHRTEHE

ERABBREBERRAHEIN 2K D

credit loss presented based on the invoice date: T
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
0-30 days 0OHZE30H 20,736 27,989
31-60 days 31THZE60H 3,394 4,335
61-90 days 61THZE9H 498 1,703
Over 90 days HBiB90H 708 1,094
25,336 35,121

FEERRERRAR :Aiih
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17. Trade and other receivables (continued) 17.

PR WSt B 0 e Lt P LT R OB (48D

Movement in the provision for expected credit loss on trade EUWRSEPEERABE 22T
receivables
2020 2019
—E-%F —NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHEx THETT
Balance at beginning of the reporting s BRYAEER
period 2,201 2,212

Provision/(reversal of provision) for

ERREHEERAEE (EE)

expected credit loss recognised 23 (11
Balance at the end of the reporting s R

period 2,224 2,201
The fair value of the trade and other receivables approximates its JFEE WA R R R L At JE M R TE 2 A B B AR

carrying value.

E{ERE

18. Financial assets at fair value through other 18. RAVEFARMEARSE ZE
comprehensive income MEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Non-current assets REBEE
Financial assets at FVOCI: RAFEF AR MEERZEZ
CREE
— Equity securities listed overseas RgIN EmRE 932,781 243,621
— Unlisted equity securities (note) — FEETRRZE (Fi5E) 387,500 389,500
1,320,281 633,121

Note:

Financial assets at FVOCI comprise equity securities which are not held for trading,
and which the Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise in
this category. These are strategic investments and the Group considers this

classification to be more relevant.

At 31 December 2020, certain financial assets at FVOCI were
pledged as security for short-term loan facilities granted to the
Group. Details of the pledge of assets are set out in note 32.
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19. Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through 19. ROFEFTABRZEREE

profit or loss =N
2020 2019
—BIRF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Non-current assets FnBEE
Financial assets at FVPL: BATEFABRZEREE
— Club debentures — BES 16,538 15,871
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at FVPL: BERFEFAEBRCEGREE
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE ETRE 891,939 756,990
— Equity securities listed overseas AN RS 54,701 750,450
— Listed debt securities (note a) — FWfES (Mita) 1,815,394 1,203,759
— Money market fund — BEBEm5ES 1,542,853 111,960
— Unlisted hedge funds —FLEMEFES — 18,666
— Unlisted investment funds — MR EES 430,008 146,721
— Unlisted debt securities —3IEEWmES — 234,583
— Cross currency and interest rate — XX EB A== 5
swaps (notes d and e) (KfsEd Kee) — 51,738
— Unlisted equity-linked notes (note ¢) — JE ET AR EMAE S (M atc) 76,304 31,215
— Warrant — RIRE 54 —
— Target redemption forward contracts ~ — B REEE & &
(note f) (By3ED) 3,232 —
4,814,485 3,306,082
Current liabilities mEEE
Financial liabilities at FVPL: BAFEFAEGZDRIAE
— Interest rate swaps (note d) R (FaEd) 220,807 —
— Target redemption forward contract — BEEEEERBE4
(note f) (B3R 29 —
— Written put options (note b) — RUH EARE (M 3Eb) — 12
220,836 12
Notes: B &
(a) The listed debt securities mainly represent investment in corporate bonds (a) THEFEERESE  PEKIINK T
which are listed in Hong Kong, China and Singapore. ZEEBHKRE -
(b) The written put options are derivative financial instruments. Details of the (b) RHHEBSRITET R - RUAHIEANFS
written put options are as follows: mr
Notional
Underlying variables Exercise price amount Expiry date
HEZH TEE ZHLH EHA
At 31 December 2019
RZZE-NAF+=A=+—H
1 Month GBP Put US$ Call 1.2900 GBP 09 January 2020
18 B S8R, TR 5 million —ZT-TF—-ANA
SHBRE

FREREE AR L :M
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19. Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)

O]

19. RDFEFABRBZERMEE
8E (&)

As at 31 December 2020, the unlisted equity-linked notes were (© RZZ_TF+_A=+—H  FLmRE
denominated in United States Dollars (“US$") with a principal amount of HinEHFUET(ETD RBET(AETD
US$7,000,000 and Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"”) with a principal amount of =HE » AN4& %8 A7,000,000% 7T & 22,000,000
HK$22,000,000 (2019: the unlisted equity-linked notes were denominated in BL(ZE—NF  LLETHE A28 A
US$ with principal amount of US$4,000,000). They had a tenor of 3 to 4 4,000,0003€ 7T 3F E T IRIERMHE S ) - ZF
months (2019: 4 to 5 months). The unlisted equity-linked notes were linked BHFHAIZAMERA (ZZE—NF : 455
with shares listed (the “Underlying Shares”) in the United Kingdom and A) o I EmRREENES KR R EE (=
Hong Kong (2019: the United Kingdom). The final redemption amount at T-NF  EEDH LG (THEERK ]
the maturity date was with reference to the performance of the share price B o REEIAMNSKKBERSE2EIEE
of the Underlying Shares. The maturity dates of the unlisted equity-linked BHOKRERR R-_Z_TF+=-A
notes outstanding as at 31 December 2020 were within one year of the =+t BHUARREGRARMBIRRARZA - kL
date of the consolidated statement of financial position, and therefore TRERBERZHBMEE—FR - BitD
classified as current assets (2019: Same). BARBEE(ZZT—NAF: R) -
Major terms of the interest rate swaps are as follows: (d) MRz EFZEROT -
Pay fixed
Notional amount Period interest rate Receive floating interest rate
XFEE

EHRSH Ll FEZ R =R W BT B Rl B 2 R =&
At 31 December 2020
R=ZZB=-ZF

+=ZA=+—-8
HK$500,000,000 23 July 2019 to 23 April 2025 1.05% p.a.— 1-month HIBOR

each contract —T-hFLtA=+=H 1.64% p.a. —(EAAZEARITRERS
& 3R4A #7500,000,0007# 7T E-Z-RFMA-+=H FE1052E

FRI164E

HK$300,000,000 4 Mar 2020 to 4 Mar 2025 1.15% p.a. 1-month HIBOR
300,000,000 7T R EF=ANBE_ZE_RF=HAMA FB1.15E —(EAAZEBRITRERS
At 31 December 2019
R=ZB—-hF

+=ZA=+—8H
HK$500,000,000 15 July 2019 to 5 September 2024 1.48% p.a.— 1-month HIBOR

each contract —E-NFLtATRHAE-ZEZWENARAA 1.65% p.a. —(ARAZEARITRERS

&35 A #9500,000,0007% 7T

The Group will pay fixed interest on the notional amount quarterly and
receive floating interest on the notional amount monthly based on the
interest rate swaps contracts (2019: Same).

These interest rate swap contracts can be terminated by the Group at any
time before the maturity date (2019: Same).
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19. Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through

20.

BAFEFABEZERMEE

profit or loss (continued) 8E(E)
(e) Major terms of the cross currency swap contracts are as follows: (e) RXEBEBZ EEBEFTAT
Pay fixed Receive fixed
Notional amount Maturity interest rate interest rate Exchange rate
ZXNEERE WER & E R B
EEEH ZI8A Z R = 2 F = Ex
At 31 December 2019
R=FE-NAF+=A=t+—H
US$50,000,000/HK$387,500,000 26 June 2025 4.32% p.a.— 4.5% p.a. US$1: HK$7.75
each contract ZE-REANAZTAHR 4.38% p.a. FR45E 12T R7.75%87T
H3R4A#950,000,000% 7T, FRANEE
387,500,000/% 7T FBE4.382

These cross currency swap contracts can be terminated by the Group at any

time before the maturity date.

AR EE R AR HI H 2 BT BRI IR AL 1E 3%
EXNEBEHREN -

G} Major terms of the target redemption forward contracts are as follows: (] BEERERMANZEZERNT
Notional amount Maturity date Strike price Knock-out price Leverage
ZELHE Ep = TEE BIBRE 'R
At 31 December 2020
R-ZB-ZHF+-H=+—8H
Buy GBP Call USD Put GBP113,183,000/ 7 December 2021 to GBP/USD GBP/USD 2.0

Sell USD Call GBP Put USD 287,185,000 29 December 2021 1.25t0 1.29 1.35t0 1.37
EARGEREETRE 113183000 —T-—F+_-A+AH e ET e ET
R/ EHRETIREHERh R E-T-_—F+_H 1.25%1.29 1.35%1.37
287,185,0003 7T —+AhH
At 31 December 2020, certain financial assets at FVPL were pledged RZZEZZFES_A=+—H BTERQ

as security for short-term loan facilities granted to the Group. Details
of the pledge of assets are set out in note 32.

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

Bank deposits represent bank deposits with original maturity date of
over three months and within one year. The balance as at 31
December 2019 carried fixed interest rates ranging from 2.83% to
3.55% per annum. Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
carried interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.01% to
3.2% per annum (2019: 0.01% to 3.78% per annum).

20.

FEFFABZZ ©REEC FHEIRAEER
RYAKEEHERRE - FRAEERN
BN IRES2 -

ReRASEEBYUREBITER
T?—:TA
BOTHERAERTIHABBE=EAR
R—FRRITEBRTER - RZT—NF
T AT HIZEHERETFF X283
[BZE3S5EE - B RBESEEYWUAR
IRITEBFIIRBITMISHEE - FF
ENTF00IEEIE(ZE—NF : FFIE
NTF0.01EZEIT8E) -

HREREEERL T :M
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20.

21.

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

RERBEEBMURRBTES

(continued) T—?—?ﬁ’\ (48)
Included in bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are the RITEMERARB e RReEEBYEE
following significant amounts denominated in currencies other than T EE TR EE UGG
the functional currencies of the respective Group entities: HHEKRNIE
2020 2019
—E-FE —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHEx THETT
uss$ e 470,295 2,752,628
GBP 7 11,670 42,645
RMB ARE 30,276 27,481
Trade and other payables 21. ENRAREMENRE
2020 2019
—g-%F —Ehg
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Trade payables FERTRR TR 40,799 43,674
Concessionaire sales payables FE AT EMEIHE KA 245,067 347,085
APO sales payables FERIHE BT EIHE IR 61,338 94,262
Rental deposits received BEWHELS 14,785 16,193
Accrued expenses st 161,590 168,873
Interest payables FEAT S 79,286 90,974
Deferred rental income JRIEFE & A 32,934 —
Others Hit 26,450 65,214
662,249 826,275
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based UTARREARENERREEREH
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: 25 2RO
2020 2019
g 32 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHEx THETT
0-30 days OHZ30H 32,762 16,128
31-60 days 31THZE60H 4,993 23,996
61-90 days 61HE90H 178 2
Over 90 days A0 H 2,866 3,548
40,799 43,674

The average credit period of trade payables, concessionaire sales
payables and APO sales payables is within 45 days from the invoice
date. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that payables are settled within the credit time frame.
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22. Contract liabilities 22. EHNEE
2020 2019
—E-EH i
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Gift certificates 2% 114,881 134,181
Deferred advertising income R E S I A 2,064 2,524
Reward points under customer loyalty B RBE T 2 ES RE

program 4,879 1,589
121,824 138,294
Deferred advertising Reward points under

Gift certificates income customer loyalty program

-t BERESRA BHRBAEAT2EARE

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

SRS®F | ST NF | S¥SRE | STNF | SRSRE | STONF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fen| Fen| FeR| Fan| Fan|  Fin

Revenue recognised out of the contract EMRHAGHEEL
liabilities at the beginning of the year HERBA 81,272 91,964 2,524 13,123 1,589 3,302

Typical payment terms which have impact on the amount of contract HEBRAGHNABESEBRRTEN —KX

liabilities recognised are as follows: RHEFRT

—  Gift certificates — B3
Gift certificates can be bought or redeemed using reward BEEABEREATHERTIT
points under customer loyalty program by the customers who ZHEDRE RIS S - B HA]
redeem the gift certificates for goods and services offered at HAaRrRHEzEm kRS -
the department stores. The gift certificates are non- BHEEAAREEEEEARE=S
refundable and valid for three years from the date of issue. FRE -

—  Deferred advertising income — EEESERA
The Group receives consideration in advance from customers ERERARBRACAREEER
for using the Group’s product displaying and advertising BRAMESREGE - AEESME
services at a future date. The future obligation to deliver the FIEEWERE - RARREBHRS
services result in contract liabilities being recognised until the WEE  GREHAERRR  BEX
customers receive the service. BEEREZER -

—  Reward points under customer loyalty program — LHRBHET2EIRE
Under the Group's customer loyalty program, customers who EASE BHEBTET 26
participate in the loyalty program can earn one reward point BHEEAE BT HEEELA
for every dollar of their spending. For 10,000 points earned, BRER1 9 o BREXE 10,0009 1 - B
customers can redeem gift certificate with the face value of FAHBREBEOR T2 ES  %iE
HK$50, which can be redeemed for goods or services offered FARBMAERARMHEZERIR
at the department stores. Rewards points earned from HeoBFHRAA=THATZEA
preceding twelve months to 30 June expire on 30 September M EYRERHEBENA=ZTH
every year. FIHf -

FREREE AR L :M
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22.

23.

Contract liabilities (continued) 22. EHERE(E)
The following table shows the amount of unsatisfied performance TRARAES B BH R 8 (RETEH
obligations resulting from reward points under customer loyalty HRA—FIA L) T2 BDE 2 REK
program with an original expected duration of one year or more: BHETSEE
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Expected to be recognised within TEEI — F NHER
one year 4,879 1,589
The following table shows the amount of unsatisfied performance TRATRESBARERES (RERHAH
obligations resulting from unredeemed gift certificates with an BA—FHAL) ZRERBHEEDE
original expected duration of one year or more:
2020 2019
—EEH —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Expected to be recognised within TAEAR —F R
one year 64,161 77,825
Expected to be recognised after one year TEERR —F £ R 50,720 56,356
Bank borrowings 23. RITEE
2020 2019
—ECEF “E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT TR
Bank borrowings (note a): IRITIEE (Wita) - 13,503,062 11,712,178
Carrying amount repayable based on RENFEEARS B EEERE
contractual repayment dates: H1E :
Within one year (note b) —FRNEE (Hitb) 9,628,937 4,070,966
More than one year, but not exceeding —FRRETBBMRF
two years 3,874,125 3,980,587
More than two years, but not MEBEBENBER=F
exceeding three years — 3,660,625
13,503,062 11,712,178
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : S ARBIEER —F NI H 2
under current liabilities FRIE (9,628,937) (4,070,966)
Amount due after one year —F 12 FIH 2 78 3,874,125 7,641,212
Note: B 5T -
(a) All bank borrowings outstanding as at 31 December 2020 carried interest at (a) RIZB-ZF+-_A=+—H FIAEREE

variable rates and were secured by certain leasehold land and buildings
and certain shares of the Company’s subsidiaries and certain financial
assets at FVOCI/FVPL (2019: Same) (Details of the pledged of assets are set

out in note 32).

(b) Bank borrowings of approximately HK$3,636.2 million (2019: HK$573.4
million) are subject to repayable on demand clauses. The remaining
amount of HK$5,992.7 million (2019: HK$3,497.6 million) represents the

current portion of the bank borrowings.
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23. Bank borrowings (continued)
Variable rate borrowings comprise:

23. RITEE (&)

FBNEREERE

Carrying amount

REE
2020 2019
el —hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ bank loan at Hong Kong Interbank A JTERTT CIRBEBRITRIZE
Offered Rate (“"HIBOR") + 0.81% %J%,mbui,%\o.m EEt R
per annum!” 5,992,720 7,478,160
HK$ bank loan at HIBOR + 0.85% BILIRITTER  REBRITEE
per annum® FEIF E0.85EF B 3,874,125 3,660,625
Japanese Yen ("JPY") bank loan at BItiR1TTE R RRBRITRZE
London Interbank Offered Rate FEIMFEB0.65EEEO
("LIBOR") + 0.65% per annum® 324,365 340,912
British Pound (“GBP”) bank loan at LIBOR RE2IR{TE F e R1TR 2
+0.65% per annum® biids bu¢ S0.65EET 20 3,311,852 85,273
US$ bank loan at LIBOR + 0.65% ELRITER - R BIRITRAE
per annum® Tﬁ%bui%\o.&@%‘ﬁ%@ — 6,100
13,503,062 11,571,070

] The amount represents a bank loan of HK$6,000.0 million (2019:
approximately HK$7,500.0 million) being net off by approximately HK$7.3
million (2019: approximately HK$21.8 million) amortised upfront
arrangement fee paid to financial institutions. The amount is repayable in
one year (2019: two years) and interest rate will be repriced every one to
three months.

2 The amount represents a bank loan of HK$3,891.0 million (2019:
approximately HK$3,691.0 million) being net off by approximately HK$16.9
million (2019: approximately HK$30.4 million) amortised upfront
arrangement fees paid to financial institutions. The amount is repayable in
two years (2019: three years) and interest rate will be repriced every one to

three months.

(3) Repayable in one year and interest rate will be repriced every one to three

months.

The range of effective interest rate of the borrowings is 0.88% to
2.46% (2019: 1.78% to 3.29%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had undrawn banking
facilities as follows:

(1) & Z8 TR 1T E 600005 EH TL(ZF
— N+ 497,500.0E B8 T) MBEE AR
BB B ERHBROIIEEE
T(ZE—NF 21 8EEET) - e
%EAfi(: —NF WEF) REE - A
RER—E=EAEHTE -

@ S BEDRTERINBEET(ZZ
—NEF K361 0BEET) HAEREE
BEX TR BER AL ERN16988E
T(ZE—NF : K304BBET) - k& HE
FRME (ZT—NF  =F) NEE - WA
RgR-—E=2=EABHEE-

ER—FAEE MAEEER—E==@A
EHEE -

=

EBEEEBRANEBENTFE088EE246
(ZZ2—NF 1.78FEE3I29E) °

@

RE ,HEEE REE 2 REEEERTTRUE #E
E3 NN

7

X

2020 2019
—E-EE —NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET

Floating rate S
— expiring within one year — —F RN H 1,000,000 —
— expiring beyond one year — —F g2 H 7,091,533 7,228,407

FREREE AR L :M
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24. Bonds

24. &%
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR
Carrying amount repayable: JE1EERE(E
More than one year, but not more than iR —FETEARF
two years 2,216,861 —
More than two years, but not more than B FETHEIB=F
three years —_ 2,325,778
More than three years, but not more iR =F AT RS
than four years 2,313,286 —
More than four years, but not more HBMEENBBRF
than five years 2,306,034 2,322,256
After five years BB R F — 2,314,199
6,836,181 6,962,233
US$287.0 million bond with a fixed 287 0B BXTLES - BEREFF
coupon rate of 4.25% per annum, EEABE  BHEFEZN—IR
payable semi-annually, maturing in BEE-ZT-_FTAREALL
October 2022 2,216,861 2,325,778
US$300.0 million bond with a fixed 30008 BXLES - BEREFF
coupon rate of 4.875% per annum, ER4875[E - BHEFEZMN—IX
payable semi-annually, maturing in BEEZZ-NEL AR AL
July 2024 2,313,286 2,322,256
US$300.0 million bond with a fixed 30008 BXLES - BEREFF
coupon rate of 4.50% per annum, EEAS0E  BHEEFEIZMN—IX
payable semi-annually, maturing in BEEZZ-RFAFM8AL
June 2025 2,306,034 2,314,199
6,836,181 6,962,233

In October 2012, LS Finance (2022) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, concluded a public offering of US$300.0
million bonds (equivalent to approximately HK$2,325.0 million). The
bonds carry a fixed coupon rate of 4.25% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears. The bonds, issued at discount, have an effective
interest rate of 4.43% per annum. The principal amount of the bonds
is repayable 10 years from the date of issue of the bonds, i.e.
October 2022 and are unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed
by the Company.

In June 2015, LS Finance (2025) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, concluded a public offering of US$300.0 million
bonds (equivalent to approximately HK$2,325.0 million). The bonds
carry a fixed coupon rate of 4.50% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears. The bonds, issued at discount, have an effective
interest rate of 4.70% per annum. The principal amount of the bonds
is repayable 10 years from the date of issue of the bonds, i.e. June
2025 and are unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the
Company.

RZE—ZF+A ARaEIN2ERBER
AILS Finance (2022) Limited 52 Ak A FA 3 &
3000 BET2EH (FENA232508
BEL) EHFZEEEREFHE /L2
B BEFHRIMN R - BHFUITEE
BT BRFNERBIBE -EHFENEE
BeE A ES 2 ETH RN T F&E
B -NZZ_—F+ 7 WERHART
AR R LR o

RZE—RFXA AR ERBER
AILS Finance (2025) Limited 52 Ak A FA 3 &
3000 BET2EH (FENA2325.08
BEL) EHFZEEEREFFE /L0
B BEFHRIMN R - BHFUITEE
BT BRFENERBIIOE -EHFENEE
BeEAES 2 ETH RN T F&E
B -NZZE_RERA WERHART
AR R LR o
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24.

25.

Bonds (continued)

In July 2019, LS Finance (2017) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, concluded a public offering of US$300.0 million
bonds (equivalent to approximately HK$2,326.0 million). The bonds
carry a fixed coupon rate of 4.875% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears. The bonds, issued at par, have an effective
interest rate of 5.03% per annum. The principal amount of the bonds
is repayable 5 years from the date of issue of the bonds, i.e. July
2024 and are unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the
Company.

The purpose of the bonds is to satisfy funding requirements for
capital expenditure relating to store renovation and new
department store projects. The bonds are subject to redemption, in
whole but not in part, at their principal amounts, together with
interest accrued to the date of redemption, at the option of LS
Finance (2022) Limited, LS Finance (2025) Limited and LS Finance
(2017) Limited at any time in the event of certain changes affecting
taxes of the British Virgin Islands and the Cayman Islands. The
Bonds also contain a provision for redemption at the option of the
bondholders under certain conditions at 101% of the principal
amount of each bond, together with interest accrued to the date for
redemption, upon a change of controlling shareholder with respect
to LS Finance (2022) Limited, LS Finance (2025) Limited or LS Finance
(2017) Limited.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities
The following are the major deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised

and movements thereon during the current and prior year:

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) represents:

24,

25.

&% (&)

R_E—NFtA ARAENEEMER
FILS Finance (2017) Limited5e A A B 3 &
3000EBETZES (FEHR2,32608
BAET) - EHZETEEEFNEAF4875
B B¥FHAIN R - BEHFUFER
7 BEEMNRAS0E - BEHEHOAEH
CHENES 2R TABEHANAFTERE
B T -_WFLA WERHARQF
AR R B M ESER o

BIEHFMNENEME GRS HEE R
BEEBHEEAAINES TR - B4 M
FRILEAE TREMyERBER RS
MBS BB NTIER © LS Finance (2022)
Limited * LS Finance (2025) Limited } LS
Finance (2017) Limited £ 1% 12 & [@ 2 &
MIELDMES 2 A2 ERBAEZER B
ERFE - B BEHBE K&K ELS
Finance (2022) Limited * LS Finance (2025)
Limited 8% LS Finance (2017) Limited #1%2 fi%
REREZEER  EHFBARE TK
HTEENSESRZ101% A ERES
BEAMEAFNEBRES -

EEBREE BE
UTFAERRZEBEEHALE AR
BARRAE B L

EERBEE/(AE)R

2020 2019
s —THNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Deferred tax assets RIERBEEE 87,451 —
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE (260,067) (243,297)
(172,616) (243,297)
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25. Deferred tax assets/liabilities (continued)

26.

Revaluation of

25, EEHIBEE &E(H)

Accelerated Revaluation of financial
tax investment assets at
deprecation properties FVPL Total
A TAE A
bR B E REME BEz
e EfifEE 2REEEM st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—HA—H (93,976) (177,296) — (271,272)
Credited to profit or REEE (MHE9)
loss (note 9) 876 27,099 — 27,975
At 31 December 2019 =T — L4
+=—A=+—H (93,100) (150,197) — (243,297)
(Charged)/credited to 825 (3ABR) K30
profit or loss (note 9) (B 5E9) (4,958) 43,511 32,128 70,681
At 31 December 2020 HR_ZE_FF
+=—A=+—H (98,058) (106,686) 32,128 (172,616)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not recognise
deferred tax assets of approximately HK$92.7 million (2019: HK$55.0
million) in respect of unused tax losses of approximately HK$324.5
million (2019: HK$333.3 million) and temporary differences arising
from revaluation of financial assets at FVPL and revaluation of
investment properties of approximately HK$237.2 million (2019: Nil)
due to unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses in Hong

Kong may be carried forward indefinitely.

RREHR - B R RFE R 0588
M AREENES R A IEEEL324.5
BEBIL(ZE—NF 333388 ET)
MR AFEFABRZEBMEESHNE
EMEBRFEEZH227288E T (=
—NF B\ TRES  BRECHBEEE
NNTEEET(ZZE—NF 550888

TT) c BAREB R ER LS -

Share capital 26. |RA
Details of the changes in the Company's share capital during both RREFE - AR ZIRANEEFHBUT :
years are as follows:
Number of
shares Amount
BRH#E &8
HK$'000
FTET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each as at RZZE-NEFE—A—0 ZF-N
1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 FHZA=+—HERZ=ZZ=Z
and 31 December 2020 F+-A=t—HEBREE
0.0057 7T 2 & iR 4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, and RZZE-NE—A—HB ZZ-h
31 December 2020 F+ZA=+—AKR=ZZ=F
F+=-A=+—H 1,501,916,000 7,510

None of the Company'’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed shares during the year.
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27. Share option scheme 27. BRESTE
The Company'’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to a BER-_ZZNF=ZA=ZABBNAE
resolution passed on 3 March 2009 for a period of 10 years for the B RRA BIRERT RS - BE0
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible FOFEANRRBDEEREERES -
employees. Under the scheme, the directors of the Company may BIEZAE ARRERAMEERE
grant options to eligible employees, including directors of the 8 BEARARAMBLATEERLE
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Mt AREARDFNRMD o thoh - KA
Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant AR AN S = 7 L B AE - DAEE
share options to outside third parties for settlement in respect of FZR R B HE ) 7 dn sl IR 7 e
goods or services provided to the Company.
In 2019, the Group did not grant any share option under the share RIZE-NF  AEEWEBBREAQRFR
option scheme, which ceased in March 2019, and there was no TE-NFZAKIEMERETSIRET
outstanding share option as at 31 December 2019. ERE  BER_E—-—hEF+_A=+—
H TR A o] i R TR RS R -
28. Commitments 28. #iE
(a) Non-cancellable operating leases commitments (a) T AHEZKEHERE
The Group as lessor FEEERLHEA
All of the properties held for rental purposes have committed FERREEBEN ZMERRK—
lessees for the next one to two years. EMFRNEBABEBA o
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: HERKSEBLFIEMNT -
2020 2019
— s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT THET
Within one year —F R 121,270 1,468
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_ZELF (BEEEME) 106,037 1,633
227,307 3,101
Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one BE—RENF—Z=F 2 F 8
year to three years. R
(b) Capital commitments (b) EAREE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of RMERRETNIERBRLSEE
the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities are as ZEREARIZTHAT
follows:
2020 2019
e —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
For property, plant and equipment M REREREARBBEDE
and investment property in relation BRIBE ZIREWE
to the property development
project 4,310,340 4,713,089
fRERKRERELR :A?%h
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29.

30.

Capital risk management 29. EXEBERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group REBEBREER  URRASE 2B
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the RREBHERE  RAREABIER MK
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and REEeh RFNEREZEDR - AEE
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged CEREREEEER -
from the prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, REBZERAEBBRERITEE  BH5R
bonds and equity attributable to owners of the Company, RATHEA ARLER (BREETRER
comprising issued share capital and reserves including retained B (BIEREREN)) -
profits.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a RABESRTHBEREE - (ERZR
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company FZ—#D RRABEFGEREAKK
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class REREREEZRAR - RIBERARES
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of the Z2EE  AEEGFERRMRE - BITH
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure & K2 B A B 1Bl LA e BT ST R IE sk iE E IR A
through the payment of dividends, new shares issue and share EIE AT 8 KB B8 8 AR 481 -
buybacks as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.
Financial instruments 30. €T A
Categories of financial instruments SRITAER
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets measured at amortised ~ REFEXN AT E 2 EMEE (BF
cost (including cash and cash ReRBELFEY)
equivalents) 4,308,453 8,690,875
Financial assets at FVOCI (note 18) BAFEGFAEMEER R S/
A& (K5E18) 1,320,281 633,121
Financial assets at FVPL (note 19) BAVEFABRSZSREE
(MF5E19) 4,831,023 3,321,953
10,459,757 12,645,949
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised 1Z#EKX AT EC 2 HEE
cost 21,189,525 19,600,370
Financial liabilities at FVPL (note 19) BATEFAEZZERERE
(FHEE19) 220,836 12
21,410,361 19,600,382
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEBNREE

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash and cash
equivalents, bank deposits, financial assets at FVPL and FVOCI,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, lease
liabilities, bank borrowings and bonds. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes of the financial
statements. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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30. Financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its majority subsidiaries
is HK$ in which most of the transactions are denominated.

The Group has certain bank balances and bank deposits which are
denominated in US$, GBP and RMB (being currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities) amounting to
HK$470,295,000 (2019: HK$2,752,628,000), HK$11,670,000 (2019:
HK$42,645,000) and HK$30,276,000 (2019: HK$27,481,000),
respectively. Furthermore, the Group has certain bank borrowings
which are denominated in JPY, GBP and US$ (being currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities)
amounting to HK$324,365,000 (2019: HK$340,912,000),
HK$3,311,852,000 (2019: HK$85,273,000) and HK$nil (2019:
HK$147,208,000), respectively. Moreover, the Group has bonds
which are denominated in US$ (being currency other than the
functional currency of the respective Group entities) amounting to
HK$6,836,181,000 (2019: HK$6,962,233,000).

In addition, certain financial assets at FVPL are denominated in US$,
EUR, GBP and JPY (being currencies other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities) amounting to
approximately HK$3,649,650,000 (2019: HK$2,099,824,000), HKS$nil
(2019: HK$47,500,000), HK$450,000 (2019: HK$15,070,000), and
HK$247,524,000 (2019: HK$348,580,000) respectively. Certain
financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in US$ and GBP (being
currencies other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities) amounting to approximately HK$387,500,000 (2019:
HK$389,500,000) and HK$932,781,000 (2019: HK$243,621,000)
respectively.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Notwithstanding HK$ is effectively pegged to US$ under the
pegged exchange rate system in Hong Kong, given the Group's
large amount of net liabilities denominated in US$, the Group is still
exposed to the exchange risk of US$ against HK$ within the band of
US$1 to HK$7.75 and 7.85. The Group is also exposed to foreign
currency risk of US$/JPY/GBP against the HK$ and, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, other foreign currency risks are not
significant to the consolidated financial statements and hence no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

30. £ T A (&)

B EREER N RBE (H)

S
ARRREKRTFOHBRRZIEEEER
BT BRAA RS NETTFE -

AEBBETUET  RERARE (18
EEERNINEEE AN ) sHERR
TEEEREOTETHEZR 23 A
470,295,000 0 (=& — L &F :
2,752,628,000567T) * 11,670,000/ 7T (=&
— UAF + 42,645,000/ 7T) }30,276,0007 7T
—T— N5 27,481,000/ 7T) © AN 0 AR
EEAETUABE  ZERFET(HEEE
HENNEEEUIINZ ) sHERRITE
& 5 B.A5324,3650005 7T (ZE—HE
340,912,000 7T) - 3,311,852,0005%8 7T (—
T — L5 : 85,273,000/ 7T) REB T (ZF
— LA+ 147,208,000 7T) ° th ) » ANEEH
LAZETL (RSB EREMNGEEB N E
) HEMES - £%58/56,836,181,00078 7T
(ZE— N9 : 6,962,233,0005 7T) °

BEAN - LAZETT C B - R BE (HE%
EFEMNIEEEE AN ) SHERIZA
FEFABENETEMEE  2H0A
3,649,650,0008 L (=T — L& :
2,099,824,0008 7T) - EBT(ZZF— A
£ 1 47,500,0007% 7T) 450,000 7T (=&
— L& : 15,070,000/ 7T ) K 247,524,000
7T (= Z — S5 : 348,580,0005 7T) © LASE
TR EE GEEEEERMINEEB AN
B sHEME A E AL 2 EUWRESH
=T &rEE D B4 A387,500,0007 7T
(ZZ — AL 4 : 389,500,000/ T) &
932,781,000 7T (—ZT— N4 : 243,621,000
BIT) °

AREEIREA EIMNELIDBER - AT - B
BEEeEEIMNERR  YNFEHEEYH
HERIMNERR

BEATLERAHEERG TRAITH
8 ERAEEEREUETHENFE
& ANERDEEETHLBTTEREIET
H7.75%7. 858 TRE B o AKEHBE
HxT,/ HE/EELBITOIINERR -
MARBDEERR  EINERBREERS
MHRRAREEATE WAL E2HH
RE DT -

AEERREERAR :ﬁ%&’\
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30. Financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change of 0.5% (2019: 0.5%) for exchange rate of US$
against HK$, and 3% (2019: 3%) in the exchange rate of JPY/GBP
against the HK$, while all other variables are held constant. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 0.5% (2019: 0.5%) change in US$
against HK$ and a 3% (2019: 3%) change in JPY/GBP against HKS$. A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit for the year
where the HK$ weakens against the relevant foreign currency.
Where the HK$ strengthens against the relevant foreign currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit
for the year and the balances below would be negative.

30. €@ T A (&)

MEEREER N RBE (F)

B ()
TRANAEERETL R BT ERTEE
tHIH0.5% (ZF—NF : 05%) * L& H
B,/ HER BT ZERAEHIRI%(ZF
— N 3%) RIEE B 2 HURE  MAT
EEMBEERTE - PRESMERRE
RREBRRUINESTENEBIEEES © I
LA0.5% (ZZF —NF 1 0.5%) fEETTH B TT
3% (ZZE—H4F - 3%) {ER B /HeE K 5
TTEEEITIRE - T ESRTEITHAE
R ONEETE SRR 55 - (FFE R AL - B8
TR AR RASNEE IE AL R0 - HFE AR
BaMNeBRERARNFE  E T34
BB B -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019

—EC-FfE —T—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FHET

US$ against HK$ ETHBET (9,722) (7,797)
JPY against HK$ HEXETT (1,923) 194
GBP against HK$ REE BT (59,291) 5,412

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank deposits and fixed coupon rate bonds (2019: fixed
rate bank deposits and fixed coupon rate bonds). The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relating to the Group's
variable-rate bank deposits and bank borrowings. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

ERERA  MRERD 2 AR R
ERER - HERE S TE TR EE G
FE LR -

ViE:
NEBHABOETFRBITEHTFRK
ErEEmAEREFDEA FMEWTHBH
(Z=2—NF  BEFRRITERFTRRL
Em@ﬂ fEFH) o Z!K’%lj‘fﬂﬁf'%ﬁi\/%_
E%TM&%H%EEﬁﬁimiﬂ
% o ZIKEIEEETIE&T"VF‘Hﬁ/EPBZ
BB BRI RER R
ﬁEET%Fﬂ/ﬁPikﬂTH & o
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consolidated statement of financial position.

30. Financial instruments (continued) 30. €@ T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEB N RBER (&)
(continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) FIEm B ()
The Group's sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has been REBEHBEeRMNERARZGRE - IR
determined based on the exposure to interest rates for bank BRMEARETES (T EREFEERE
borrowings (excluding the specific bank borrowings for construction ﬁﬁﬁZfﬁTﬂ%%) RN EBEFYEEHA]
purposes) at the end of the reporting period and the reasonably ijﬁzmiﬁﬁﬁ’\iii’E%KH?ﬁE o i
possible change taking place at the beginning of each year and held HEREZBRED *ﬁIEEﬁEEEEAMEE
constant throughout the year. No sensitivity analysis is presented in w?'%jlﬂiji B -BEMNEZEERAB
relation to bank balances as management considers the impact is I I FEE e ) 2 e B By 501.%%(*T h
insignificant. 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points) increase or - SOEE) WNgR AR E B AR - I
decrease is used for variable-rate balances when reporting interest REBEIREBLH A KA e IR EHRT(L -
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents EMAEMERERITE  KEERIER
management’s assessment of reasonably possible change in interest HBRERMERERIERERREMES
rates. The Group's sensitivity to interest rate risk at the end of the BEKAR  REERNRE BHRE T ER
reporting period while all other variables were held constant after REREIAT
taking into account the impact of the tax and excluding finance
costs capitalised in construction in progress and investment
property under development is as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=+—-HLHFE
2020 2019
—E-EF —NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
(Decrease)/increase in post-tax profit FABRELEER O d), 18
for the year
— as a result of increase in interest rate — HBRFIE EFH (32,262) (23,060)
— as a result of decrease in interest rate — RRFETE 32,262 23,060
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity is unrepresentative of the ERERE BRFEBEZRERI A RE
inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not reflect FRER  WHREI LI EKEEF
the exposure during the year. Ry
Credit risk and impairment assessment 15 B B f K el B 51
The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the RZZEZZF+_R=+—8 KEE/R
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at 31 HFTRERBITERETMESENEER
December 2020 in relation to each class of recognised financial eRMEEmMHzEREERR - DigiRE
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the WSRO &R AT ‘EZ%QEZEEETE

FREREE AR L :M
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30. Financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables

Retail sales are mainly on a cash basis, either in cash, debit card or
credit card payments. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management of the Group has formulated a defined fixed credit
policy and delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 (2019: ECL model) on trade balances
individually or based on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors
of the Group consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for bank credit
card receivables at the gross carrying amount of HK$22,796,000 and
those credit-impaired Sogo card receivables at the gross carrying
amount of HK$2,224,000, the Group determines the expected credit
loss on the remaining balances at the gross carrying amount of
HK$4,764,000 by using a provision matrix, grouped by internal credit
rating.

The credit risk on bank credit card receivables is limited because the
counterparties are banks/financial institutions with high external
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies
ranging from Aal to Baa2. In addition, the directors of the Group
consider those not credit-impaired trade receivables were
collectible based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Therefore,
allowance for impairment was insignificant and thus negligible to be
made.

30. €@ T A (&)

MR EREER M RBER (&)

= B /7 i R d B A7 ()
ZEHETBURSET  AIURE
BERAEARNR - REERE Zfﬁ

B AEEE EEE%IJEEHEEZEFIET
BE UEZE—HABR BEEEEER
BOMREERMETEMEERR - A
REREEHMABREB ZETNFE - It
SN MEREBBMBIREEREIRE - &
SEBETEAEERIEAT(ZE-N
F: BHMEERKE) (RERE - @5
AR BRI BB S G - Bl
FEBMEEAR $‘$IZ1ZT? AR
e A o

RNEEERESI RS A F 95 A
% st EFERBHEEBANEER
& - BREREARE 522,796,000/ TTHYERTTS
FA - Uk BR 3 % BR TE 48B4 2,224,000 7T
NZEEERERREXREZIN K&
(58] 375 48 2% 1 4B o8 EE 72 PR THI 4R (B /534,764,000
BB T EHRNTEREERL  ¥AEA
HEETFRFE-

AREFHARBEEFREET BAaT
ZBaa2 SN EMEEFRMIRTT & @M‘%
B B RITEARERRZNEER
B lto AEEESZRA - *ETT‘:L%W
ARTEHFHNBIBERMSNENER
BEFE VBN RES DB A ES /) RTIE
MHERHEL AT  ZFHEEREEBIR
AT UE - Bt REBELEATELX
B iR -
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30. Financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

For the credit-impaired trade receivables, a provision of impairment
allowance of HK$23,000 was made during the year ended 31
December 2020. The following table shows the movement in loss
allowance that has been recognised for trade receivables under the
simplified approach.

30.

2@ I A (&)
B35 RS B IR B A9 R K (M)

5B /m 5 R a1 ()

JEH IR ()

REERERKERME  BE_T-F
FTZA=1t—RILFED1E23000/8
TTEVRE R - TRIVIREBE/E{AEH
W IRFERNBREEES -

Life-time ECL
(credit
impaired)
FHEBES
FEBRX
(FERE)
HK$'000
FHET

As at 1 January 2019 under HKFRS 9 RBEE BB E LA FE R
WZZ—-hF—H—H 2,212
— expected credit losses reversed —BREEHEEEX (1)
As at 31 December 2019 RZFB-NF+ZA=1+—H 2,201
— expected credit losses recognised — EERBHEERX 23
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-_ZF+_-_A=+—H 2,224

The Group did not write off any trade receivables during the year.
Other receivables, deposits, bank deposits and bank balances

Other receivables mainly comprise a VAT recoverable, a receivable
from a property management company in the United Kingdom, and
interest receivables due from banks. The credit risk on other
receivables, deposits, bank deposits and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are the United Kingdom government’s
authority, an established UK property management company, which
is a certified member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyor,
banks/financial institutions with high external credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies ranging from Aal to Baa2 and
established Hong Kong companies. Allowance for impairment was
insignificant and thus negligible to be made since the management
considers the probability of default is negligible.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in relation
to trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers.

FA NS AT MR K

B EWHE ~ BT~ RITER 7R IR
TTAE17

HMEWRAT ZRREAERDEER &
W— R R B R E RN R A R K&
WERTT B o A B F 77 5 R B BUT #
B —HEEARRRABEREAEM
BeeNYEEERT  BREEFR
ST SAa1 ZBaa2t) = M A6 5 BET AW
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It H B WRIE ~ R SRITE MR
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30. €@ T A (&)

30. Financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Price risk

The Group's financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to
price risk. The management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles. Details of the
financial assets at FVPL are set out in note 19.

The Group's sensitivity to price risk on the financial assets at FVPL at
the end of the reporting period while all other variables were held
constant is as follows:

MEEREERHRBE (&)

E 15 E fE
AEBERAFEFABEZEREE IR
WEPHRZAFETE At AEE®E
HERRR BEEFSAFFATRRER
ZIREEAUEERERR - B FE
ANERZEREE ZFHBHNRWE9 -

EEMEBHERTET  AEENBEH
REBERFEFABSZEREEZBER
EBREBEENT

HK$'000
TR
2020 —EC-EF
Reasonably possible change in price Bz AR E 5%
Increase/(decrease) in post-tax profit for the year FRRB &R i n CRd)
— as a result of increase in price — BREBIE N 207,834
— as a result of decrease in price — BN ERRD (207,834)
2019 —E—hE
Reasonably possible change in price B2l IEE 5%
Increase/(decrease) in post-tax profit for the year FRBRBIEEFEMCRD)
— as a result of increase in price — BRERIG N 153,591
— as a result of decrease in price — BRERR D (153,591)

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings and bonds as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
available unutilised borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$8,091.5million (2019: 7,228.4 million). Details of bank borrowings
are set out in note 23.

FEEZ R

REBRRBESRRE  AEEERLS
BE @%ﬁ%&%%ﬁ$%l%%%%ﬁ
SKFEZESRRESEEY  WHIEERS
RERDFE TEEERBITEEZE
A BRETENREH -

AEEBKERTEEREFFEREZNR
HELHRR R_F_FFT_A=1—
B AEBZADAEEREREOR
80V SABETL(—FT—NF 7228485
BT - BRRTTEE ZFAIEHNKITE23 -
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30. Financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest rates are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from an interest rate curve at the end of the reporting
period.

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity analysis
for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted gross (inflows) and outflows on those
derivatives that require gross settlement. When the amount payable
is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by
reference to the projected interest rates/exchange rates as
illustrated by the interest rate/exchange rate existing at the end of
the reporting period. The liquidity analysis for the Group's derivative
financial instruments are prepared based on the contractual
maturities as the management considers that the contractual
maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the
cash flows of derivatives.

30.

@I A (F)
B EREER N RBE (H)

mBELEE ()

TRANAEEITESRBEBERT AL
FHA - TRVRBASEAMRKERE
RZEFAH NERABZIFERAS

2 em—
MERETR °

HERME  TwiRiTEETELEN 2T
REM - MAREREERGERZRITERG
ABRRRER - EM3ETE SR A E 2 5 1
B R 4% 17 7 48 X B BAEEE -

TREHINMNBEAZRER - ENEXR
FEIME - RN SBRIBE RS R
KR EME

BEAN s TRAJARENITES R TAD
MBS - RRRBFRBLEE 2L
TAERBBRORA) MRHESIE - E&
NeBIEE  HESELSERANE/
EXR (MAERSBMRRANE JEXPR)
BT ARENTESRIANRIIED
TERAHIHERE AREHEER
B ANRIBMBEETRITETANRSR
ERHFFER -

HREREEERL T :M
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30. 2@ I A (&)
BEEREER MR ECE (E)

30. Financial instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBELERE (&)

Liquidity and interest risk tables BB RFE AR

Weighted
average  Ondemand/ Total
Effective less than 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month 1-3 months 1 year 1-5 years cash flows amount
T RER/ =@RE BEHR
YIS —fEAR —-Z=f88 - —-Z5F RERE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT FhEx TER FHT FEx
31 December 2020 ZR-EF+ZA=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTEERER
Trade and other payables [ERBRF R A I 30IE 560,665 64,622 1,724 - 627,011 627,011
Lease liabilities HERR - 24,324 71,223 132,472 228,019 223,271
Bank borrowings — variable rate (note a) ~ $R{T{EE — FB)F|E (Mita) 0.91% 5,896,059 13,221 3,790,107 3,910,583 13,609,970 13,503,062
Bonds E% 4.54% 56,672 - 260,109 7,780,031 8,096,812 6,836,181
6,513,396 102,167 4,123,163 11,823,086 22,561,812 21,189,525
Derivative — gross settlement ETA—BEEE
Target redemption forward contract BEAREEEAH
— Inflow —RA 8,146 32,583 59,057 - 99,786
— Outflow — R (7,657) (30,629) (85,515) - (93,801)
489 1,954 3,542 - 5,985 29
Derivative — gross settlement METE—REREE
Interest rate swaps kS
— Inflow —RA - - - - -
— Outflow — (3,146) (6,291) (28,834) (108,072) (146,343)
(3,146) (6,291) (28,834) (108,072) (146,343) 220,807
31 December 2019 “E-NAETZA=T-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTECMEAE
Trade and other payables JE AT R E A A ROR 571,253 65963 1,724 - 638,940 638,940
Lease liabilities HEARE — 19,566 66,624 223,350 309,540 287,020
Bank borrowings — fixed rate (note a) PITEE —BETHE (HiTa) 2.35% 141,317 — — — 141,317 141,108
Bank borrowings — variable rate (note @) $R{TfEE — F B (MiFa) 3.40% 2,715,882 1,062,810 393,197 8,028,738 12,200,627 11,571,070
Bonds &% 4.54% 56,964 — 261,452 8,138,603 8,457,019 6,962,232
3,485,416 1,148,339 722,997 16,390,691 21,747,443 19,600,370
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30. Financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidlity and interest risk tables (continued)

Note:

(a) Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
“on demand or less than 1 month” time band in the above maturity
analysis. As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate undiscounted principal
amounts of these bank loans amounted to HK$3,636.2 million (2019:
HK$573.4 million). Taking into account the Group's financial position, the
directors of the Group do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Group believe that such bank loans will be repaid within
one year from the end of the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time,
the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
HK$3,637.4 million (2019: HK$573.8 million).

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ from the estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

30. £ T A (&)

B EREER N RBE (H)

mBELE b (F)
RBETRFBERK (&
i

(a) B A1 B SO G R RI TR B E Lt B H#3
DT A REL—EAN] B - ¥
—E-TEF-A=+—H - ZEIERRY
BITERARNE A H36362BEEETL(ZF
—NF 5734 EETT) c EERIAEED
MHRR - AREERIEERTIETET
BRI KA EE LRNEE - AEE
EENRAZSHRITERERBREHRRE
A ENRBRERGESRNETERE S
BE - - ENAINASENERERE KA
3,6374BERTT(ZTE—NGF : 5738FHEE
TT) e

EXBFTESRBEZFHNETER
H

T
B2 e BEIHIRBHERRE
HAFBEOBHFIRMAES -

REFEE I A FlEGTENEHBEER
TR EZNFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

30. Financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

Financial assets/liabilities

Fair value as at

30. 2@ I A (&)
BEEREEAR MR ECE (E)

RBELEE ()
REBETRFEERK ()

Fair value
hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)

LREE/BE DTER DYESRRE HEFENZESASE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—ECoER —E-0E
+ZAZt-8 |[tZA=1-H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRRT FEL
Financial assets at FVPL/FVOCI
BROTEFARSRAFEFAEM
PEKBCEREE
1. Listed equity securities 1,879,421 1,751,061 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in active markets.
EiRE £ WEBTSTEHEAR
2. Listed debt securities 1,815,394 1,203,759 Level 2 Quoted prices in over-the-counter markets.
LS 4= BARSHERE -
3. Money market fund 1,542,853 111,960 Level 1 Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial institutions.
ERmEES - ERERNSBBBRANTISRE -
4. Unlisted equity security 387,500 389,500 Level3 Note
ELTRE EH= i3
5. Unlisted investment funds 430,008 146,721 Level 3 Note
FLTREES 8= A
6. Unlisted hedge funds — 18,666 Level 3 Note
FLEFEHES = s
7. Unlisted debt security - 234,583 Level 3 Note
FLMESR EH= i3
8. Unlisted equity-linked notes 76,304 31,215 Level3 Note
FEETRERDES 4= A
9. Cross currency and interest rate — 51,738 Level 2 Discounted cash flow: Future cash flows are estimated based on i) forward
swaps - interest rates (from observable yield curves at the end of the reporting
RXE¥RFIRIEH period) and contract interest rates for interest rate swaps, and ii) difference
between predetermined forward exchange rate at the end of reporting
period and discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties for cross currency swaps.
BRRLRE  ARREREBNER()F R FINE X (EREH R
BRRER R MAONRGE  ROZXNEBEHNEREAROT
BHNMERRBREI XSG FEERRNER R 2 ZRIFH A -
10. Warrant 54 — Level2 Quoted prices in over-the-counter markets.
RE 5= BINRHHIHHRIE o
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30. Financial instruments (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidlity and interest risk tables (continued)

30. £ T A (&)
B EREER N RBE (H)

mBELE b (F)
RBETRFBERK ()

Fair value
Financial assets/liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
tREE/BR DFER APEERRE HEFENIEBASE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
b e 33 “Z-NEF
+tZA=t-B |[tZA=1+—-H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRRT TAR

11. Club debentures 16,538 15,871 Level 2 Quoted prices in over-the-counter markets.
BFES EH= BIRBHHERE

12. Target redemption forward 3,232 — Level2 Discounted cash flow: Future cash flows are estimated based on difference
contracts EH= between predetermined strike and knock out rate and foreign exchange
BRBEESEEH forward market rate at the end of the reporting period.

RRALNE  ARREREBNERNETRERIBEAREREHRD
THEHER 2 MmN ERIEL &5 -

Financial liabilities at FVPL

RATEFABE2ERAE

13. Written put options — 12 Level2 Quoted prices in over-the-counter markets.

RBhEE EH= BIRZHHERE
14. Interest rate swaps 220,807 — Level2 Discounted cash flow: Future cash flows are estimated based on forward
GESSY EHh= interest rates (from observable yield curves at the end of the reporting
period) and contract interest rates.
BRRENE : ARBLREDERURAT R (RESHRTHERMEE
i) MEHFEGE -

15. Target redemption forward 29 — Level2 Discounted cash flow: Future cash flows are estimated based on difference
contracts = between predetermined strike and knock out rate and foreign exchange
BEBREBEH forward market rate at the end of the reporting period.

HRALNE  ARRERENERNETRERIREUREREHRN
miGERER 2 MR RIEL A

Note: Given majority of the Level 3 instruments comprised unlisted investment
funds, unlisted debt security, unlisted equity security, unlisted hedge funds
and unlisted equity-linked notes, the fair value is determined primarily
based on the purchase price paid by the Group and/or taking into account
of the analysis of the investees’ financial position and results, risk profile,
prospects, industry trend and other factors, it is not practical to quote a

range of key unobservable inputs.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during both years.

Mist: ENARHEOE=RTABREIFLTRER
& JELMES  FFLMERE  JELME
Ao LI EmBREHRBES  ATEDETE
BAREMN ZBEER/REH RKIRE
TR R EE - BRI  BIR 1T
EXBEREMERRETE SR —FINER
TRBEHAZBLTER -

B BoANBE=FZEEREFE
W EAE AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

30. Financial instruments (continued) 30. €®MI A (@|E)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes ATFEFERMGER
Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of the Group REN TR AEEEZRA  EHEAM
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial BHRRZEEKATRHREEMNS R
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial BEMNREERA N TERBS

statements approximate to their fair values:

2020 2019
oF 2 L —2—hs
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
IREE A¥{E FREE NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET
Financial liabilities EA =N
Bonds &% 6,836,181 6,872,513 6,962,233 6,927,964
Fair value hierarchy NP EEREE
2020
—B-EHF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& EZR E=ZR ast
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT THET THET TR
Financial assets at FVPL/FVOCI: RAFERFABZS ER
FEF AR M EK S
L EREE
— Listed equity securities — FTKE 1,879,421 — — 1,879,421
— Listed debt securities — FhESH —_ 1,815,394 _— 1,815,394
— Money market fund — EEmMEES 1,542,853 _— _— 1,542,853
— Unlisted equity security — I LTRE - — 387,500 387,500
— Unlisted investment funds — MR EES — — 430,008 430,008
— Unlisted equity-linked notes — SE AR ERMAE S — _— 76,304 76,304
— Warrant — R FE - 54 —_ 54
— Club debentures — ZATES — 16,538 — 16,538
— Target redemption forward — BREERERHAL
contracts —_ 3,232 _ 3,232
Total BET 3,422,274 1,835,218 893,812 6,151,304
Financial liabilities at FVPL: BRATEFAERZ S/
BfE:
— Interest rate swaps — 7| %4 HR — 220,807 — 220,807
— Target redemption forward — BEBEEREHEL
contract — 29 — 29
Total Bt — 220,836 — 220,836
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30.

31.

Financial instruments (continued) 30. e®WMI A (@)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NP ESEHRER (E)
2019
—E-NF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
4 B FZR HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets at FVPL/FVOCI: WAFERTABRS
BT ER AR
FHWSE S SREE
— Listed equity securities — FRE 1,751,061 — — 1,751,061
— Listed debt securities — FWEH — 1,203,759 — 1,203,759
— Money market fund — EEmSES 111,960 — — 111,960
— Unlisted equity security — I EHRE — — 389,500 389,500
— Unlisted investment funds — I LEMEREES — — 146,721 146,721
— Unlisted hedge funds —EEMEHES — — 18,666 18,666
— Unlisted debt security — I EWMESH — — 234,583 234,583
— Unlisted equity-linked notes — 3 i AR 4
E% — — 31,215 31,215
— Cross currency and interest — XX B %
rate swaps 2 HA — 51,738 — 51,738
— Club debentures —2HESH — 15,871 — 15,871
Total “aEt 1,863,021 1,271,368 820,685 3,955,074
Financial liabilities at FVPL: BRATEFAERZ
TRBE
— Written put options — RohHARE — 12 — 12
Total st — 12 — 12
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing 31. RMEEFHELENEBYHER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRFMKAEEREGETHNEEY
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. B BREAESKIHEcEH -HETDE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash FMEBERECEAKERERENERT
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's DEAEREEFH 2R TMHUERRIKRE
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing RemMERScatE -
activities.
FREREEFRLAT —T—_TEEH
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32.

31. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing 31. MEFEBELNWEBEHER (&)
activities (continued)
Accruals of
commitment
Bank Interest  fee for bank Dividend Lease
borrowings Bonds payable  borrowings payable payable Total
EBTREE
RITEE &% EAFE RHER ENKRE ENEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FET FEL TEL FET FEL TEL
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—HF—H 11,214,249 4,656,499 37,956 3,833 — — 15,912,537
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RN SO HREERE16% ~ ~ - — — 353,008 353,008
Financing cash flows BERSR 467,648 2,326,899 (502,215) (15,301) (1,006,284) (78,343) 1,192,404
Exchange difference ERLER 2,142 (21,165) (8,627) — — — (27,650)
Interest expenses FlEX 28,139 — 309,776 14,968 — 12,355 365,238
Capitalisation of interest expenses 2 &AL F| &3 ) — - 254,084 — - — 254,084
Dividends declared EERRE — — — — 1,006,284 - 1,006,284
At 31 December 2019 RZT-NEF
+ZA=+—H 11,712,178 6,962,233 90,974 3,500 — 287,020 19,055,905
Financing cash flows RERER 1,743,931 (100,957) (536,273) (13,649) — (81,584) 1,011,468
Exchange difference [ER =% 18,893 (25,095) (10,025) - - - (16,227)
Interest expenses FEXH 28,060 - 317,280 13,905 - 10,069 369,314
Capitalisation of interest expenses 2B ALFIE X - - 217,330 - - - 217,330
Addition to lease payable BAEREE — - — — - 7,766 7,766
At 31 December 2020 i e
+ZA=1+-8H 13,503,062 6,836,181 79,286 3,756 — 223,271 20,645,556
Pledge of assets 32. EEEHM
At 31 December 2020, the Group pledged certain leasehold land RZE-ZTF+-_A=+—H A~EEE
and buildings in Hong Kong with carrying values of approximately FEEOR126A8ET(ZE—NF:

HK$1,126.6 million (2019: HK$1,172.0 million), together with shares
of the Company'’s certain subsidiaries, to secure banking facilities of
HK$8,000 million (2019: HK$8,000 million) granted to the Group. In
addition, financial assets at FVOCI/FVPL with a carrying value of
approximately HK$5,091.3 million (2019: HK$1,391.8 million) have
been pledged to secure loan facilities in the amount of
approximately US$725 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,618.8 million) (2019: US$320 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,492.8 million)).

Moreover, the entire Kai Tak Project, comprising the construction in
progress and investment property under development, with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$10,193.4 million (31 December 2019:
HK$9,762.2 million) was pledged to secure the HK$9,000 million (31
December 2019: HK$9,000 million) loan facility granted to the Group
for financing the development of the Kai Tak Project. As at 31
December 2020, HK$3,891.0 million was utilised (2019: HK$3,691.0
million).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

33.

34.

Related party disclosures
(a) Transactions
During the year, there were no significant related party
transactions.
(b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of executive directors being the key
management personnel, were determined by the
remuneration committee of the Group having regard to the
performance of the individuals and market, details of which,
together with the other three (2019: three) highest paid
employees, are disclosed in note 11.

Retirement benefits schemes

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the above
mentioned schemes amounted to HK$8,358,000 (2019:
HK$8,761,000).

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme under
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance ("ORSO Scheme”)
and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”).

For members of the MPF Scheme, both the Group and the
employee contribute 5% of the employee'’s relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. No forfeited
contribution was available to reduce the contribution payable in the
future years.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from both
employees and the Group at 5% of the employee’s remuneration.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

33.

34.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

FEMHBQRFE
RIB_EFR_FE—NF+_A=+—
B ARAIZEEBHBEBARFBOT

35. Particulars of principal subsidiaries 35.
At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the details of the Company's

principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place/Date of incorporation/

Issued and fully paid share

Attributable equity interest

Name of company establishment and operation capital/registered capital of the Group (note) Principal activities
ML, K
NAEH REE ML B # BRARES ERERA REBELES (FEE) FEXH
2020 2019 2020 2019
S “E-NF | ZBIBE | ZENF
Ambitious Global Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong USs$1 US$1 100% 100%  Financial investment
9 July 2019 1% 1% SRRE
“E-NELANE
Blossom Atlas Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong Us$1 Us$1 100% 100%  Financial investment
6 March 2018 1£% 1%7T PRRE
—B-/\F=ARA
Broad Shine Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong Us$1 Us$1 100% 100%  Financial investment
2 January 2013 1£5 (E SRRE
KBRBREE/ BB
—F-=Z%-AZH
Eastlord Development Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Property holding and
MeEERBERAF 21 August 1987 500,000 7T 500,000 7T leasing
EE NERBEREE
—“WNEENRZ+—H
Everwin Worldwide Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding and
KERRARAA 17 November 2000 2B 2B leasing
BB MERBREE
“EEEET-ATtH
Forceworld Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Property holding and
AEREBERAR 15 July 1988 500,0007% 7T 500,000 7T leasing
& MERBEREE
— A N\FELA+EE
Future Develop Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong Us$3 Us$3 100% 100%  Investment holding
12 December 2003 LEY 3ET REER
ZRR=FTZATCH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

35. Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued)

Place/Date of incorporation/

Issued and fully paid share

Attributable equity interest

35. TEMBAAFHE (&)

Name of company establishment and operation capital/registered capital of the Group (note) Principal activities
A 3oL
NAEH KA B 8 BRATRES EMBRE REBEEGRER (M) TEEH
2020 2019 2020 2019
bt 23 “E-NE | ZBIBF | ZE-0F
Global Top Limited Hong Kong HK$1 HKS$1 100% 100%  Restaurant operator
tEERAR 12 January 2006 187 18T EELE
EE
“EER¥-ATZA
Grand Kinetic Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding and
BZERAIA 7 February 2001 28T 2B leasing
BB NEREREE
—RE-F-ALRA
Knight Prosper Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong Us$1 US$1 100% 100%  Financial investment
6 March 2018 1% (E SREA
RERARRE/BE
—E-\F=ARR
Leader Bright Limited Hong Kong HK$1 HKS$1 100% 100%  Properties development
ERERAA 18 December 2015 187 BT MEER
EE
“E-RFTZATAR
Leading Rainbow Limited Hong Kong HK$1 HK$1 100% 100%  Advertising
EXERDA 2 September 2016 1871 18T B
Ei
“E-RFAACZA
LS Finance (2017) Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong US$1 Us$1 100% 100%  Financing
1 November 2011 (B (E i3
HBEAREE/ B
LS Finance (2022) Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong Us$1 US$1 100% 100%  Financing
27 September 2012 1%27 1ETT AE
HEEAREE/BE
B s ey =
LS Finance (2025) Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong Us$1 US$1 100% 100%  Financing
2 June 2015 1% (E BE
REEARES/BE
ZZ-R¥RAZH
Pacific Trump Development Limited  Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding and
HEBEEARAF 6 July 1995 28R 2T leasing
—ANEFLAKRA

HRERRERRLF

—g=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

35. Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 35. FEMBRAAFE (&)
Place/Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share  Attributable equity interest
Name of company establishment and operation capital/registered capital of the Group (note) Principal activities
MM EE
NAEH REE ML B # BRARES ERERA REBELES (FEE) FEXH
2020 2019 2020 2019
S “E-NF | ZBIBE | ZENF
Public Might Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 HK$1,000 100% 100%  Property holding and
HERRRAA 30 August 1984 1,0005& T 1,000/ 7T leasing
EE NERBEREE
—WN\BENA=TA
Ronson Kwok Asia Pacific Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Club operator
5 October 1993 1,000,000 1T 1,000,000 7T BMEE
EE
—AN=FTARRA
Sogo Hong Kong Company Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 HK$4,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
EX(FF)BEHERAA 23 September 1983 4,000,000 7T | 4,000,000/ 7T TEER
&
“ANZFEAAZT=H
Super Expert Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands/ USs$1 N/A 100% N/A~ Property holding and
United Kingdom EY AiEHA TEA leasing
3 March 2020 MERELEE
HBGERRS/H
—Z-ZTH5=-A=H
Superlite Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong USs$1 US$1 100% 100%  Property holding and
3 April 2001 1£% 1%7T leasing
RERAREE/BE NEFHREE
—== _ﬁﬂ H =H
Tycoon Achieve Limited British Virgin Islands /Hong Kong Us$1 Us$1 100% 100%  Financial investment
23 October 2014 1£% 1%7T PRRE
“E-EETAZ+=H

Note: LS Finance (2017) Limited, LS Finance (2022) Limited and LS Finance (2025)
Limited are directly held by the Company. Other subsidiaries are indirectly
held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length

=

T LS Finance (2017) Limited * LS Finance
(2022) Limited &2 LS Finance(2025) LimitedJ}
RARBHEERHE - AMHBERRIEAR
AIMERE -

ERIRINEARREERRIBZER
SEXEREECAEENBAR - AR
RAEERA REECHBARNENES
HFBBE -
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the Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % ff 55(4&)

36. Statement of financial position and reserves of

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

36. AN AMBRR KRR

R|EHR - AARFBIRRERER B

2020 2019
—E-EH —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Non-current assets EmEEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARIE 4,194 4,194
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a) &YX P & 2 A FRIA (Fif Ea) 10,706,837 10,791,412
10,711,031 10,795,606
Current assets MENE E
Other receivables o fE R I8 557 248
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note b)  FEULHT B A~ &5k E (FiiEb) 2,179 549
Cash and cash equivalents RBERBEFED 146,028 37,236
148,764 38,033
Current liabilities mENBE
Other payables o Ath & < 5B 4,116 3,607
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note c) FEASTBT B A A2k IE (FisEc) 8,184,216 9,635,834
Tax payable JE# 1A — 22,739
8,188,332 9,662,180
Net current liabilities mEBEFE (8,039,568) (9,624,147)
Net assets BEFE 2,671,463 1,171,459
Capital and reserves BEARREE
Share capital fig 7% 7,510 7,510
Reserves (note d) fE s (MsEd) 2,663,953 1,163,949
2,671,463 1,171,459
Movement of the reserves of the Company is as follows: RABINHEEES T
Capital
redemption Retained
reserve profits Total
EAREE
3] RE A Foy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
At 1 January 2019 WZZE-NF—-H—H 1,190 1,184,529 1,185,719
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 24 [€ ) | [ 2 T W 55 4B 58 — 984,514 984,514
Dividends paid BEIRMRE —  (1,006,284)  (1,006,284)
At 31 December 2019 RZEBE-NE+-A=+—H 1,190 1,162,759 1,163,949
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 2% & i 5| [ 2 1 W 25 48 58 — 1,500,004 1,500,004
At 31 December 2020 R-ZF_FFEF+_A=1+—H 1,190 2,662,763 2,663,953
FIEEREEBFRAT :Aiih
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %R 4 871 3% 3R 3% ff 53(&)

36. Statement of financial position and reserves of
the Company (continued)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2020, the amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured
and have no fixed repayment terms. An amount of HK$5,698,000,000 (2019:
HK$3,698,000,000) bears prevailing interest rate and the remaining amount
of HK$5,008,837,000 (2019: HK$7,093,412,000) is interest-free. In the
opinion of the directors, based on their assessment as at the end of the
reporting period of the estimated future cash flows from the subsidiaries,
the amounts due from subsidiaries will not be repayable within one year
from the end of the reporting period, accordingly the amount is classified

as non-current.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free, and

repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2020, the amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured
and repayable on demand. An amount of HK$3,716,886,000 (2019:
HK$5,408,880,000) is interest bearing and the remaining amount of
HK$4,467,330,000 (2019: HK$4,226,954,000) is interest-free.

The Company's reserves available for distribution as at 31 December 2020
consisted of retained profits of HK$2,662,763,000 (2019: HK$1,162,759,000).

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

36. ARAMBRRKRRMEE ()

ff

)

R-ZZE-THE+-—A=+—8 BUHEBER
B2 RIESEER R EETEERER - &
#85,698,000,000# T (=& — AL 4 -
3,698,000,000% 7T) IR ITFI R 5t & - T4
4 %85,008,837,0008 L (=T — fLF :
7,093412,0008 L) 2 B - EER A IR
BEE S BRI E A R ERRIR
FEUBT B R AR IBAS T EE RS SR
Eﬁ(lﬂj%ﬁ/\*ﬁﬁikmu ©

s,
3

—FAREE

JEUFT B X R

FIBETDEER - R NIRER

RZZEZZTHF+—A=+—8 ENAHWHEBEL
RIZREADEEARRERKEE -
3,716,886,0008 L (=& — h & :
5,408,880,000%8 7T.) & &t B 1M Tl ¢4 & 58
4,467,330,0008 L (=& — L -
4,226,954,00087T) BEE °

RZZFZBF+-_A=1+—0 KAFAH

7K 5 8 B 15 R B i 72,662,763,0007% 7T
(ZZ—h % :1,162,759,00078 7T)
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

T FEEEERE

Results
For the year ended 31 December

BE+=A=1—BLFE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—T-RE S 3 —T-N\E “T-NE —ECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T TR
Revenue YA 4,671,971 3,755,092 4,358,010 3,542,032 1,993,024
Profit attributable to owners of  ZN‘A BB AE(E % F
the Company 1,600,907 2,875,674 1,690,070 1,890,676 138,510
Earnings per share (HK$) BREMNGET)
— Basic — &K 1.00 1.79 1.08 1.26 0.09
— Diluted —#E N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Total dividends per share (HK BRIk B 2% (1)
cents) 632 632 66.5 300 N/A
Assets and liabilities EEREE
At 31 December R+—A=+—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“T-RE “T—+F “E-N\F “E-NF —ECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET T T#x
Total assets AERE 21,117,336 21,363,554 20,567,503 24,501,539 25,777,776
Total liabilities BERE (18,669,420) (17,484,888) (17,636,119) (20,660,235) (21.932.652)
Net assets BEFE 2447916 3,878,666 2,931,384 3,841,304 3,845,124
Non-controlling interests FEE R s (597,542) — — — —
Net assets attributable to ARAEAANEIEEE
owners of the Company FE 1,850,374 3,878,666 2,931,384 3,841,304 3,845,124
Net assets per share (HK$) BREEFEET) 1.53 242 1.95 2.56 2.56
Net assets per share AREHE NEEGR
attributable to owners of BEFEGETL)
the Company (HK$) 1.15 242 1.95 2.56 2.56
Number of shares issued BETRNEE 1,602,586,500 1,602,586,500 1,501,916,000 1,501,916,000 | 1,501,916,000

AREREEAERAE —E_ 254,

S
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Particulars of Major Properties

ETEMEFR

Attributable
Gross floor Nature of interestto Category of Stage of Expected
area Site area property  the Group lease completion completion Lot number
528
AREEE  ALEE NEME  EEEE HEER TREE RIRT REHER
sg.m. sqm.
L
Property under development
EEYE
Property under development located at New 101,900* 14,159 Commercial 100% Medium Under 2023 6557
Kowloon Inland Kai Tak, Area 1E Site 2, Kowloon, [EES e development -
Hong Kong ERT
AR EANERES 1 ER 2RO NERDE 2
ERNE
Property for investment
FEREME
Investment property at St. James's Square, London, 9,630 N/A~ Commercial 100% Freehold Completed N/A N/A
United Kingdom TEm [EE3 KAKHE BRI TER TER
R RERIEENLES 2 RENE
* Approximately 50% of the development is expected to be for own use. * 18 B #)50% Tt EE A -
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Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
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Tel E&E: (852) 2833 8338

Fax{EE&: (852) 2838 2030
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